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THE COMPANIES ACT, 2013

COMPANY LIMITED BY SHARES

MEMORANDUM OF ASSOCIATION

OF

SMARTLINK HOLDINGS LIMITED

1. The name of the Company is SMARTLINK HOLDINGS LIMITEDI.

II. The Registered Office of the Company will be situated in the State of Goa.

III. The Objects for which the Company is established are:

A. THE OBJECTS TO BE PURSUED BY THE COMPANY ON ITS
INCORPORATION ARE:

1. To invest in, acquire, purchase, hold, sell, dispose of or otherwise/
1A. To deal in all types of shares, stocks, debentures, bonds, units of mutual

funds, negotiable instruments, commercial paper, certificates of deposits,
futures and derivative instruments, securities of any Company, government,
public body or authority, municipal and local bodies, whether in India or
abroad and to form, incorporate or promote, sell or otherwise dispose-off
any company or companies, whether in India or elsewhere; and

lB. To develop, construct, manage, lease, turn to account & deal in real estate
and property of all kinds and in particular land, buildings, hereditaments and
other property in India or elsewhere any right or interest in real or personal
property and any claims against such property or against any persons or
company and as regards land to develop the resources thereof any
improving and civil constructions of commercial and residential building
and to carry 011 business as builders contractors estate agents and estate
managers.

2. Manufacturing add-on computer parts of all types of applications in
'communication and networking.

2 A To carry on business as manufacturers, producers, processors, makers,
convertors, repairers, importers, exporters, traders, buyers, sellers, retailers,
wholesale suppliers, intenders, packers, movers, preservers, stockists, agents,
sub-agents, merchants, distributors, consignors, jobbers, brokers,
concessionaires or otherwise deal in computers, data processors, calculators,
tabulators, machines, appliances, accessories, devices and instruments of

I Name of the Company was changed from D-Link (India) Limited to Smartlink Network Systems Limited
vide Fresh Certificate of Incorporation dated 15.07.2009. Further the name of the Company was changed
from Smartlink Network Systems Limited to Smartllnk Holdings Limited vide Special Resolution dated s"
April, 2018
2 Altered vide Special Resolution dated s" April, 2018. CERTIFIED TRUE COPY
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every kind and activation for use in industrial, commercial, banking,
scientific, medical, statistical, or any other purpose and any other product or
products thereof or materials, articles, software and hardware in connection
herewith or ancillary thereto, software development in networking field and
other computer applications and infotainment, media telecommunications and
entertainment, wireless and any other knowledge based industries."

2B to design, develop, carry out, assist, research in the field of Information
Technology on networking products and computer related products, for lise

for industrial, commercial, banking, scientific, medical, statistical or any
other purpose and assist in providing educational, personal training and any
other kind of service or facility relating to information technology,
computers, computer programming, internet, information retrieval, data
preparation and processing equipment and electronic and electrical
equipment and device.'

B. MATTERS WHICH ARE NECESSARY FOR FURTHERANCE OF THE
OBJECTS SPECIFIED IN CLAUSE llI(A) ARE:

3. To render advisory and consultancy services in respect of know-how, design,
manufacture, installation, maintenance and of any products made for calls computers.

4. To establish a bureau for providing computer usage and renting time to users on a
block of time and casual basis with special emphasis on computer software
development for exports.

5. To carry on research in the manufacture of electronic data processing equipment and to
set up factory or workshop, laboratory for such purposes and to educate and train
personnel in computer skills of systems, design, operations maintenance and
programming and to publish and procure related educational material.

6. To solicit, market, develop, sell, research the usage of computer application and system
software abroad and export it from India and to advise on obtaining import licenses and

. other Goverrunent clearance for setting up a computer unit in India and providing the
services of procuring computer hardware, tools, accessories and spare parts from
abroad.

7. To sub-let all or any contract from time to time and upon such terms and conditions as
may be thought expedient.

8. To collaborate with foreign finn for acquiring or offering technical know-how, to
employ experts including foreign technicians, to engage consultant, engineers,
workmen, bankers, solicitors, advocates, insurers, advertisers, selling and buying
agents and others as found expedient and in the interest of Company's business.

9. To expend money in experimenting upon, testing, improving and protecting any
process or processes, copy-rights, patent or patents, designs, which the Company may
acquire or propose to acquire or deal with.
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10. To establish, provide, maintain and conduct or otherwise subsidize research
laboratories and experimental workshops, to carryon research and development in
chemical plants, analytical laboratories and to carry on scientific and technical
researches, experiments and test of all kinds and to do market research and market
survey.

11. To purchase or by any other means acquire and protect, prolong and renew, any trade
marks, patents, rights, brevets-d'inventions, protections and concessions which may
appear likely to be advantageous or useful to the Company and to use and turn to
account and to manufacture under or grant licenses or privileges in respect of the same
and to spend money in experimenting upon testing and improving or seeking to
improve any patents, inventions or rights which the Company may acquire or propose
to acquire.

12. To act as Contractors or sub-contractors, to any State or Central Government,
Railways, Port Trust, Municipal Corporations or Municipalities, or District Local
Boards, Civil and Military Authorities and any other person, firm or corporation
whether Indian or foreign for any purposes whatsoever and to guarantee the
performance of any contracts, sub-contracts, licenses and concessions for or in relations
to the objects, or business herein mentioned or any of them and to undertake, execute,
carry out, dispose of or otherwise tum to account the same.

13. To enter into arrangements with any Government, Railway, Municipal or Local
Authorities or other persons or firms which may seem conducive to the attainment of
any of the Company's objects and to obtain from any such Government, Railway,
Municipal or Local Authority or other persons or firms any rights, privileges and
concessions which the Company may think beneficial, to obtain and to carry out
exercise Of comply with any such arrangements, rights, privileges, and concessions of
the Company.

14. To obtain Order or Act of Legislature or Parliament for enabling the Company to
obtain all powers and authorities necessary or expedient, to carry out to extent any of
the objects of the Company or for any other purpose which may seem expedient and to
oppose any proceedings on applications which seem calculated directly or indirectly to
prejudice the Company's interest.

15. To amalgamate, enter into partnership or any arrangement for sharing of profits, union
of interests, co-operation, joint venture, reciprocal concession or otherwise, with any
person, firm or company carrying on or engaged in or about to carry on.

16. To take or otherwise acquire and hold shares in any other company having objects
altogether or in part similar to those of this Company.

17. To promote any company or companies for the purpose of acquiring all or any of the
property, rights and liabilities of this Company.

18. To develop and to turn to account any lands of the Company, whether acquired by
purchase or taken on lease, by repairing building sites and by constructing,
reconstructing, altering, improving and maintaining offices, flats, houses, factories,
warehouses, shops, buildings, works, and conveniences of all kinds and by
consolidating or sub-dividing properties and by leasing and disposing of the same to
managelands,bui7!5~~ as aforesaidwhetherbelongingto the
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companies or not and to others who may be willing to build on or improve land or
buildings in which Company is interested and generally to advance money to such
persons on such terms as may be arranged.

19. To purchase or otherwise acquire, take on lease, sell, exchange, surrender, mortgage,
charge, convert, turn to account, dispose of, let on hire and deal with property and iu
particular mortgages, charges, hypothecations, debentures, concessions, options,
contracts, patents, trade marks, trade names and copy rights, stocks, shares, bonds,
policies, book debts, business concerns and undertakings, claims, privilege and choose
in action of kind, machinery, plants, stock-in-trade and any movable and immovable
property.

20. To acquire, erect, construct, lay down, enlarge, alter and maintain any buildings works,
workshops, plant and machinery necessary or convenient for the Company's business.

21. To plan, design and construct offices and commercial undertakings of any kind for and
on behalf of the Company.

22. To sell, or dispose off the property or undertaking of the Company or any part thereof
for such consideration as the Company may think fit, and in particular for shares,
debentures or securities of any other company, having objects altogether or in part
similar to those of the Company.

23. To sell, improve, manage, develop, exchange, lease, mortgage, enfranchise, dispose
off, turn to account or otherwise deal with all or any part of the property and the rights
of the Company.

24. To pay for any properties or rights acquired by the Company, whether in cash or fully
paid up shares or partly in one and partly in the other and generally on such terms as
the Company may deem fit.

25. To sell or let out on hire, all or any of the property of the Company whether immovable
or movable including all and every description of apparatus or appliances and to hold,
use, cultivate, work, manage, improve, carry on and develop, and undertake land and
immovable and movable property and assets of any kind of the Company or any part
thereof.

26. To distribute any of the Company's property among the members in specie in the event
of winding up subject to Companies Act, 2013.

27. To grant leases or licenses in respect of land, buildings and tenements with or without
furniture therein.

28. To acquire and take over any business or undertaking carried on upon or in connection
with any land or building which the Company may desire to acquire as aforesaid or
otherwise or become interested in, and the whole or any of the assets and liabilities of
such business or undertakings and to carry on the same or to dispose off, remove, or put
an end thereto or otherwise deal with the same as may seem expedient.

29. To open an account or accounts with any person, firm or company or with any bank or
banks and to pay into and to withdraw money from such account or accounts.
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30. To draw, make, accept, endorse, discount, execute, issue, negotiate, assign and
otherwise deal in cheques, drafts, promissory notes, bills of exchange, hundies,
debentures, bonds, bill of lading, railway receipts, warrants and all other negotiable or
transferable instruments.

31. To pay any rights or properties acquired by the Company

32. To issue all or any part of the capital, whether preference or equity shares of the
Company at par or at a premium or at a discount and as fully 01' partly paid for cash 01'

for consideration other than cash or as bonus shares.

33. To borrow 01' raise or secure the payment of money, or to receive money on deposit at
interest, for any of the purposes of the Company on such terms and at such time or
times and in such manner as may be thought fit and in particular by the issue at par 01'

at a premium or a discount of debentures or debenture-stock, perpetual or otherwise
including debentures or debenture-stock, convertible into shares of this or any other
company or perpetual annuities and as securities for any such money so borrowed,
raised, or received or of any such debentures or debenture-stock so issued, to mortgage,
pledge or charge the whole or any part of the property, asacts or revenue or profits of
the Company, present and future, including its uncalled capital by special assignment
or otherwise, or to transfer or convey the same absolutely or in trust) and to give the
lenders power of sale and other powers as may seem expedient, and to purchase redeem
or payoff any such securities. The Company shall not, however, carry on the business
of Banking as defined in the Banking Regulation Act) 1949 subject to provisions of of
the Companies Act, 2013 and rules made thereunder and directives of Reserve Bank of
India.

34. To lend money to such persons and on such terms as may seem expedient and in
particular to members of the staff, customers and other having dealing with the
Company and to guarantee performance of the contract by any such person.

35. To invest or deal with the monies of the Company not immediately required, in such
manner as may from to time be determined.

36. To create any reserve fund, sinking fund, insurance fund or any other special fund
whether for depreciation, repairing, maintaining, improving or extending any of the
property of the Company or of any other purpose conducive to the interests of the
Company.

37. To distribute as bonus shares among the members or to place to reserve or otherwise to
apply as the Company may from time to time think fit and as Companies Act, 2013
may permit any monies received by way of premium on shares or debentures in respect
of forfeited shares and monies arising from the sale by the Company of forfeited
shares.

38. To payout of the funds of the Company, all costs, charges and expenses of and
incidental to the formation, registration, advertisement and establishment of the
Company and issue and subscription of the shares, for the shares, or loan, capital,
including brokerage, commission for obtaining application for or placing or
guaranteeing the placing of shares or any debenture-stock and other securities of this
Company and also all expen ~t to the issue of any circular or notice and the
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§ printing, stamping, circulating of proxies and forms to be filled up by the members of

the Company.

39. To procure the incorporation or registration or other recognition of the Company and to
carry on business in any country, state or place and to take such steps as may be
necessary to give the Company such rights and privileges in any part of the world as
are possessed by local companies or partnerships or as may be thought desirable.

40. To guarantee or become liable for the payment of money, trust, agency, performance of
any obligation and generally to transact all kinds of guarantee, trust 01' agency business.

41. To make advances of such sum or sums of money in respect of or for the purchase 0f
materials, goods, machinery, stores or any other property, articles and things, required
for the purposes of the Company upon such terms with or without security as the
Company may deem expedient.

42. To subscribe or otherwise establish trusts, to assist or to guarantee or to charitable,
benevolent religious, cultural, scientific, public or other institutions, clubs, societies or
funds.

43. To accept upon suitable remuneration or otherwise apprentices for the purpose of being
trained in the business with a view to their subsequent employment by the Company or
otherwise.

44. To train or pay for the training in India or abroad of any of the Company's employees
or any candidates in the interest or for furtherance of Company's object.

45. To remunerate any person, firm or company rendering services to this Company either
by cash payment or by allotment to him or them of shares 01' securities of the Company
credited as paid up in full or·in part or otherwise as may be thought expedient.

46. To establish and maintain or procure the establishment and maintenance of any
provident fund, any contributory pension or superannuation funds, gratuity schemes for
the benefit of and give or procure the giving of donations, gratuities, pensions,
allowances or emoluments to any person or persons who are or were at any time in the
employment or services of the Company, of any company which is a subsidiary of the
Company or who are or were at any time directors or officers of the Company or of any
such company as aforesaid and the wives, widows, families and dependants or any such
persons and also establish and subsidise and subscribe to any institution, association,
clubs or funds calculated to be for the Company or of any such company as aforesaid
and make payments to or towards insurances of any such person as aforesaid and to do
any matters as aforesaid either alone or in conjunction with any such other company as
aforesaid.

47. To do the above things in any part of the world either alone or in conjunction with
other and either as principals, agents, correspondents, contractors, trustees or otherwise
and to allow any property to remain outstanding with such agents or trustees and do all
such other things as are incidental or may be thought conducive to the attainment of the
above objects.



workers, boiler-makers, mill rights, machinist, iron and steel converters, smiths and to
buy, sell, manufacture, repair, convey, alter, let on hire and deal in machinery,
implements, rolling stock and hardware of all kinds.

49. To manufacture and/or deal in all chemicals, materials and substances used in the
manufacture, production or treatment of all kinds of textiles.

50. To design, fabricate, deal in, and manufacture, plant equipment, accessories, apparatus,
parts and machinery required in textile industry and allied industries.

51. To carry on agency business of all types.

I 52. To purchase, take on lease or on exchange, manage, sell houses, lands and also carry 011

agricultural operations on land and estate so acquired.

53. To act as commission agents, importers, exporters of general merchandise goods,
products, manufactured goods of all description.

54. To buy, sell, let on hire, repair, alter and deal in machinery, components, parts,
accessories and fittings of all kinds.

55. To carry on business as dealers, merchants, exporters, hirers, commission agents,
guarantee brokers, stockist, merchantile agents in engineering and scientific,
instruments or apparatus machinery, plastic materials, chemicals, cements and building
materials. of all kinds, oils of all kinds, gases, motor cars and other vehicles and
accessories, hardware, metals, minerals, coal, timber, cotton, wool, jute, hemp, sesame,
fibers, seeds, grains, rice, wheat, tea, coffee, sugar, cinchona, rubber, gum, lac, tobacco,
spices, and other agricultural or natural products or "forest produce, silk, art silk, nylon
and allied materials and articles made there - fromoilcakes, paints, varnishes, dyes,
matches, glass, glassware, crockery, cutlery porcelain, jewellery, diamonds, precious
metals, sanitary ware, groceries, provisions and foodstuffs, toilet preparations and
products, patent medicines, drugs, medical and pharmaceutical, products and
appliances, live stocks, hides, skin leather and goods make therefore hosiery, textiles of
all kinds and all other goods, produce, materials, articles, commodities and
merchandise.

IV. The liability of the member(s) is limited and this liability is limited to the amount
unpaid, if any, on the shares held by them..6

V "The Authorized Share Capital of the Company is Rs. 7,00,00,000/- (Rupees Seven
Crores only) divided into 3,50,00,000 (Three Crores Fifty Lakhs) Equity Shares of Rs.
2/- (Rupees Two) each.";



We, the several persons, whose names, addresses and occupations are hereunder
'subscribed, are desirous of being formed into a Company in pursuance. to this
MEMORANDUM OF ASSOCIATION and we respectively agree to take the no. of shares
in the capital of the Company set aside to our respective names:

Name, address, description and No. of Equity Signature, name, address,
Occupation, if any, of Subscriber shares taken by' description and and

each subscriber Occupation of the witness

Sd/-
Mr. Kamalaksha R. Naik
S/o. Rama S. Naik
Plot No.99,
Ambivili,
Versova Road,

. Andheri (W),
Mumbai - 400058.

10
(Ten)

Sd/-
Devendra Vinayak
Kakodkar
Sio V. G. Kakodkar
306 Rayu Chambers,
Dr. A. Borkar Road,
Panaji, Goa.
403001

Occ : Business.

10
(Ten) Chartered Accountant

SdJ-
1.S. Gujral,
S/o Darshan Singh Gujral,
Flat No. 11,
2nd Floor, :
Gurukripa Bldg.,
14th Road, Plot No. 434,
Khar, Murnbai - 400 052

Oce : Business

TOTAL 20 (Twenty)

Panaji, Goa, 12thMarch, 1993

8
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THE COMPANIES ACT, 2013

COMPANY LIMITED BY SHARi1:S

ARTICLES OF ASSOCIATION

OF

SMARTLINK HOLDINGS LIMITEDl

The following regulations comprised in these Articles of Association were adopted pursuant to members' resolution
passed at the Annual General Meeting held on l4th August, 2015 in substitution for, and to the entire exclusion of, the
earlier regulations comprised in the extant Articles of Association of the Company.

1. No regulations contained in TableF, in the Schedule I to the Companies Act, 2013, Table F not to apply
or in the Schedule to any previous Companies Act, shall apply to this Company, but Company to be
but the regulations for the management of the Company and for the observance of governed by these
the Members thereof and their representatives, shall, subject to any exercise of the Articles
statutory powers of the Company with reference to the repeal or alteration of, or
addition to, its regulations by Special Resolution, as prescribed by the said
Companies Act 2013, be such as are contained in these Articles.

INTERPRETATION

2. In the interpretation of these Articles, unless repugnant to the subject or Interpretation
context:- clause

"The Company" or "this Company" mea ns SMARTLINK HOLDINGS "The Company"
LIMITED'
"The Act" means "The Companies Act, 2013" or any statutory, modification or re- "The Act"
enactment thereof for the time being in force and certain sections of the
Companies Act, 1956 which are not repealed and for the time being in force.

"Board of Directors" or "Board", in relation to a company, means the collective "The Board of
body of the directors of the company. Directors" or "The

Board"
"Director" means a director for the time being of the Company Director

"Articles" means these articles of association of the Company or as altered "AOA"

from time to time.

"In Writing" and "Written" include printing, lithography and other modes of "In Writing" and

representing or reproducing words in a visible form. " Written"

"Rules" means the applicable rules for the time being in force as prescribed cc Rules"
under relevant sections of the Act

"Seal" means the Common Seal for the time being of the Company. "Seal"

Words importing the singular number include, where the context admits or requires, "Number" and
the plural number and vice versa and words importing the masculine gender also "Gender"

1Altered vide Special Resolution dated 5th April, 2018

1
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include the feminine gender

The marginal notes used in these Articles shall not affect the construction
thereof. -
Save as aforesaid, any words or expressions C:dined in the Act shall, if n,,'.; Expressicns in the
inconsistent with "t~ie subject or context, bear .the .same meaning in these Articles to bear tbe
'\1 i·~(;i.es. " .. same meaning &S ill

I the Act--·----1----- -
CAPITAL AND INCREASE

AND REDUCTION OF CAPITAL

J The Aii~;lOri<:i.!d Share Capital ~f the' Company is ·Rs. 70,00u,OOCI- (H..upces Authorised Capital
Seven Crores cnly) divided into: .'
70,000,0001- (Rupees Seven Crores only) consisting of 35,000,0001- (Three
Crore Fift:i Lakhs} equity shares ofRs. 2/- each

4. (a) The Directors shall in making the allotments duly observe the Restriction Oil

provisions of the Act. Allotment
(b) Nothing herein contained shall prevent the Directors from issuing fully paid

up shares either on payment of the en.ire nominal value thereof in cash or
in satisfaction of any outstanding debt or obligation of the Compar:Y..:...__

--:-:--

5. (<1) Subject to the provisions of the Act and these Articles, the shares in Ule- Shares under Control
capital of the' Company for the time being (including nny shares of Board.

.' forming f.1tt cf any increased capital or Gle Company) snall be uader. the c::·,1H':.1 (If tile Board who may Allot ::10 same or rciy of thci.i to nuch
persons, in such proportion and on such tenus and conditions and either
at a premium cr at par and at SUC!l ~,t~nns as they may, from time to
ti.ne, tiiink fit.

(J) Subject to the pre visions of ti)f; Act ::1~~1tbcse Articles, ~:le !JJ~ra may Directors may allot
issue and allot shcrcs in ii:c ~:l~~ital0:' the Company on payment cr pa: t shares otherwise than
payment for any propel ty or assets of any kind whatsoever sold or for cash,
transferred, goods or machinery supplied or for services rendered to the
Company in the conduct of its business and any shares which may be so
allotted may be issued as fully paid-up or partly paid-up otherwise than
for cash, and if so issued, shall be deemed to be fully paid-up or partly
Eaid-uE shares as the case may be,

6. Except so far as otherwise provided by the conditions of issue or by these New capital same

presents, any capital raised by the creation of new shares shall be considered as as existing capital

part cf the existing capital and shall be subject to the provisions herein
contained, with reference to the payment of calls and installments, forfeiture,
lien, surrender, transfer transmission, voting and otherwise,

ALTERI\TION OF CAPITAL
.., Subject to the provisions of the Act and the Rules the Company may, Power to alter share
I.

(a) increase the share capital by such sum, to be divided into shares of such capital

amount as it thinks expedient;
(b) consolidate and divide all or any of its share capital into shares of larger

amount than its existing shares; Provided that any consolidation and

2
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8.

Option to receive
share certificate or
hold shares with
depository

" ',

division which results in changes in the voting percentage of members shall
require applicable approvals under the Act;

(c) convert all or any of its fully paid-up shares into stock, and reconvert
that stock into fully paid-up shares of any denomination;

(d) sub-divide its existing shares or any of them into shares of smaller amount
than is fixed by the memorandum;

(e) cancel any shares which, at the date of the passing of the resolution, have
not been taken or agreed to be taken by any person.

The Company may, by resolution. as prescribed by the Act, reduce in any
manner and in accordance with the provisions of the Act and the Rules, -
(a) its share capital; andlor
(b) any capital redemption reserve account; andlor
(c) any securities premium account; andlor

(d) any other reserve in the nature of share capital.

Reduction of capital

SHARES AND CERTIFICATES
Issue of certificate.9. (1) Every person whose name is entered as a member in the register of

members shall be entitled to receive within two months after allotment or
within one month from the date of receipt by the Company of the
application for the registration of transfer or transmission or within such
other period as the terms of issue shall provide-
(a) one certificate for all his shares without payment of any charges; or
(b) several certificates, each for one or more of his shares, upon payment of

such charges as may be fixed by the Board for each certificate after the
first.

(2) Every certificate shall be under the seal and shall specify the shares to
which it relates and the amount paid-up thereon.

(3) In respect of any share or shares held jointly by several persons, the
Company shall not be bound to issue more than one certificate, arid delivery
of a certificate for a share to one of several joint holders shall be sufficient
delivery to all such holders.

Certificate to bear
seal
One certificate for
shares held jointly

A person subscribing to shares offered by the Company shall have the option
either to receive certificates for such shares or hold the shares in a
dematerialized state with a depository. Where a person opts to hold any share
with the depository, the Company shall intimate such depository the details
of allotment of the share to enable the depository to enter in its records the
name of such person as the beneficial owner of that share. .-------~~~~~~~~~~~~~~--~~~~--~--------------_+--------~----_4
If-any share certificate be worn out, defaced, mutilated or tom or if there be no Issue of new
further space on the back for endorsement of transfer, then upon production certificate in place of
and surrender thereof to the Company, a new certificate may be issued in one defaced, lost or
lieu thereof, and if any certificate is lost or destroyed then upon proof thereof destroyed
to the satisfaction of the Company and on execution of such indemnity as the
Board deems adequate, a new certificate in lieu thereof shall be given. Every
certificate under this Article shall be issued 'on payment of fees for each
certificate as may be fixed by the Board.

10.:

11.

12. The provisions of the foregoing Articles relating to issue of certificates shall Provisions as to issue

3
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13.

Call may be revoked
or postponed

mutatis mutandis apply to issue of certificates for any other securities (except
where the Act otherwise requires) of the Company.

of certificates to
apply muuuis
mutandis to any other
securities etc.

(1) The Company may exercise the powers of paying commissions conferred
by the Act, to any person in connection with the subscription to its
securities, provided that the rate percent or the amount of the commission
paid or agreed to be paid shall be disclosed in the manner required by the
Act and the Rules.

(2) The rate or amount of the commission shall not exceed the rate or amount
prescribed in the Rules

Power to pay
commission in
connection with
securities issued

Rate of commission
in accordance with
Rules
Mode of payment in
commission

(3) The commission may be satisfied by the payment of cash or the allotment
of fully or partly paid shares or partly in the one way and partly in the other

14. Subject to the provisions of the Act, the Board shall have the power to issue or
re-issue preference shares of one or more classes which are liable to be
redeemed, or converted to equity shares, on such terms and conditions and in
such manner as determined by the Board in accordance with the Act.

Power to issue
redeemable
preference shares

I~
I

I
I
I

15. (1) The Board or the Company, as the case may be, may, in accordance with
the Act and the Rules, issue further shares to -
(a) persons who, at the date of offer, are holders of equity shares of the

Company; such offer shall be deemed to include a right exercisable by
the person concerned to renounce the shares offered to him or any of
them in favour of any other person; or

(b) employees under any scheme of employees' stock option; or
(c) any persons, whether or not those persons include the persons referred

to in clause (a) or clause (b) above.
(2) A further issue of shares may be made in any manner whatsoever as the

Board may determine including by way of preferential offer or private
placement, subject to and in accordance with the Act and the Rules

Mode of further issue
of shares.

Further issue of share
capital

CALLS
Directors may make
calls

16. The Board may, from time to time, subject to the terms on which any shares may
have been issued and subject to the conditions of allotment, by a resolution
passed at a meeting of the Board (and not by circular resolution) make such call as
it thinks fit upon the Members in respect of all moneys unpaid on the shares held
by them respectively and each Member shall pay the amount of every call so made
on him to the person or persons and at the time and place appointed by the
Board. A call may be made payable by installments.

1

1

I

17. Fourteen days notice in writing of any call shall be given by the Company Notice of calls
specifying the time and place of payment, and the person or persons to whom
such call shall be paid.

Calls to date from18. A call shall be deemed to have been made at the time when the resolution
authorising such call was passed at a meeting of the Board. resolution

19. A call may be revoked or postponed at the discretion of the Board.

4
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20. l1}.ie joint-holders of a share sl;all be jointly and severally liabic to pay ail calls in
rcsee.t ...her ....'f___ L..:~.; l ~"'\I. • • • . .. •

/.i. --IThe -Board may, from time to tirr.~ at its discretioa; extend the time fixcd.Icr the
p?aym:r1t of un..y call, and ;n~y extend- i=UC:l time es to- all or n~y of tl.c MCj"ll~.::·,)

. who from residence at a distance 0:' other cause the Board may deem fairly
entitled ..to such extension but no member shall be entitled to such cxtcnticn save
as a matter cf grace and favour.

Liacility of joint-
ho.ccrs

22. If any Member fails to pay any call due from him on the day appointed fo;' 1~:'::1-t1aYIr.cnt of
payment thereof, or any such extension thereof as aforesaid, he shall be liable to Calls on time to
pay interest ell the same from the day appointed for the payment thereof to the carry interest
time of actual payment at such rate &3 shall from time to time he fixed hy the Board
not exceeding 10 per cent per annum or at such lower rate, if any, as the Board may
de tennille.------~~=~~~--------------------------------------------------~--------------~

?.;. IP..:\)' sum, which by the terms of issue of a share oecomes payable on Sums deemed to be
:allo'ment or at ~1~' fixed date, v..li~ilic;:on LCC::>i:'i~of the nominal value of the share calls
IOf b:, \\':1'/ of premium, shall fer the purposes of 1hese Articles be deemed to oe a

Icaiiduly made and payable on the date on which by the terms of issue the :;:m1C I
, becorr cs payable. In case of non- payment of such sum, ail the relevant i:;;:CI,';.3;on:
!uf t!l~~e Articles as to payment of interest end expenses, forfcitu.c or otherwise,
Ishal, r.pply as if.suca sum hod become payable cy virtue of a call July :'J::;.ie :"1~

:~:0~ilic~L -2.tl': On the trial or hearing of .my ~eii')n or suit brought 'by the e~--n-pan--·-y-:l-g-(-·-.s-~-~-_-.:/~i--p,?ot' on trial of

'" .,':.1cmberor hiS. rep:..".:!seI~llt~""e:>[(1'. ~her~cv'~:?,' cf any ~oney eiaimc(i'to. ~tclue to I ~~~t ) fer money
uie Company 111respect or his suares, It shall be sufficient to prove that tile name I due \. n shares
of the Member in respect of whose shares 'J1e money is sought to be recovered
appears entered on the Register of Members as tnc holder at GT subsequent to the
date at which the money sought to be recovered is alleged to have become due on
the shares in respect of which such money i1 sought to be recovered; that the
resolution making the call is duly recorded in tile Minute Book; and that notice of
such call was duly given to the Members or 1'..:5 representatives sued in pursuance
of these Articles and that it shall Lot be necessary to prove the appointment of the
Directors who made such call nor that a quorum of Directors was present at tile
Board at which any call was made, nor that the meeting at which any cali was I
made was duly convened or constituted nor any other matters whatsoever, but the I

I nroof i)[ the l:1atte;:s afore-said sllaii he con~iu~ive of the dcbt.-----~~
25. ! Neither the receipt by the Company of a portion of any money which sllaJ. from Partial payment not

lime to time be due from any Member tc tile Company in respect of his shares, to preclude
either by way of principal or interest, nor any indulgence granted by G1eCompany in forfeiture
respect of the payment of any ~c! .. money, shall preclude the Company from
thereafter proceeding to enforce a forfeiture of such siiares as hereinafter prcvided.

26. a.) The Board may, if it thinks fit, agree to and receive from any Member
willing to advance the same all or any part of the amounts of his shares
beyond the sums actually called up; and upon -the money so paid in advance, or
upon so much thereof, from time to time, and at any time thereafter as exceeds
the amount of the calls then made upon and due in respect of the shares on

Payment in
anticipation of calls
may carry interest

5



account of which such advances are made, the Board may payor allow
interest, at such rate (not exceeding without the sanction of the Company in
General Meeting 12 per cent per annum) as the Member paying the SUm in
advance and the Board agree upon.

b) No Member paying any such sum in advance shall be entitled to voting
rights in respect of the moneys so paid by him until the same would but for
such payment become presently payable and shall it confer a right to
dividend or participate in profits.

LIEN
27. 1.The Company shall have a first and paramount lien -

(a) on every share (not being a fully paid share), for all monies (whether
presently payable or not) called, or payable at a fixed time, in respect of
that share; and

(b) on all shares (not being fully paid shares) standing registered in the name
of a member, for all monies presently payable by him or his estate to the
Company: .

Provided that the Board may at any time declare any share to be wholly
or in part exempt from the provisions of this clause.

2. The Company's lien, if any, on a share shall extend to all dividends or
interest, as the case may be, payable and bonuses declared from time to
time in respect of such shares for any money owing to the Company.

3. Unless otherwise agreed by the Board, the registration of a transfer of shares
shall operate as a waiver of the Company's lien.

Company's
Lien on shares

Lien to extend to
dividends, etc,

Waiver of lien in
case of registration

28. The Company may sell, in such manner as the Board thinks fit, any shares 011 which
the Company has a lien:

Provided that no sale shall be made-
(a) unless a sum in respect of which the lien exists is presently

payable; Or ..
(b) until the expiration of fourteen days after a notice inwriting stating

and demanding payment of such part of the amount in respect of
which the lien exists as is presently payable, has been given to the
registered holder for the time being of the share or to the person
entitled thereto by reason of his death or insolvency or otherwise.

As to enforcing lien
by sale.

29. 1) To give effect to any such sale, the Board may authorise some person to
transfer the shares sold to the purchaser thereof.

2) The purchaser shall be registered as the holder of the shares comprised in any
such transfer.

3) The receipt of the Company for the consideration (if any) given for the share
on the sale thereof shall (subject, if necessary, to execution of an instrument
of transfer or a transfer by relevant system, as the case may be) constitute a
good title to the share and the purchaser shall be registered as the holder of
the share.

4) The purchaser shall not be bound to see to the application of the purchase
money, nor shall his title to the shares be affected by any irregularity or
invalidity in the proceedings with reference to the sale

Validity of sale

Purchaser to be
registered holder
Validity of
Company's receipt

Purchaser not
affected

30. (1) The proceeds of the sale shall be received by the Company and applied in Application of
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31.

payment of such part of the amount in respect of which the lien exists as is proceeds of sale
presently payable. '

(2) The residue, if any, shall, subject to a like lien for sums not presently payable as Payment of residual
existed upon the shares before tile sale, be paid to the person entitled to the money
shares at the date of the sale.

The provisions of these Articles relating to .lien shall mutatis mutandis apply
to any other securities of the Company, if any

Provisions as
to lien to apply
mutatis mutandis to
any other securities
etc.

FORFEITURE OF SHARES

32. If a Member fails to pay any call or instalment of a call on or before the day
appointed for the payment of the same or any such extension thereof as aforesaid,
the Board may at any time thereafter, during such time as the call or instalment
remains unpaid, give notice to him requiring him to pay the same together with any
interest that may have accrued and all expenses that may have been incurred by the
Company by reason of such non-payment.

If money payable on
share not paid,
notice to be given to
Member

Terms of Notice33. The notice shall name a day (not being less than fourteen days from the date of the
notice) and a place or places on and at which such call or instalment and such
interest thereon at such rate as the Directors shall determine from the day on
which such call or instalment ought to have been paid and expenses as aforesaid

,_. are to be paid. The notice shall also state that, in the event of the non-payment at
"".••. or before the time and at the place appointed, the shares in respect of which the
..';~.-call was made or installment is payable will be liable to be forfeited.

In default of
payment shares to
be forfeited

34. If the requirements of any such notice as aforesaid shall not be complied with,
every or any share in respect of which such notice has been given may at any time
thereafter before payment of all calls or instalments, interest and expenses due in
respect thereof, be forfeited by a resolution of the Board to that effect. Such
forfeiture shall include all dividends declared or any other moneys payable in
respect of the forfeited share and not actually paid before the forfeiture,

35. When any share shall have been so forfeited, notice of the forfeiture shall be Notice of forfeiture
given to the Member in whose name it stood immediately prior to the forfeiture to a
and an entry of the forfeiture, with the date thereof: shall forthwith be made in the Member
Register of Members, but no forfeiture shall be in any manner invalidated by
any omission or neglect to give such notice or to make any' such entry as
aforesaid.

36. Any share so forfeited shall be deemed to be the property of the Company and may Forfeited shares
be sold, re-allotted, or otherwise disposed of, either to the original holder thereof or to to be property of
any other person, upon such terms and in such manner as the Board shall think fit. the Company and

may be sold etc.

Member still liable
to pay money owing
at time of forfeiture

37. Any member whose shares have been forfeited shall, notwithstanding the
forfeiture, be liable to pay and shall forthwith pay to the Company on demand all
calls, instalments, interest and expenses owing upon or in respect of such shares at
the time of the forfeiture, together with interest thereon from the time of the and interest

-
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38, The forfeiture of a share shall involve extinction, fit the time of the forfeiture of all
interest in and all claims and demands. against the Company, in respect of the shares
and all other rights incidental to the share, except only such of those rights as by
these Aj:ticles are expressly savd_, _'_ , " ,

39, IA duly verified declaration i11writing that the declarant is a Director or.Secretary of
the Company and that a share ill the Company lias been duly forfeiicd ill
accordance with these Articles on a. u"te s~~~cd in tile declare '011 .sh ..;I- be
conclusive evidence of .the facts therein s.cted :is:against all pe~'3011Sc aiming to be

I entitled to til~s11.1:';:s·,(
- _ ... -!- ,. -_.....-- --.-----+-....:,,_----t----~---_l

'0 I TJ 1 "). ~ J' J' f'.' d'" Vali,':i:),of'.",:,:',e4 . 'PO'!'l any sa e,aHe~'1011eltul.:. or lor el'.01'~'L\g auen 111purporte e. ercise oi toe .,-
powers herein before given, the Board may appoint some person t execute on

I ius.rumcnt of transfer of tile shares sold and ca ...se the purchaser' name to be
, entered in tile Kegister in respect of the shares sold, and the purchase shall not be
i bound to see, to the regularity of the proceedings cr to the api?J:rativ~l of the
I i;',,;r:.;~;:'.:)emoney, and after his .i.j81::~ has ~::;r.:ilCj-,t:.~::,!d in .he Register ill req.cct of
such shares the validity of the sale S~H:.1inut be impeached by any person ,,;ij :::j~
remedy of any person aggrieved by the sale shall be in damages only and

-------1 ag~jnst the Companyexclusiveiy.

41. I UPOll any sale, re-allotme~t or ether disposal under the provisicas of the Can:-clli)tiu~ of share
preceding Articles, the certificate or certificates crigiually issued in respect of tile 0e":'il[,,;a~esIn respect

, I rclal ive s?al'es shall (unless t~{; same s~l~~lIc~: demand by the Company haw, of forfeited shares
been previously surrendered to It by C~C defaulting Member) stand cancelled and I
become null and void and of no effect, and the Directors shall be entitled to issue I
a new certificate or certificates in respect of tae said shares to the person or=:~::~;~~~~t~:;!::~~c~c befo..e:my si"", sc forhifed shall ;IllVO boc" sur'!,r.. 'i'o·;,;:~ to annul

I a]l?t!~~ or otherwise disposed of, annul the forfeiture thereof upon such conditions I [J~·~1:'!lti.lfC

as IltilL.".!) fit. .----------------------+---------------~
43. The provisions of these Articles relating to forfeiture of shares shall mutatis Provisions as to

mutandis appl y to any ether securities of tile Company. fcrfeiture of shares to
apply mutatis
mutandis to any other
securities, etc,

,t0rfeH~'e, until P::lYJ.r.Q!tat .such rate .as, the ~(All'~imay determine and the board
l~i;i.cnfcrccthe a 'ent thereof if it thinks fit. .

Effect of forfeiture

45. (1) The instrument of transfer of any share in the Company shall
executed by or on behalf of bOUI the transferor and transferee.

(2) The transferor shall be deemed to remain a holder of the share until
the name of the transferee is entered in the register ofmembers in
r ect thereof.

be duly Instrument of transfer
to be executed by
transferor and
transferee

Evidence ' of

44. The Company shall keep a 'Register of Transfers' and therein shall be fairly and Register of Transfers
distinctly entered particulars of every transfer or transmission of any share held in
material form,

TRANSFER OF SHARES



46. Board may l'¢fU$C to
register transfer ,. '"

49.·

Board may decline to
recognize instrument
of transfer

51. The instrument of transfer shall, after registration, remain in the custody of the Custody of transfer
Company. The Board may cause to be destroyed all transfer deeds lying with
the Company for a period of ten years or more.

The Board may, subject to the right of appeal conferred by the Act decline to
register-
(a) the transfer of a share, not being a fully paid share, to a person of whom

they do not approve; or
(b) _any transfer of shares on which the Company has a lien.

47.

48. On giving of previous notice of not less than seven days or such lesser period Transfer of shares
in accordance with the Act and Rules made thereunder, the registration of when suspended
transfers may be suspended at such times and for such periods as the Board may
from time to time determine:

Provided that such registrntion shall not be suspended for more than thirty days
at anyone time or for more than forty- five days in the aggregate in any year.___ --+..:::..:.....:::::.!......::..::=-=-=~_;;_;:_=-==:...:......;=::...::.::::_j£__=:....:...:.....=.::;~:;;;;;_;=.:.._==~=~=_::::.:.L...L.;;..;;::.;__+_ __ -- •.. _-:-:----:---1

Where, in the case of partly paid shares, an application for registration is made by Notice of application
the transferor, the Company shall give notice of the application to the transferee in when to be given
accordance with the provisions of the Act.

In case of shares held in physical form, the Board may decline to recognize
any instrument of transfer unless -
(a) the instrument of transfer is duly executed and is in the form as prescribed

in the Rules made under the Act;
(b) the instrument of transfer is accompanied by the certificate of the shares to

which it relates, and such other evidence as the Board may reasonably
require to show the right of the transferor to make the transfer; and

(c) the instrument of transfer is in respect of only one class of shares.

50. '. The Company shall incur no liability or responsibility whatsoever 10 Company not liable
.' consequence of its registering or giving effect to any transfer of shares made or for disregard of a

purporting to be made by any apparent legal owner thereof as shown or appearing notice prohibiting
in the Register of Members to the prejudice of persons having or claiming any registration of a
equitable right, title or interest to or in the said shares, notwithstanding that the transfer
Company may have had notice of such equitable right, title or interest or notice
prohibiting registration of such transfer, and may have entered such notice, or
referred thereto, in any book of the Company, and the Company shall not be
bound or required to regard or attend or give effect to any notice which may be
given to it of any equitable right, title or interest or be under any liability.
whatsoever for refusing or neglecting so to do, though it may have been entered or
referred to in some book of the Company; but the Company shall nevertheless be
at liberty to regard and attend to any such notice and give effect thereto if the
Board shall so think fit

52. a. The Company shall keep a Register of Members) and therein shall be Register of members
entered the particulars of every transfer or transmission of any share and all
other particulars of shares required by the Act to be entered in such
Register.

b. The Board may, after giving not less than seven days previous notice or Closure of Register
such lesser period as may be specified by Securities and Exchange Board of of Members

9
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I 53.

right

India by advertisement in some newspapers circulating in the district in
which the Registered Office of the Company is situated, close the Register
of Members for any period or periods not exceeding in the aggregate forty-
five days in each year but not exceeding thirty days at anyone time.

c. All instruments of transfer which shall be registered shall be retained by the
Company but any instrument of transfer which the Directors may decline to
register shall be returned to the person depositing the same.

When instruments of
transfer to be retained

The provisions of these Articles relating to transfer of shares shall mutatis
mutandis apply to any other securities of the Company.

Provisions as to
transfer of shares to
apply mutatis
mutandis to any other
Securities

TRANSMISSION OF SHARES

54. (1) On the death of a member, the survivor or survivors where the member Title to shares on
was a joint holder, and his nominee or nominees or legal representatives death of a member
where he was a sole holder, shall be the only persons recognized by the
Company as having any title to his interest in the shares.

(2) Nothing in clause (1) shall release the estate of a deceased joint holder
from any liability in respect of any share which had been jointly held by Estate of deceased
him with other persons. member liable

1) Any person becoming entitled to a share in consequence of the death or Transmission Clause
insolvency of a member may, upon such evidence being produced as may
from time to time properly be required by the Board and subject as
hereinafter provided, elect, either-

(a) to be registered himself as holder of the share; or
(b) to make such transfer of the share as the deceased or insolvent

member could have made.
2) The Board shall, in either case, have the same right to decline or Board's

suspend registration as it would have had; if the deceased or insolvent unaffected
member had transferred the share before his death or insolvency.

3) The Company shall be fully indemnified by such person from all Indemnity to the
liability, if any, by actions taken by the Board to give effect to such Company
registration or transfer.____ +-_ __:_::~:.::.=~~:__::.==:.:.:::.=___ _:_--~___:+:__:_:--- ..--.-...H ••••••••• H.

(1) If the person so becoming entitled shall elect to be registered as holder of Right to election of
the share himself, he shall deliver or send to the Company a notice in holder of share
writing signed by him stating that he so elects.

(2) If the person aforesaid shall elect to transfer the share, he shall testify Manner of testifying
his election by executing a transfer of the share. election

(3) All the limitations, restrictions and provisions of these regulations Limitations
relating to the right to transfer and the registration of transfers of applicable to notice
shares shall be applicable to any such notice or transfer as aforesaid as if
the death or insolvency of the member had not occurred and the notice or
transfer were a transfer signed by that member.

]
I
I

55.

56.

57. A person becoming entitled to a share by reason of the death or insolvency of Claimant to be
the holder shall be entitled to the same dividends and other advantages to entitled to same
which he would be entitled if he were the registered holder of the share, advantage

10
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except that he shall not, before being registered as a member in respect of the
share, be entitled in respect of it to exe-rcise any right conferred by
membership ill relation to meetings of the Company:

Provided that the Board may, ct any time. givenotice requiring any such person
.o elect either to be registered himself or to transferthe share, im.j if tl:c notice
i:.; rit cor••plied with within nicety ~ay~, lil~Board may t!l(.:;;;uftel' withhold

Ipayment of all dividends. bonuses or other monies payable in respect of the
---- .. 1' ~Q_an~,U!ltii the requirements ot tbe I1uUceh:~-JebC(.i1 complid ',vito.

53. ~he'provj5;.ons of.th~se Articles reh:~e to tr(l~.$mi£sion by operation cf lawIshali mutatis mutandis apply to an y other securities of the Company. '. . .

I' . .. . . .

Frovisions as to
transmission to apply
mutatis mutandis to
arty' ether Securities
c::.

as

of

JOINT HOLDERS·----.-------.~----------------~~~~~~~~~---------------------+~~~~------~
59. Where two or mere persons are registered as' joint holders (not more than Joint-holders

three) of any share, they shall be deemed (so far 'as tile Coop any i.) concerned)
to hold the same as joint tenaats with benefits of survivorship, subject to the
following and other provisions contained in ~hese Articles:

(a) The joint-holders of any share shall be liable severally as well as jointly Liability
Jointhclders

for and in respect of all calls or inst ..ilments and other' payments which
(':;gl\t t~ oe iuade inrespect of such saare. ! D- . ,

'b) - th .' , f f h i h I' 'I.' ea.c (,l. one or more"I ~ 0.:\ e ceaei o any one or more 0 &UC JOH1t-.o ueic, we Sl:rVIV01'or ' , " ld
, . '. J0i" -110 Gers·

-'I =v= sh~! be .he only p-:I!,on 0; f~ISOl!:;.:ecognized.!Jy th~ COl:l_F<"ll.Yas _..
. having any title to the share Out the Directo t.5 may require SUC.ll evidence of

death as they may deem fit, and nothing herein contained shail be taken to
release the estate of (I deceased joint-holder from any liability on S;l~,':;S 'l:c1d I

. by him jointly with any oilier Ft!rsoi.l. . . .! R ' iot
(c) Anyone of such joint holders may g.ve effectual receipts of <illydividends, I ere:-:-. t of one

, .1.. " • ~,. h h I su .C1c!cninterests or otncr moneys payacie !.!~ respect 01 sue s arc. D ,.. ;.. f
Cd)Only the person whose name stands ;11'stin the register of members 3S one I e~~~".~ °d

of the joint-holders of any share shall he entitled to the delivery of c~r~l .ca fe t' ant
if if 1 . h ' ., (hi '1 giving 0 no ICC 0certi icate, 1 any, re atmg to sue snare or to receive notice w c 1 term fi -st d 1 ld

shall be deemed to include ali relevant documents) and any notice served 1... name 10 er

on or sent to such person shall be deemed service on all the joint-holders. Vote of joint holders
(e) (i) Anyone of two or more joint-holders may vote at any meeting either

personally or by attorney or by proxy in respect of such shares as if he were
solely entitled thereto and if more than ouc of such jointholders be present
at any meeting personally or by proxy or by attorney then that one cf such
persons so present whose name stands first 0: higher (as the case may be)
on the register ill respect of such shares shall alene be entitled to vole in
respect thereof
(ii) Several executors or administrators of a deceased member in wiiose
(deceased member) sole name any share stands, shall for the PUl'f~sc of
Uris clause be deemed joint-holders.

(f) The provisions of these Articles relating to joint holders of shares shall

Executors
administrators
joint holders
Provisions as to joint

or
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I mutatis mutandis apply to any other securities of the Company registered in holders as to shares
joint names. to apply to any other

securities

CAPITALISATION OF PROFITS
60. Capitalisation

I

(1)

(3)

The Company in general meeting may, upon the recommendation of the
Board, resolve-
a) that it is desirable to capitalise any part of the amount for the time

being standing to the credit of any of the Company's reserve
accounts, or to the credit of the profit and loss account, or otherwise
available for distribution; and

b) that such sum be accordingly set free for distribution ill the
manner specified in clause (2) below amongst the members who
would have been entitled thereto, if distributed by way of dividend
and in the same proportions.

The sum aforesaid shall not be paid in cash but shall be applied, subject to
the provision contained in clause (3) below, either in or towards:
(a) paying up any amounts for the time being unpaid on any shares

held by such members respectively;
(b) paying up in full, unissued shares or other securities of the Company

to be allotted and distributed, credited as fully paid-up, to and
amongst suc~lmembers in the proportions aforesaid;

(c) partly in the way specified in sub-clause (a) and partly in that
specified in b-clause (b)

A securities premium account and a capital redemption reserve account
or any other penhissible reserve account may, for the purposes of this
Article, be appli,d in the paying up of unissued shares to be issued to
members of the Company as fully paid bonus shares;
The Board shall &i;e effect to the resolution passed by the Company in

ursuance of this ~icle;

Sum how applied(2)

(4)

61. Powers of the Board
for capitalization

1) Whenever such~a resolution. as aforesaid shall have been passed, the
Board shall - .
(a) make all ap I ropriations and applications of the amounts resolved to

be capitalised thereby, and all allotments and issues of fully paid
shares or other securities, if any; and

(b) generally dolan acts and things required to give effect thereto
2) The Board shall have power -

(a) to make I such provisions, by the issue of fractional
certificates/coupons or by payment in cash or otherwise as it
thinks fit, for the case of shares or other securities becoming
distributabl~ in fractions; and

(b) to authoris9 any person to enter, on behalf of all the members
entitled thereto, into an agreement with the Company providing for
the allotment to them respectively, credited as fully paid-up, of
any further ~hares or other securities to which they may be entitled
upon such Icapitalisation, or as the case require, for the

a ent b tile Com an on their behalf, b lication thereto

Board's power to
issue fractional
certificate/coupon
etc.

12



SET OFF OF MONEY DUE TO SHAREHOLDERS---.---+~------~~~~~~~~~--~~~~--~~~~~------~~--~--~------~
Any money due from the Company to a shareholder may, without the consent of Set-off of moneys
such shareholder, be pplied by the Company in or towards payment of any due to shareholders
money due from him either alone or jointly with any other person, to the
person, to the Compan I{ in respect of calls.

Notwithstanding anyt ling contained in these Articles but subject to all Buy-back of shares
applicable provisions pf the Act or any other law for the time being in force,
the Company may pill chase its own shares or other specified securities.

62.

DEMtTERIALISATION OF SECURITIES

.', ~

"
"

of their respective proportions of profits resolved to be capitalised,

of the ~ount or any part of the amounts remaining unpaid on
their existing shares.

3) Any agreement made under such authority shall be effective and binding
on such members.

BUY-BACK OF SHARES

63.

Agreement binding
on members

64. a) Definitions
For the purpose oftbis Article:
'Beneficial Owner' means a person or persons whose name is recorded as such

with a depository; ~
'SEBI' means the Sec rities and Excbange Board of India;
'Depository' means a ompany formed and registered under the Companies Act,

o , 1956 or Companies Act, 2013 or any other law and which has been granted a
" certificate of registrafion to act as a depository under the Securities and

,"', Exchange Board of In1ia Act, 1992, and
'Security' means such security as may be specified by SEBI from time to time.
b) Dematerialisation of securities
Notwithstanding anyt~ing contained in these Articles, the Company shall be
entitled to dematerialise or rematerialise its securities and to offer securities in a
dematerialised form pursuant to the Depositories Act, 1996 and the rules framed
thereunder, if any.
c) Options for investors
Every person subscribing to securities offered by the Company shall have the
option to receive security certificates or to hold the securities with a depository.
Such a person, who is the beneficial owner of the securities, can at any time opt
out of a depository, if ~ermitted by law, in respect of any security in the manner
provided by the Depositories Act and the Company shall, in the manner and
within the time prescribed, issue to the beneficial owner the required certificates
of securities. If a penson opts to hold his security with a depository, the
Company shall intimate such depository the details of allotment of the security,
and on receipt of the information, the depository shall enter in its record the
name of the allottee as the beneficial owner of the security.
d) Securities in depositories to be in fungible form
All securities held by a depository shall be dematerialised and be in fungible
form. Nothing contained in Sections 89 of the Act shall apply to a depository in
respect of the securities held by it on behalf of the beneficial owners.

Definitions :

Dematerialisa
tion of
securities

Options for
investors

Fungible
securities
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e) Rights of depositories and beneficial owners:
(i) Notwithstanding anything to the contrary contained in the Act 01' these
Articles, a depository shall be deemed to be the registered owner for the
purposes of effecting transfer of ownership of security on behalf of the
beneficial owner.
(ii) Save as otherwise provided in (a) above, the depository, as the registered
owner of the securities, shall not have any voting rights 01' any other rights in
respect of the securities held by it.
(iii) Every person holding securities of the Company and whose name is

entered as the beneficial owner in the records of the depository shall be deemed
to be a member of the Company. The beneficial owner of the securities shall be
entitled to all the rights and benefits and be subject to all the liabilities in respect
of his securities which are held by a depository.
f) Service of documents
Notwithstanding anything in the Act or these Articles to the contrary, where
securities are held in a 8epository, the records of the beneficial ownership may
be served by such depo~itory on the Company by means of electronic mode or
by delivery of floppies or discs.
g) Transfer of securities
Nothing contained in Section 56 of the Act or these Articles shall apply to
transfer of securities effected by a transferor and transferee both of whom are
entered as beneficial owners in the records of a depository.
h) Allotment of securitirs dealt with in a depository
Notwithstanding anything in the Act or these Articles, where securities are dealt
with in a depository, he Company shall intimate the details thereof to the
depository immediately on allotment of such securities.
i) Distinctive numbers of securities held in a depository
Nothing contained in the Act or these Articles regarding the necessity of having
distinctive numbers of securities issued by the Company shall apply to securities
held in a depository.

j) Register and Index of Beneficial owners
The Register and Index of Beneficial Owners, maintained by a depository under
the Depositories Act, ~996, shall be deemed to be the Register and Index of
Members and Security Holders for the purposes of these Articles.
k) Company to recognise the rights of registered holders as also the beneficial
owners in the records of the depository.
Save as herein otherwise provided, the Company shall be entitled to treat the
person whose name appears on the Register of Members as the holder of any
share, as also the beneficial owner of the shares in records of the depository as
the' absolute owner thereof as regards receipt of dividends or bonus or services
of notices and all or -Iany other matters connected with the Company, and
accordingly, the Comp~ny shall not, except as ordered by a Court of competent
jurisdiction or as by law required, be bound to recognise any benami trust or
equity or equitable, contingent or other claim to or interest in such share on the
part of any other person, whether or not it shall have express or impJied notice

I
:1
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Rights of
depositories
and
beneficial
owners

Service of
documents

Transfer of
securities

Allotment of
securities
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a depository
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owners
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GENERAL MEETING

65. All general meetings other than annual general meeting shall be called Extraordinary
extraordinary general meeting. general meeting

66. The Board may, whenever it thinks fit, call an extraordinary general meeting. Powers of Board to
call extraordinary
genera] meeting

PROCEEDINGS AT GENERAL MEETING

67. (1) No business shall be transacted at any general meeting unless a quorum Presence of Quorum
of members is present at the time when the meeting proceeds to
business.

(2) No business shall be discussed or transacted at any general meeting Business confined to
except election of Chairperson whilst the chair is vacant. election of

Chairperson whilst

(3) The quorum for a general meeting shall be as provided in the Act.
chair vacant
Quorum for general
meeting

68. The Chairperson o~ the Company shall preside as Chairperson at Chairperson of the

every general meeting of the Company. meetings

69. If there is no such Chairperson, or if he is not present within fifteen minutes Directors to elect a

after the time appointed for holding the meeting, or is unwilling to act as Chairperson
,

chairperson of the meeting, the directors present shall elect one of their-.'
", . members to be Chairperson of the meeting.......; ....~

70. If at any meeting no director is willing to act as Chairperson or if no director is Members to elect a

present within fifteen minutes after the time appointed for holding the meeting, Chairperson

the members present shall, by poll or electronically, choose one of their
members to be Chairperson of the meeting.

71. On any business at any general meeting, in case of an equality of votes, Casting vote of
whether on a show of hands or electronically or on a poll, the Chairperson shall Chairperson at

have a second or casting vote. general meeting

72. (1) The Company shall cause minutes of the proceedings of every general Minutes of
meeting of any class of members or creditors and every resolution passed proceedings of
by postal ballot to be prepared and signed in such manner as may be meetings and
prescribed by the Act and Rules and kept by making within thirty days of resolutions passed by
the conclusion of every such meeting concerned or passing of resolution postal ballot
by postal ballot entries thereof in books kept for that purpose with their
pages consecutively numbered.

(2) There shall not be included in the minutes any matter which, in the Certain matters not to
opinion of the Chairperson of the meeting - be included in
(a) is, or could reasonably be regarded, as defamatory of any person; or Minutes
(b) is irrelevant or immaterial to the proceedings; or
(c) is detrimental to the interests of the Company.

(3) The Chairperson shall exercise an absolute discretion in regard to the Discretion of
inclusion or non-inclusion of any matter in the minutes on the grounds chairperson in



73.

specified in the aforesaid clause.
(4) The minutes of the meeting kept in accordance with the provisions of the

Act shall be evidence of the proceedings recorded therein.
(1) The books containing the minutes of the proceedings of any general

meeting of the Company or a resolution passed by postal ballot shall:

(a) be kept at the registered office of the Company; and
(b) be open to inspection of any member without charge, during

office hours. on all working days other than Saturdays
(2) Any member shall be entitled to be furnished, within the time

prescribed by the Act, after he has made a request in writing in that
behalf to the Company and on payment of such fees as may be fixed by
the Board, with a copy of any minutes referred to in clause (1) above,
Provided that a member who has made a request for provision of a soft
copy of the minutes of any previous general meeting held during the
period immediately preceding three financial years, shall be entitled to
be furnished with the same free of cost.

relation to Minutes -,
Minutes to be
evidence

Members may obtain
copy of minutes

Inspection of minute
books of general
meeting

74.

75.

The Board, and also any person(s) authorised by it, may take any action before
the commencement of any general meeting, or any meeting of a class of
members in the Company, which they may think fit to ensure the security of the
meeting, the safety of people attending the meeting, and the future orderly
conduct of the meeting. Any decision made in good faith under this Article
shall be final and right to attend and participate in the meeting concerned shall
be subject to such decision.

ADJOURNMENT OF MEETING
(1) The Chairperson may, suo motu, adjourn the meeting from time to time

and from place to place.
(2) No business shall be transacted at any adjourned meeting other than

the business left unfinished at the meeting from which the adjournment
took place.

(3) When a meeting is adjourned for thirty days or more, notice of the
adjourned meeting shall be given as in the case of an original meeting.

(4) Save as aforesaid, and save as provided in the Act, it shall not be
necessary to give any notice of an adjournment or of the business to be
transacted at an adjourned meeting.

Powers to arrange
security at meetings

Chairperson may
adjourn the meeting
Business at adjourned
meeting

Notice of adjourned
meeting

Notice of adjourned
meeting not required

76.

VOTING RIGHTS
Subject to any rights or restrictions for the time being attached to any class
or classes of shares -
(a) on a show of hands, every member present in person shall have one vote;

and
(b) on a poll, the voting rights of members shall be in proportion to his share

in the paid-up equity share capital of the company.

Entitlement to vote
on show of hands
and on poll

77.

78.

A member may exercise his vote at a meeting by electronic means in
accordance with the Act and shall vote only once.
(1) In the c~~II.To1n1 ,Otd~~s, the vote of the senior who tenders a vote,

Voting through
electronic means

Vote of joint-holders
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whether in person or by proxy, shall be accepted to the exclusion of the ,

votes of the other joint holders.
(2) For this purpose, seniority shall be determined by the order in which the Seniority of.names

names stand in the register 'ofmembers.
' ..

• .~ i"

79. A member of unsound mind, or in respect of whom an order has been made by How members non. .:.. ~.

any court having jurisdiction in lunacy, may vote, whether on a show of hands compos mentis and
or on a poll, by his committee or other legal guardian, and any such committee minor may vote
or guardian may, on a poll, vote by proxy. If any member be a minor, the vote
in respect ,of his share or shares shall be by his guardian or anyone of his
guardians.

80. Subject to the provisions of the Act and other provisions of these Articles, any Votes in respect of
person entitled under the Transmission Clause to any shares may vote at any shares of deceased or
general meeting in respect thereof as if he was the registered holder of such insolvent members,
shares, provided that at least 48 (forty eight) hours before the time of holding etc.
the meeting or adjourned meeting, as the case may be, at which he proposes to
vote, he shall duly satisfy the Board of his right to such shares unless the
Board shall have previously admitted his right to vote at such meeting in respect
thereof.

81. Any business other than that upon which a poll has been demanded may be Business may
proceeded with, pending the taking of the poll. proceed pending poll

82. No member shall be entitled to vote at any general meeting unless all calls or Restriction on voting
other sums presently payable by him in respect of shares. in the Company have rights., ' been paid or in regard to which the Company has exercised any right of lien.

83.
.. A member is not prohibited from exercising his voting on the ground that he Restriction on

..- has not held bis share or other interest in the Company for any specified period exercise of voting
preceding the date on which the vote is taken, or on any other ground not being rights in other cases
a ground set out in the preceding Article. to be void

84. Any member whose name is entered in the register of members of the Equal rights of
Company shall enjoy the same rights and be subject to the same liabilities as members
all other members of the same class.

PROXY

85. (1) Any member entitled to attend and vote at a general meeting may do so Member may vote in
either personally or through his constituted attorney or through another person or otherwise
person as a proxy on his behalf, for that meeting.

(2) The instrument appointing a proxy and the power-of- attorney or Proxies when to be
other authority, if any, under which it is signed or a notarised copy of deposited
that power or authority, shall be deposited at the registered office
of the Company not less than 48 hours before the time for holding the
meeting or adjourned meeting at which the person named in the
instrument proposes to vote, and in default the instrument of proxy shall
not be treated as valid.

86. An instrument appointing a proxy shall be in the form as prescribed in the Form of proxy
Rules.

87. A vote given in accordance with the terms of an instrument of proxy shall be Proxy to be valid
valid, notwithstanding the previous death or insanity of the principal or the notwithstanding
revocation of the proxy or of the authority under which the proxy was executed, death of the principal

17
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Provided that no intimation ill writing of SUC~\ death, insanity, rove stioi; or
transfer shall- have beea recci ved by the Company at its office b i~X0 the

____ ,_ ::9~.~ii.e:lcement o~·L1C meet~ or ad~un:ej n.~~.~;Dg at wl~ch ~:lepm, \ i:; ...,:;;~~i.---------~--__l
_____ L__ ~__' .',B9A~~])Q~p.rRECi'O~S -~~r-----------I

88. I Unless otherwise determined -by a' General Meeting, the number of D1r..:~tors, Nun.t.er cf Directors

___ i sh&l1 no!.b~!ess1.iwn 3 (Three) and ,·ot-!~?:'I;i't~:!~~5(Fi.fteen.). __

89. 1 Subject to the 'provisions of Act, ,.' I Y.~.;~':"::;:ll:; L'j~·~:;.~or
a. The Board of Directors ~n,,~,'-rp.l?0h~t 01' re-appoint one or .aoro of. their

body, not exceeding. two, to be the Managing Director or Managing
Directors of the Company for such period not exceeding ~ years as it
may deem fit, subject ~o such approval of' the Central Government as
may be necessary in that behalf

b. The remuneration payable to a Managing Director shall be determined
by the Board of Directors subject toothe sanction of the, Company 111

General Meeting and of the Central Government, if required.
c. If at any time there are more than oneManaging Director, each of the

said Managing Directors may exercise individually allthe powers ::1'11
perf 01'111 ell the duties that a single Managing Director may be
empowered to exercise or required to j.erform under the Compznicc Act
or by these presents or by any Resolution of the Boar« of Director') and
subject also to such r~~~.:-ic~h:l::;'c.r cGl>~;tiom: as tile Board may from
time to time impose. The Managing J)ir~::~or shall not be liable to rc.ire

or the transfer of the shares in respect of which the proxy is given:

by lOt~tIOI1.,
d. The Board cf Directors l;j".;· <.:t any tinie end from time to time (;e':::i;;llate

any Managing Director .&3 Deputy Mn~ ..giug D,ii."ect0rO~·Joint M~.t~;:g:::gI'

Director or by such ether dcsigaction as ~~deems fit, .
e. Subject to the supervision, control and directions' of tiic Board of I

Directors, the Managing Director/Managing Directors shall have the
management of the whole of the business of the Company and of all its
affairs and shall exercise all powers and: perform all duties end in
relation to the management of ~he affairs, except such powers and such
duties as are required by Law or by these presents to be exercised or
done by the Company in General Meeting or by the Doard u;:].(;also
subject to such conditions and restrictions imposed by the Act or by I
these presents or bv the Board of Directors. i

I

I
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90. 1. Subject to the provisions ofthe Act, the Board may appoint one or more I Wholetime Director
of its body, CiS Whole-time Director or Wholetimc Directors on such I
designation and 011 such tenus and conditions as it may deem fit. The,
Whole-time Director-s S;l:i~:' perform SHC:l duties and exercise such
powers :13 tile Board may from time to time determine which shall
exercise all such powers and perform ail such duties subject to the
control, supervision and directions of the Board and subject thereto the
supervision and directions of the Managing Director, The remuneration
payable to the Whole-time Directors shall be determined by the



I
Company in General Meeting, subject to the approval of the Central
Government, if any, required in that behalf.

2. A Whole-time Director shall (subject to the provisions of any contract
between him and the Company) be subject to the same provisions as to
resignation and removal as the other Directors, and he shall, ipso facto
and immediately, cease to be Whole-time Director, if he ceases to hold
the Office of Director from any cause except where he retires by rotation
in accordance with the Articles at an Annual General Meeting and is re-
elected as a Director at that Meeting.

91. All cheques, promissory notes, drafts, hundis, bills of exchange and other Execution of
negotiable instruments, and all receipts for monies paid to the Company, shall Negotiable
be signed, drawn, accepted, endorsed, or otherwise executed, as the case may instruments
be, by such person and in such manner as the Board shall from time to time by
resolution determine.

92. Any person, whether a member of the Company or not, may be appointed as a Qualifications of
Director. No qualification by way of holding shares in the capital of the Directors
Company shall be required of any Director.

93. a. The remuneration of the directors shall, in so far as it consists of a monthly Director's
payment, be deemed to accrue from time day-to-day. remuneration

b. The remuneration payable to the directors, including any managing or
whole-time director or manager, if any, shall be determined in accordance
with and subject to the provisions of the Act.

l, ••• c. Until otherwise determined by the Company in General Meeting, each
" Director shall be entitled to receive and be paid out of the funds of the
'~ Company a fee for each meeting of the Board of Directors or any committee

thereof, attended by him as may be fixed by the Board of Directors from
time to time subject to the provisions of the Act and the Rules made
thereunder. For the purpose of any resolution in this regard, none of the
Directors shall be deemed to be interested in the subject matter of the
resolution. The Directors shall also be entitled to be paid their reasonable
travelling and hotel and other expenses incurred in consequence of their
attendance at meetings of the Board or of any committee of the Board or
otherwise in the execution of their duties as Directors either in India or
elsewhere. The Managing! Whole-time Director of the Company, who is a
full time employee will not be paid any fee for attending Board Meetings.

94. The Directors may from time to time elect from among their number a Chairman of the
Chairman of the Board and determine the periods for which he is to hold office. Board
If at any meeting of the Board the Chairman is Dot present 'within fifteen
minutes after the time appointed for holding the same, the Directors present
may choose one of their number to be Chairman of the meeting.

95. If the office of any Director becomes vacant before the expiry of the period of Casual vacancy
his Directorship in normal course, the resulting casual vacancy may be filled by
the Board at a Meeting of the Board subject to Section 161 of the Act. Any
person so appointed shall hold office only upto the date which the Director in
whose place he is appointed would have held office if the vacancy had Dot
occurred as aforesaid.
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96. (a) The Board may appoint an Alternate Director to act tor a Director
hereinafter called in this clause "the Original Director" during his absence
for a period of not less than 3 months from India.

(b) An Alternate Director appointed as aforesaid shall vacate office if and
when the Original Director returns to India.

(c) The Directors may appoint such number of Independent Directors as are
required under the provisions of the Act or the Listing Agreement,
whichever is higher, from time to time.

(d) The Directors shall appoint atleast one woman director as per the
requirements of the Act

(e) Subject to the provisions of the Act,-
(i) A chief executive officer, manager, company secretary or chief

financial officer may be appointed by the Board for such term, at such
remuneration and upon such conditions as it may thinks fit; and any
chief executive officer, manager, company secretary or chief financial
officer so appointed may be removed by means of a resolution of the
Board; The Board may appoint one or more CEO for its multiple
businesses.

(ii) A director may be appointed as chief executive officer, manager,
company secretary or chief financial officer.

Alternate Director

Independent
Directors

Woman Director

Chief Executive
Officer, etc.,

97. The Directors may, from time to time, appoint a person as an Additional
Director provided that the number of Directors and Additional Directors
together shall not exceed the maximum number of Directors fixed by the
Articles. Any person so appointed as an Additional Director shall hold office
upto the date of the next Annual General Meeting of the Company.

Additional Directors

98. The proportion of directors to retire by rotation shall be as per the provisions of
the Act.

Proportion of
retirement by rotation

99.

100.

101.

102.

Except as otherwise provided by these Articles and subject to the provisions of
the Act, all the Directors of the Company shall have in all matters equal rights
and privileges, and be subject to equal obligations and duties in respect of the
affairs of the Company.
Notwithstanding anything contained in these presents, any Director contracting
with the Company shall comply with the applicable provisions of the Act.

Subject to the limitations prescribed in the Companies Act, 2013, the Directors
shall be entitled to contract with the Company and no Director shall be
disgualified by having contracted with the Company as aforesaid.
Subject to provisions of the Act, the Company, by Ordinary Resolution, may at
any time remove any Director except Government Directors before the expiry
of his period of office, and may by Ordinary Resolution appoint another person
in his place. The person so appointed shall hold office until the date upto which
his predecessor would have held office if he had not been removed as
aforementioned. A Director so removed from office shall not be re-appointed
as a Director by the Board of Directors. Special Notice shall be required of any
resolution to remove a Director under this Article, or to appoint somebody
instead of the Director at the meeting at which he is removed.

20
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-,~::- ---:lLi.:5eCt to the provisions ofthC! Act, ~ pe;;D not'beir.g a retiring Direct01'-slmH
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be eligible for appointment to theoffice of a Director at any general mec.ing it
he crsome o\.i.l~i.'member inteading to propose him as a Director has ;:~tlese:
than fourteen d~,j;s before the meeting, iefl at the office ,o~ the Company a

I 'notice in writing under his hand signifying his candidature for tho office of the
Director; or the intention of such member to propose him as a (,:tiJ.didat~l~);'that
office, '3S the 'case may 'be "along with a deposit of such .sum as uiay be
prescribed by the Act or the Central Government from time to time wlricu shall
be refunded to such person or as the C:1::'': may be, to such member, ifG.e person
succeeds in getting elected as a Director or gcta more than 25% of tol::t: valid
votes cast either on show of hande or eleetronicaly or on poll on such
resolution" ,

Rights of p~rsoil_s
G:':"'::, 1..1<111 retiring
IJ.i..!.'cctorsto stand for
C~cctor~bips

104, The Company shall keep at its Registered Office a register containing tile
addresses and occupation. and the other particulars as required by the Act of its

, Direc!2t_s and ~ey Managerial Pe~'sonncl.
-~--- PROECEDINGS OF THE BOA1ID
----- -,1-----,--- ---,,..---------1 -,-'-:---.--:---1
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otherwise regulate itS meetings, as it thinks fit, provided that a meeting of
the B03rd shall be held at least cnc: in every one hundred and tWC1;~:; ~a%;
and at least Lour such meetings sh; i1 be iwJ'i 'if. every yea:',
'l he participation of directors -Laa Jr.~c'~iaL;'of the Board iaay be E.~:';'~::in
IJ~r30n or through video ccafereuciug 0;: audio visual 1,}e~~13 or
.",~ •. ".,C'"" .. ,_:. _, as Ill'l··' I.~ i)"CC::' ':ueo' bv u:,c ~.tuies Cl' '·1crnu"'t-.-1 ' 1,1..._
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law,
The quorum for a Board Meeting siiail lie as provided under the.Act, '
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A Director/ Chairperson of the company may i.t any time request the Secretary Lirector may
to convene a meeting of the Directors ~d seven days notice of meeting of summon meeting
directors shall be given to every director and ouch notice shall be sent by hand
delivery or by post cr by electronic means provided that a meeting of the Board
may be called at shorter notice to transact urgent business subject to the
ccnditioi1 that atleast one indcpeGGellt director shall be present at tbe m~eti::g, _+__ --:" ~
a, Save aa otherwise expressly provided in the Act, a meeting of the Directors I q~~:::ti.OIlat the Board

for the time being at wbich a quorum is present shall be competent to J.1ccting how decided
exercise all or my ofthc authorities, powers and discretions by or under the
regulations of the Company for the time b~inb vested ill 0:; exercisable by
the Directors generally amd all Q'lC3t:O:.s arising ~~ <my meeting or the
Board shall be decided by a majority of the Board,

b. In case of an equality of votes, the Chairman shall have It second or casting
vote,--------+~-----~~--~------------.--~~--~~----------~~--=---~+=~--~--~~--~

The continuing Directors may act Ii.Gtwiths1.<.:!liling any vacancy ~n the Be:rrd, Right of continuing
but if and ss long as their numoer if rc.:iuced below tile quorum fixed by tile Di.;:c~tors when there
Act, the eont:in.uing Directors or Director may actJor the pwpose of incrcasing is no qU01UIn
tlle number of Directors to tilat fixed by the quorum, or of sum..-noning a
General Meeting of the Company and for no other purpose.

107.

108.

109, (1) The Chairperson of the Company shall be the Cbairperson at meetings of Who to preside at



the Board. In his absence, the Board may elect a Chairperson of its
meetings and determine the period for which he is to hold office.

(2) If no such Chairperson is elected, or if at any meeting the Chairperson is
not present within fifteen minutes after the time appointed for holding the
meeting, the directors present may choose one of their member to be
Chairperson of the meeting.

meetings of the
Board
Directors to elect a
Chairperson

110. a The Board may, from time to time, and at.any time and in compliance with
provisions of the act and listing agreement constitute one or more
Committees of the Board consisting of such member or members of its
body, as the Board may think fit.

b. Subject to the provisions of the Act, the Board may delegate from time to
time and at any time to any Committee so appointed all or any of the
powers, authorities and discretions for the time being vested in the Board
and such delegation may be made on such terms and subject to such
conditions as the Board may think fit and subject to provisions of the act
and listing agreement.

c. The Board may from, time to time, revoke, add to or vary any powers,
authorities and discretions so delegated subject to provisions of the act and
listing agreement.

Power to appoint
Committees

Delegation of powers

Variation of Powers

a. The meeting and proceedings of any such Committee consisting of two or
more members shall be governed by the provisions herein contained for
regulating the meetings and proceedings of the Directors so far as the same
are applicable thereto, and not superseded by any regulations made by the
Directors under the last proceeding Article.

b. The participation of directors in a meeting of the Committee may be either in Participation at
person or through video conferencing or audio visual means or Committee meetings
teleconferencing, as may be prescribed by the Rules or permitted under
law.-------~----~--~------~--~~~----.~~----~--~--~~~~~~~--~~----~

a. A Committee may elect a Chairperson of its meetings unless the Board Election of Chairman
while constituting a Committee has appointed a Chairperson of such of the Committee
Committee.

b. If no such Chairperson is elected or if at any meeting the Chairperson is not
present within 15 minutes after the time appointed for holding the meeting
the members present may choose one of their members to be Chairperson
of the meeting of the Committee.

Ill.

112.

113.

114.

a A Committee may meet and adjourn as it thinks proper.
b. Questions arising at any meeting of a Committee shall be determined by the

sole member of the Committee or by a majority of votes of the rnembers
present as the case may be and in case of an equality of votes, the Chairman
shall have a second or casting vote.

All acts done by any meeting of the Board or a Committee thereof, or by any
person acting as a Director shall, not withstanding that it may be afterwards
discovered that there was some defect in the appointment of anyone or more of
such Directors or any person acting as aforesaid, or that any of them was
disqualified, be as valid as if every such Director and such person had been
duly appointed and was qualified to be a Director.

Proceedings of
Committee

Who to preside at
meetings of the
Committee

Committee to meet
Questions how
determined

Acts done by Board
or Committee valid,
not- withstanding
defective
appointment, etc.
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115. Save as otherwise expressly provided in the Act, A resolution in writing, signed, Resolution by
whether manually or by secure electronic mode, by a majority of the circulation
members of the Board or of a Committee thereof, for the time being entitled
to receive 4floticeof a meeting of the Board or Committee, shall be valid and
effective as if it had been passed at a meeting of the Board or Committee, duly
convened and held.

PO\VERS OF BOARD

116. . The management of the business of the Company shall be vested in the Board General powers of
and the Board may exercise all such powers, and do all such acts and things, as the Company vested
the Company is by the memorandum of association or otherwise authorized to in Board
exercise and do, and, not hereby or by the statue or otherwise directed or
required to be exercised or done by the Company in general meeting but
subject nevertheless to the provisions of the Act and other laws and of the
memorandum of association and these Articles and to any regulations, not
being inconsistent with the memorandum of association and these Articles or
the Act, from time to time made by the Company in general meeting provided
that no such regulation shall invalidate any prior act of the Board which would
have been valid if such regulation had not been made.

117. The Board may authorise any such delegate or attorney as aforesaid to sub- Power to authorise
delegate all or any of the powers and authorities for the time being vested in sub delegation
them.

118. .In furtherance of and without prejudice to the general powers conferred by the Special power of
<.Articles and other powers conferred by these Articles, and subject to the Directors
·1>fovisions of the Act, that may become applicable, it is hereby expressly
.declared that it shall be lawful for the Directors to carry out all or any of the
objects set forth in the Memorandum of Association.

119. The Board may, from time to time, raise any money or any moneys or sums of Power to borrow
money for the purpose of the Company; provided that the moneys to be
borrowed together with the moneys already borrowed by the Company (apart
from temporary loans obtained from the Company's bankers in the ordinary
course of business) shall not, without the sanction of the Company at a General
Meeting, exceed the aggregate of the paid-up capital of the Company and its
free reserves, that is to say, reserves not set-apart for any specific purpose and
in particular but subject to the provisions of the Act, the Board may, from time
to time, at its discretion raise or borrow or secure the payment of any such sum
or sums of money for the purpose of the Company, by the issue of any
securities in respect of any such money so borrowed, raised or received,
mortgage, pledge or charge, the whole or any part of the property, assets, or
revenue of the Company, present or future, including its uncalled capital by
special assignment or otherwise or transfer or convey the same absolutely or
entrust and give the lenders powers of sale and other powers as may be
expedient and purchase, redeem or payoff any such security.
Provided that every resolution passed by the Company in General Meeting in
relation to the exercise of the power to borrow as stated above shall specify the
total amount upto which moneys may be borrowed by the Board of Directors,
provided that subject to the provisions of clause next above, the Board may,
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from time to time, at its discretion, raise or borrow or secure the repayment of
any sum or sums of inoney for the-purpose of the Company as such time and in
such maimer and upon such terms and conditions in all respects as it thinks fit
<:'''lct in particular, by 'promi5sory" notes or by opening current ClCCOUn'ts,or by
receiving deposits and advances, withorwithout security or by the issue of fin)'

other securities of the Company charged' upon ailor any part of the property of
. UlC Company (both present and 1u~ur~)'including its uncalled capital for' the

time being or by mortgaging or charging or pledging any land, uUl~dingC1' ether
property and security of the Company orby such other means as them may
S\:"ln c·· .. ".' i{;:t . . ~, .____ ... -~ ... Io.,~ ....",",. '.c:..';,;_' ._----1---' RlfQg_~r_ER~;----------1--------1

)20. '{jl? Corr;;:l:",::' chall . keep ahd' i'.1aJnta;;i' at its registered o.J'b~ ..l1 S(';:'~:.itvryregisters
statctor. resi ·"J·· namel: reg: ster of charges ..eziste ..of memcc.s reg, "'C" . f• 1). \".", 'J .. I':" \.'-' ..t UU), ",) L "'" l.. -o • .1.\'0 .. 1 U:""'" hh .. "'"

r..i.:Yother se'::..:ri.,yholders the ro;';61(.j~e!·cud ;I-'~:';:" of bcnef.cial owners r,:l;';

annual ietura, register of leans, &a~ra:;~ecs,security and acquisitions, register of
investments not heid in its 0WJl name e!ld J'f>J;!:ter of contracts :::--,d
errangcments for cuch duration Be the Doarc may, unlesc . otbc.v.lao
prescribed, decide, and in such meaner m:~ ~~mtu~a~~6such !=:.~t':o~lf':'~ atl

pre- cribc-l by the Act and the Rules, The registers and copies of allnu.lll..::~,;:.1
s'uril be cpcn tor in~p'A'.~~c::<':ur:r.~G~r.·~ehours C:l all working da) 3, other ti::;n

I Saturdays, at the registered office of tire Company by the persons entitled I
___ ----!:-t_h_c_rc:-to~OI.!..P.E:Y:lilcllt,of such fees ~s ;~'!!.l'l>~Ere.5Giocd ott-ct and ti10 Ru!es. i-:=---,---:------I

121. I a) The Company may exercise the powers .<:(miE.:tTcdon it by the Act with Foreign register
regard to the keeping of a foreign register; and the Board may
(subject to the provisions oi the; Ar.:') make ::l:l:l vary .nc.:,
regulations as ii. may think fit :-es!:~C':;'1gthe keeping IJf any such .
register, I

b) The foreign register shall be open for inspection and may be closc s, ~\I~

extracts may be taken theref om and copies thereof may be required, ~a. I
the same manner, mutatis mutandis, as is applicable to the register of
members.

DIVIDENDS AND RESERVES

The seal, its custody
and use
Affixctica of seal

THE SEAL

122. (1) The Board shall provide for the safe custody of the seal.

(2) The seal of the Company shall not be affixed to any instrument except by
the authority of a resolution of the Bouul 0: a a Committee of the Board
authorised by it in that behalf, and except in the presence of two Directors or
at least one director and the secretary or such other person as the Board 1O;.}y

appoint for the purpose; and such two directors or such other Director and
the secretary or such other person aforesaid shall sign every instrument to
which the seal of the Company is so affixed in their presence.

123. The profits of the Company, subject to any special rights relating thereto Rights to Dividend
created or authorised to be created by these presents anc..lsubject to the
provisions of these presents as to the Reserve Fund, shall be divisible among
the equity shareholders.

24
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124. The Company in General Meeting may declare dividends but no dividend shall Declaration .,': '" ··of
exceed the amount recommended by the Board. Dividends" . . '::"''''

.-

125. The declarations of the Directors as to the amount of the net profits of the What to be deemed
Company shall be conclusive .. net profits

126. The Board may from time to time pay to the members such interim dividends Interim Dividend
;'.'"

as appear to it to be justified by the profits of the Company. .'

127. No dividend shall be payable except out of the profits of the year or any other Dividends to be paid
undistributed profits except as provided by the Act. out of profits only

128. a The Board may, before recommending any dividends, set aside out of the Reserve Funds
profits of the Company such sums as it thinks proper as a reserve or
reserves which shall, at the discretion of the Board, be applicable for any
purpose to which the profits of the Company may be properly applied,

. including provision for meeting contingencies or for equalising dividends
and pending such application may, at the like discretion either be employed
in the business of the Company or be invested in such investments (other
than shares of the Company) as the Board may, from time to time, think fit.

b. The Board may also carry forward any profits which it may think prudent
not to divide without setting them aside as Reserve. :

129. a. Subject to the rights of persons, if any, entitled to share with special rights Method of payment
as to dividends, all dividends shall be declared and paid according to the 'of dividend
amounts paid or credited as paid on the shares in respect whereof the
dividend is paid.

b~·'.:-:-Noamount paid or credited as paid on a share in advance of calls shall be
.: treated for the purposes of these regulations as paid on the share.

c." All dividends shall be apportioned and paid proportionately to the amounts
paid or credited as paid on the shares during any portion or portions of the
period in respect of which the dividend is paid but if any share is issued on
terms providing that it shall rank for dividends as from a particular date,
such shares shall rank for dividend accordingly.

no. The Board may deduct from any dividend payable to any member all sums of Deduction of arrears
money, if any, presently payable by him to the Company on account of calls in
relation to the shares of the Company or otherwise.

131. Any General Meeting declaring a dividend or bonus may make a call on the Adjustment of
members of such amounts as the meeting fixes, but so that the call on each dividend against call
member shall not exceed' the dividend payable to him and so that the call be
made payable at the same time as the dividend and the dividend may, if so
arranged between the Company and themselves, be set off against the call.

132. a Any dividend, interest or other moneys payable in cash in respect"of shares Payment by
may be paid by electronic means, by cheque or warrant sent through post electronic means!
directly to the registered address of the holder or, in the case of joint cheque or warrant
holders, to the registered address of that one of the joint holders who is first
named in the Register of Members or to such person and to such address of
the holder as the joint holders may in writing direct.

b. Every such payment whether by electronic means, cheque or warrant shall
be made payable to the order of the person to whom it is sent.

c. Every dividend or warrant or c1!~ue shall be posted within.thirty days from
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the date of declaration of the dividends.

133. Anyone of two of the joint holders of a share may give effectual receipt for Deduction of arrears
any dividend, bonus, or other money payable in respect of such shares.

134. Notice of any dividend that may have been declared shall be given to the Notice of Dividends
person entitled to share therein in the manner mentioned in the Act.

135. No dividend shall bear interest against the Company. Dividend not to bear
interest

136. Any transfer of shares shall not pass the right to any dividend declared thereon Transfer of share not
before the registration of the transfer. to pass prior

Dividend
ACCOUNTS

--
137. (1) The books of account and books and papers of the Company, or any of Inspection by

them, shall be open to the inspection of directors in accordance with Directors
the applicable provisions of the Act and the Rules.

(2) No member (not being a director) shall have any right of inspecting Restriction 011

any books of account or books and papers or document of the inspection by
Company except as conferred by law or authorised by the Board. members

INDEMNITY AND INSURANCE
138. (a) Subject to the provisions of the Act, every director, managing director, Directors and officers

whole-time director, manager, company secretary and other officer of right to indemnity
the Company shall be indemnified by the Company out of the funds of the
Company, to pay all costs, losses and expenses (including travelling
expense) which such director, manager, managing director, whole time
director, chief fmancial officer, company secretary and officer may incur
or become liable for by reason of any contract entered into or act or deed
done by him in his capacity as such director, manager, company secretary
or officer or in any way in the discharge of his duties in such capacity
including expenses.

(b) Subject as aforesaid, every director, managing director, whole time Insurance
director, chief financial officer, manager, company secretary or other
officer of the Company shall be indemnified against any liability incurred
by him in defending any proceedings, whether civil or criminal in which
judgment is given in his favour or in which he is acquitted or discharged
or in connection with any application under applicable provisions of the
Act in which relief is given to him by the Court.

(c) The Company may take and maintain any insurance as the Board may
think fit on behalf of its present andlor former directors and key
managerial personnel for indemnifying all or any of them against any
liability for any acts in relation to the Company for which they may be
liable but have acted honestly and reasonably.

GENERAL POWER

139. Wherever in the Act, it has been provided that the Company shall have any General power
right, privilege or authority or that the Company could carry out any transaction
only if the Company is so authorized by its articles, then and in that case this
Article authorizes and empowers the Company to have such rights, privileges
or authorities and to carry such transactions as have been permitted by the Act,
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without there being any specific Article in that behalf herein provided.
WINDING UP

140. Subject to the applicable provisions of the Act and the Rules made Winding up
thereunder -

(a) If the Company shall be wound up, the liquidator may, with the sanction
of a special resolution of the Company and any other sanction required by
the Act, divide amongst the members, in specie or kind, the whole or any
part of the assets of the Company, whether they shall consist of property
of the same kind or not.

(b) For the purpose aforesaid, the liquidator may set such value as he
deems fair upon any property to be divided as aforesaid and may
determine how such division shall be carried out as between the members
or different classes of members.

(c) The liquidator may, with the like sanction, vest the whole or any part of
such assets in trustees upon such trusts for the benefit of the contributories
if he considers necessary, but so that no member shall be compelled to
accept any shares or other securities whereon there is any liability.

I
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We, the several persons, whose names, addresses and occupations are hereunder
subscribed, are desirous of being formed into a Company in pursuance to this
ARTICLES OF ASSOCIATION and we respectively agree to take the no. of
shares in the capital of the Company set aside to our respective names:

Name, address, description and No. .of Equity Signature, name, address I

Occupation, if any, of Subscriber shares taken by description and and
each subscriber Occupation of the witness

SdI~
Mr. Kamalaksha R. Naik
S/o. Rama S. Naik
Plot No.99,
Ambivili,
Versova Road,
Andheri (W),
Mumbai ~400058.

Occ : Business.

SdI-
J.S. Gujral,
Slo Darshan Singh Gujral,
Flat No. 11,
2nd Floor,

. Gurukripa Bldg.,
14th Road, Khar,
Mumbai- 400 052

Occ : Business

TOTAL

10
(Ten)

Sd/~
Devendra Vinayak
Kakodkar
306 Rayu Chambers,
Dr. A. Borkar Road,
Panaji, Goa.

10
(Ten) Chartered Accountant

. ".,

Panaji, G~a, 12th, March, 1993

20 (Twenty)

26
..
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.Shridhar &: Associates
Chartered Accountants

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

To the Members of Smartlink Holdings Limited

Report on the Audit of the Standalone Financial Statements

Opinion

We have audited the standalone financial statements of Smartlink Holdings Lil"[1ited ("the
Company"), which comprise the Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2023, and the Statement of Profit
and loss (including Other Comprehensive Income), Statement of Changes in Equity and Statement
of Cash Flows for the year then ended, and notes to the standalone financial statements, including
a summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information.

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the
aforesaid standalone financial statements give the information required by the Companies Act,
2013 ("the Act') inthe manner so required and give a true and falr'vlew in conformity with the
Indian Accounting Standards prescribed under section 133 of the Act read with Companies (Iridian
Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 as amended and other accounting principles generally accepted
in India, of the state of affairs of the Company as at March 31, 2023, and profit (financial
performance including other comprehensive income), changes in equity and its cash flows for the
year ended on that date.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing (SAs) specified under section
143(10) of the Act. Our responsibilities under those Standards are further described in the Auditor's
Responsibilities for the Audit of the Standalone Financial Statements section of our report. We are
independent of the Company in accordance with the Code of Ethics issued by the Institute of
Chartered Accountants of India (ICAI) together with the ethical requirements that are relevant to
our audit of the standalone financial statements under the provisions of the Act and the Rules
'thereunder, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these
requirements and the Code of Ethics. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Key Audit Matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most significance
in our audit of the standalone financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2023 (current
period). These matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the standalone financial
statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate
opinion on these matters. We have determined the matters described below to be the key audit
matters to be communicated in our report.

1. Valuation of Investments In Bonds and Mutual Funds

Refer Note 10 to the standalone Financial Statements.

As at March 2023, the Company has investments of Rs. 10,743.30 Lakhs in mutual funds and bonds
which constitutes about 51.63% of the total assets of the company. During the year, the Company

has recognised Rs. 317.78 Lakhs as fair value gain in the statement of Profit and Loss as per the

requirements of Ind AS 109 "Flnanctal lnstruments",

Due to significance of amount involved, we have considered this as Key Audit Matter.
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Our audit procedures to assess the Valuation of Investment In Bonds and Mutual Funds Included the
following: -

• Obtained an understanding and assessed the design, Implementation and testing of the
operating effectiveness of internal controls over the existence, valuation and classlflcatlon, In
mutual funds and bonds.

• Verified the de-mat account and statement of holdings to confirm the existence and accuracy
of Bonds as at March 31, 2023.

• Verified the confirmations from Fund Houses and statements of holdings to confirm existence
and accuracy of investments in Mutual Funds as on March 31, 2023.

• In respect of investments in mutual funds which are fair valued through profit or loss,
performed independent price checks based on confirmation and statement of Net Asset Value
(NAV)from mutual funds houses.

• In respect of investments in bonds which are valued at amortised cost, verified the deal sheets
and computation of interest accrued.

• Evaluated the basis of classification of investments into the various categories of financial
instruments.

• Verified the completeness and accuracy of the disclosures, which are Included in note. 10 of
the Standalone financial statements.

"2. Impairment of Investment In subsidiaries

Refer Note 10 in standalone financial statements.

The Company has investments in subsidiaries at a gross value of Rs. 7,031.72 lakhs as on March 31,
2023. These investments are valued at cost less provision for Impairment.

During the year, the Company has reversed the provision for impairment of Rs. 143.95 lakhs on
investments in subsidiaries. .

Due to significance of the above matter and Involvement of the management judgement, we have
considered this as a key audit matter.

Our audit procedures to assess the impairment of investment in subsidiaries Included the
following:

• Obtained an understanding and assessed the design, Implementation and tested the operating
effectiveness of internal controls over the valuation and impairment of investments in
subsidiary companies.

• Obtained and reviewed the valuation report of the subsidiary to understand the fair value of
the company in respect of which the provision for impairment was reversed during the period.
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RevIewed the financial statements of the subsidiaries and the future business plans/
projections furnished by the management. I
Madecorroborative Inquiries with appropriate level of th management personnel about future
businessplans/projections of the subsIdIarIes.

•

•

Evaluated the evidence supporting the judgement of th management about estImated future
cash flow and the reasonablenessof the estImates w tch Included specific risk factors by
comparIng the actual results of the current year to prevl us estImates.

•

• Assessedthe appropriateness of Impairment provision ecognlzed by the management as at
March 31, 2023.

• Verified the completeness and accuracy of the dlsclosu es, which are Included In note 10· of
the standalone fInancial statements.

Information Other than the Standalone Financial Statement and AudItor's Report Thereon

The Company's Board of Directors is responsible for the oth r Information. The other Information
comprises the Information Included in the DIrector's Report but does not Include the standalone
financIal statements and our auditor's report thereon.

Our opinion on the standalone fInancial statements does not over the other information and we do
not expressany form of assuranceconclusIon thereon.

In connection wIth our audIt of the standalone financIal state ents, our responsibilIty Is to read the
other Information and, In doing so, consider whether he other Information Is materially
Inconsistent with the standalone financial statements or ou knowtedge obtained In the audit or
otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, based 0 the work we have performed, we
conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other I formation, we are required to report
that fact. We have nothing to report In this regard.

Responslbllftles of Management and Those Charged wi h Governance for the Standalone
Financial Statements

The Company's Board of Directors Is responsible for the matt rs stated In section 134(5) of the Act
with respect to the preparation of these standalone flnancia statements that give a true and fair
view of the financial position, financial performance, cha ges In equity and cash flows of the

•I Company In accordance with the accounting princIples gene ally accepted In India, Including the
Accountfng Standards specified under section 133 of the I ct. This responsibility also Includes
maintenance of adequate accounting records In accordance with the provisions of the Act for
safeguarding of the assets of the Company and for preve~tlng and detecting frauds and other
Irregularftles; selection and application of appropriate acco~ntlng policies; making judgments and
estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and design, Implementation and maintenance of
adequate internal financial controls, that were operating eff ctlvely for ensuring the accuracy and
completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the reparation and presentation of the
standalone fInancial statements that give a true and fal view and are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the standalone financial statements, the Board Directors Is responsible for assessing
the Company's ability to continue as a going concern, disclo ing, as applicable, matters related to
going concern and using the going concern basis of accountl g unless the Board of Directors either
Intends to lfquldate the Company or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do
so.

Shrldhar & Associates, 101, 1't Floor, Valbhav Chambers, Madhusudan alekar Road, Bandra East, Mumbal-400052 .
Head Office Tel: +91 (22) 26043028/2604 4363/67411399 Email: I fo@shrldharandassoelates.com



The Board of Directors are also responsible for overseel g the Company's financial reporting
process.

Auditor's ResponslbfUties for the Audit of the Standalone F nanelal Statements

Shridhar & Associates
Chartered Accountants

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance abo1t whether the standalone financial
statements as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to
issue an auditor's report that includes our opinion. Rea onable assurance Is a high level of
assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted In accordance with SAs will always
detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatement can arise from fraud or error and are
considered material If, Individually or In the aggregate, t~ey could reasonably be expected to
influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these standalone flnancfal
statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment, and maintain
professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

• Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement 0 the standalone financial statements,
whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audi procedures' responsive to those risks,
and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropr ate to provide a basis for our opinion.
The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resu Ing from fraud is higher than for one
resulting from error, as fraud may Involve collus on, forgery, intentional omissions,
misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

• Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant 0 the audit in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances. Illnder section 143(3)(1) of the Act, we
are also responsible for expressing our opinion on whet~er the company has internal financial
controls with reference to standalone financial stat ments In place and the operating
effectiveness of such controls.

• Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies use and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates and related disclosures made by management.

• Conclude on the appropriateness of management's use of the going concern basis of
accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists
related to events or conditions that may cast signlfica t doubt on the Company's ability to
continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a mate 'al uncertainty exists, we are required
to draw attention in our auditor's report to the related disctosures in the standalone financial
statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to m dify our opinion. Our conclusions are
based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor's report. However, future
events or conditions may cause the Company to cease to continue as a going concern.

• Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and ntent of the standalone financial
statements, including the disclosures, and whether Ithe standalone financial statements
represent the underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentatfon.

We communicate with those charged with governance regardi~g, among other matters, the planned
scope and timing of the audit and signlflcant audit findings, 'lc1uding any significant deficiencies In
internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a st tement that we have complied with
relevant ethical requirements regarding Independence, nd to communicate with them all
relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thou ht to bear on our independence, and
where applicable, related safeguards.
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From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we determine those matters
that were of most significance In the audit of the standalone flnanclal statements of current period
and are therefore, the key audit matters. We describe these matters In our auditor's report unless
law or regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, In extremely rare
circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be communicated In our report becausethe
adverse consequencesof doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public Interest
benefltsof such communication.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

1. As required by the Companies (Auditor's Report) Order, 2020 (lithe Order"), Issuedby the
Central Government of India in terms of sub-section (11) of section 143 of the Act, we give
in "Annexure A" a statement on the matters speclfled In paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order,
to the extent applfcable.

2. As required by Section 143(3) of the Act, we report that:

(a) We have sought and obtained all the Information and explanations which to the best of our
knowledge and belief were necessaryfor the purposesof our audit.

(b) In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company
so far as It appears from our examination of those books.

(c) The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss (including Other Comprehensive
Income), the Statement of ChangesIn Equity and the Statement of Cash Flow dealt with by
this Report are in agreement with the booksof account.

(d) In our opinion, the aforesaid standalone financial statements comply with the Accounting
Standardsspecified under Section 133 of the Act, read wIth (;:ompanles(Indian Accounting
Standard) Rules,2015, as amended.

(e) On the basts of the written representations received from the directors as on March 31,
2023 taken on record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors are dlsquatffied as on
March 31, 2023from being appoInted as a director In terms of Section 164 (2) of the Act.

(f) WIth respect to the adequacy of the Internal financial controls with reference to
standalone financial statements of the Company and the operating effectiveness of such
controls, refer to our separate Report In "Annexure BU.

(g) With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor's Report in accordancewith
Rule 11 of the Companies(Audit and Auditors) Rules,2014, in our opinion and to the best of
our information and according to the explanatIons given to us:

I. The Company does not have any pendIng litigations on its fInancial position which
requires disclosure in the standalone financial statements as at March 31, 2023.

ii. The Company did not have any long-term contracts Including derivative contracts for
which there were any material foreseeable tosses.

Hi. There has been no delay In transferring amounts, required to be transferred, to the
investor EducatIon and Protection Fund.
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iv.
(1) The Management has represented that, to the best of It's knowledge and belief, no

funds have been advanced or loaned or Invested (either from borrowed funds or share
premium or any other sourcesor kind of funds) by the Company to or In any other
person(s) or entlty(les), Including foreign entities ("lnterme~larles"), with the
understanding, whether recorded In writing or otherwise, that the Intermediary shall,
directly or indirectly lend or Invest In other persons or entities Identified in any
manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Company ("Ultimate Beneficiaries") or
provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the ULtimate Beneficiaries.

(2) The Management has represented, that, to the best of It's knowledge and belief, no
funds have been received by the Companyfrom any person(s) or entlty(les), Including
foreign entities (Funding Parties), with the understanding, whether recorded In
writing or otherwise, as on the date of this audit report, that the Company shall,
directly or indirectly, lend or invest In other persons or entities Identified In any
manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the FundingParty ("Ultimate Beneficiaries") or
provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the ULtimate Beneficiaries.

(3) Basedon the audit procedures performed that have been considered reasonableand
appropriate In the circumstances, and according to the Information and explanations
provided to us by the ManagementIn this regard nothing has come to our notice that
has caused us to betfeve that the representatfons under sub-clause (I) and (II) of IMe
11(e) as provided under (1) and (2) above, contain any material mis-statement.

v. The Company has neither declared nor paid any dividend during the year.

3. In our opinion, according to information, explanations given to us, the remuneration for the
year ended March 31, 2023 paid by the Company to Its directors Is within the limits laid
prescribed under Section 197 of the Act read with ScheduleV to the Act.

4. Proviso to Rule 3(1) of the Companies(Accounts) Rules, 2014 requires all companies which
use accounting software for maintaining their books of account, to use such an accounting
software which has a feature of audit trait, with effect from the financial year beginning on
April 1, 2023 and accordingly, reporting under Rule 11(g) of Companies(Audit and Auditors)
Rules,2014 (as amended) is not applicable for the current financial year.

For Shridhar & Assaclates
Chartered Accountants
ICAIFirm Registration No. 134427W

AbhishekPachlangia
Partner
MembershipNo. 120593
UDIN:23120593BGWJMM2193

Place: Mumbai
Date: May 17, 2023

Shridhar & Associates, 101,1$1Floor, Vaibhav Chambers, Madbusudan Kalekar Road, Bandra East, Mumbai-4000S2
Head Office Tel: +91 (22) 2604 3028 12604 4363 167411399 Email: info@shridharandassociates.com



'\ , .'

, Shridhar & Associates
Chartered Accountants

ANNEXURE A TO INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT OF EVEN DATE ON THE
STANDALONE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS OF SMARTLINK HOLDINGS LIMITED FOR
THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2023

[Referred to in paragraph 1 under 'Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements' in the
Independent Auditors' Report on even date to Member of Smartlink Holding Limited on the Standalone
Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2023]

i.
(a) A. The company has maintained proper records showing full particulars including quantitative

details and situation of Property, Plant and Equipment ("PPE") and relevant details of right to use
assets. .

B. The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars of intangible assets.

(b) Property, Plant and Equipment have been physically verified by the management at reasonable
intervals during the year which, in our opinion, is reasonable having regards to the size of the
Company and nature of its assets. No material discrepancies were identified on such verification.

(c) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination of
the records of the Company, the title deeds of immovable properties (other than properties where
the company is the lessee and the lease agreements are duly executed in favour of the lessee) as
disclosed in the financial statements are held in the name of the Company.

(d) According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has not revalued its
property, plant and Equipment (including Right of Use assets) and its intangible assets.
Accordingly, the requirements under paragraph 3(i)(d) of the Order are not applicable to the
Company. . ..

(e) According to the information and explanations given to us, no proceeding has been initiated or
pending against the Company for holding benarni property under the Benarni Transactions
(Prohibition) Act, 1988 and rules made thereunder. Accordingly, the provisions stated in paragraph
3(i) (e) of the Order are not applicable to the Company.

ii.
(a) The Company is an investment company, and consequently, does not hold any inventory.

Accordingly, the provisions stated in paragraph 3(ii) (a) of the Order are not applicable to the
Company.

(b) The Company has not been sanctioned working capital limits by banks or financial institutions on
the basis of security of current assets at any point of time during the year. Accordingly, reporting
under clause 3(ii)(b) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

Shrldhar & Associates, 101,1" Floor, Vaibhav Chambers, Madhusudan Kalekar Road, Bandra East, Mumbal-400052
Read Office Tel: +91 (22) 2604 3028/2604 4363/67411399 Email: info@sbridharandassociates.com
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iii. According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination of the
records of the Company, the Company has not provided any security or grantedany loans or advances
in the nature of loans, secured or unsecured, to companies, films, limited liability partnership or any
other parties during the year, The Company has provided guarantee to the companies. The Company
has not made any investments in or granted any loans, secured or unsecured, to firms and limited
liability partnership.

(a) Based on the audit procedures carried on by us and as per the information and explanations given
to us, the Company has provided guarantee to other entity as below:

(Amount in Rs. Lakhs):
.

Particulars Guarantees
Aggregate amount granted/provided during the year

- Subsidiaries 6,570.00 I

Balance Outstanding as at balance sheet date in respect of above cases
- Subsidiaries 6,570.00

(b) According to the information and explanations given to us and based on the audit procedures

performed by us, we are of the opinion that the terms and conditions in relation to guarantees

provided are not prejudicial to the interest of the Company.

(c) The Company has not granted loans and advances in the nature of loans to companies, firms,

Limited Liability Partnerships or any other parties, Accordingly, the requirement to report on
clause 3(iii)( c) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

(d) The Company has not granted loans or advances in the nature of loans to companies, firms,

Limited Liability Partnerships or any other parties. Accordingly, the requirement to report on

clause 3(iii) (d) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

(e) There were no loans or advance in the nature of loan granted to c.ompanies, firms, Limited Liability

Partnerships or any other parties, Accordingly, the requirement to report on clause 3(iii) (e) of the

Order is not applicable to'the Company.

(f) The Company has not granted any loans or advances in the nature of loans, either repayable on

demand or without specifying any terms or period of repayment to companies, firms, Limited

Liability Partnerships or any other parties. Accordingly, the requirement to report on clause 3(iii)(f)

of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

iv. In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has not
either directly or indirectly, granted any loan to any of its directors or to any other person in whom
the director is interested, in accordance with the provisions of section 185 of the Act and the
Company has not made investments through more than two layers of investment companies in
accordance with the provisions of section 186 of the Act. Accordingly, provisions stated in paragraph
3(iv) of the Order are not applicable to the Company.

Shridhar & Associates, 101, pI Floor, Vaibhav Chambers, Madhusudan Kalekar Road, Bandra East, Mumbai-400052
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v. In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has not
accepted any deposits from public within the meaning of sections 73, 74, 75 and 76 of the Act, and
the rules framed thereunder. Accordingly, the provisions stated in paragraph 3(v) of the Order are not
applicable to the Company.

vi. The provisions of sub-section (1) of section 148 of the Act are not applicable to the Company as the
Central Government of India has not specified the maintenance of cost records for any of the products
of the Company. Accordingly, the provisions stated in paragraph 3 (vi) of the Order are not applicable
to the Company.

vii.
(a) According to the information and explanations given to us and records examined by us, the Company

has been generally regular in depositing undisputed statutory dues in respect of provident fund,
professional tax, employees' state insurance, income-tax, goods and service tax, cess and other
statutory dues as applicable, with the appropriate authorities though there has been delays in few
cases with regards to professional tax. According to the information and explanations given to us,
there are no arrears of outstanding undisputed statutory dues as at March 31, 2023 for a period of
more than six months from the date they became payable.

(b) According to the information and explanation given to us and the records of the Company examined
by us, there are no dues of income tax, goods and service tax, customs duty, cess and any other
statutory dues which have not been deposited on account of any dispute.

viii. According to the information and explanations given to us, there are no transactions which are not
accounted in the books of account which have been surrendered or disclosed as income during the year
in Tax Assessment of the Company. Also, there are no previously unrecorded income which has been
now recorded in the books of account. Hence, the provision stated in paragraph 3(viii) of the Order is
not applicable to the Company.

ix. . .
(a) The Company does not have any loans or borrowings and repayment to lenders during the year.

Accordingly, the provision stated in paragraph 3(ix) (a) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

(b) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our audit procedures, we
report that the company has not been declared wilful defaulter by any bank. or financial institution or
government or any government authority.

(c) In our opinion and according to the information explanation provided to us, no money was raised by
way of term loans. Accordingly, the provision stated in paragraph 3(ix)(c) of the Order is not
applicable to the Company.

(d) In our opinion, according to the information explanation provided to us, there are no funds raised on
short term basis. Accordingly, the provision stated in paragraph 3(ix)(d) of the Order is not applicable
to the Company.
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(e) According to the information explanation given to us and on an overall examination of the standalone
financial statements of the Company, we report that the company has not taken any funds from an any
entity or person on account of or to meet the obligations of its subsidiaries.

(f) According to the information and explanations given to us and procedures performed by us, we report
that the Company has not raised loans during the year on the pledge of securities held in its
subsidiaries.

x.
(a) The Company did not raise any money by way of initinIpublic offer or further public offer (including

debt instruments) during the year. Accordingly, the provisions stated in paragraph 3 (x)(a) of the Order
are not applicable to the Company.

(b) According to the information and explanations given to us and based on our examination of the
records of the Company, the Company has not made any preferential allotment or private placement of
shares or fully, partly or optionally convertible debentures during the year. Accordingly, the provisions
stated in paragraph 3 (x)(b) of the Order are not applicable to the Company.

xi.
(a) During the course of our audit, examination of the books and records of the Company, carried out in

accordance with the generally accepted auditing practices in India, and according to the information
and explanations given to us, we have neither come across any instance of material fraud by the
Company or on the Company.

(b) We have not come across of any instance of material fraud by the Company or on the Company during
the course of audit of the standalone financial statement for the year ended March 31, 2023,
accordingly the provisions stated in paragraph (xi)(b) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

(c) As represented to us. by the management, there are no whistle-blower complaints received by the
Company during the course of audit. Accordingly, the provisions stated in paragraph (xi)(c) of the
Order is not applicable to company. .

xii.
(a) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company is not a

Nidhi Company. Accordingly, the provisions stated in paragraph 3(xii) (a) to (c) of the Order are not
applicable to the Company.

xiii. According to the information and explanations given to us and based on our examination of the
records of the Company, transactions with the related parties are in compliance with sections 177 and
188 of the Act, where applicable and details of such transactions have been disclosed in the standalone
financial statements as required under Indian Accounting Standard (Ind AS) 24, "Related Party
Disclosure" specified under section 133 of the Act, read with relevant rules issued thereunder.

xiv.
(a) In our opinion and based on our examination, the Company has an internal audit system

commensurate with .the size and nature of its business.
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(b) We have considered internal audit reports issued by internal auditors during our audit.

xv. According to the information and explanations given to us, in our opinion during the year tho
Company has not entered into non-cash transactions with directors or persons connected with its
directors and hence, provisions of section 192 of the Act are not applicable to company. Accordingly,
the provisions stated in paragraph 3(xv) of the Order are not applicable to the Company.

xvi.
(a) The Company is registered under Section 45-IA of the Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934 as NOIl-

banking financial institution without accepting deposits vide Registration number N-13.02236 dated
May 02, 2018.

(b) In our opinion, the Company has not conducted any Non-Banking Financial or Housing Finance
activities without any valid Certificate of Registration from Reserve Bank of India. Hence, the
reporting under paragraph clause 3 (xvi)(b) of the Order are not applicable to the Company.

(c) The Company is not a Core investment Company (CIC) as defined in the regulations made by Reserve
Bank of India. Hence, the reporting under paragraph clause 3 (xvi)(c) of the Order are not applicable
to the Company.

(d) The Company does not have more than one CIC as a part of its group. Hence, the provisions stated in
paragraph clause 3 (xvi)(d) of the Order are not applicable to the Company.

xvii. According to the information explanation provided to us, the Company has not incurred cash losses in
the current financial year and in the immediately preceding financial year. Hence, the provisions stated
in paragraph clause 3 (xvii) of the Order are not applicable to the Company.

xviii. There has been no resignation of the statutory auditors during the year. Accordingly, reporting under
clause 3(xviii) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

xix, According to the information and explanations given to us and based on our examination of financial
ratios, ageing and expected date of realisation of financial assets and payment of liabilities, other
information accompanying the standalone financial statements, our knowledge of the Board of
Directors and management plans, we are of the opinion that no material uncertainty exists as on the
date of audit report, and the Company is capable of meeting its liabilities existing at the date of
balance sheet as and when they fall due within a period of one year from the balance sheet date. We,
however, state that this is not an assurance as to the future viability of the company. We further state
that our reporting is based on the facts up to the date of the audit report and we neither give any
guarantee nor any assurance that all liabilities falling due within a period of one year from the balance
sheet date, will get discharged by the company as and when they fall due.

xx.
(a) According to the information and explanations given to us, the provisions of section 135 of the Act are

applicable to the Company. The company has made the required contributions during the year and
there are no unspent amounts which are required to be transferred to the special account as on the date
of audit report. Accordingly the provisions of paragraph (xx)(a) to (b) of the Order are not applicable
to the Company.
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xxi. There are no Qualifications/adverse remarks by the respective auditors in the Companies (Auditor's
Report) Order (CARO) Reports of the companies included in the consolidated financial statements.
Accordingly, the provisions stated in paragraph clause 3 (xxi) of the Order are not applicable to the
Company.

For Shridbar & Associates
Chartered Accountants
ICAI Firm Registration No. 134427W

c)~~
Abhishek Pachlangia
Partner
Membership No. 120593
UDlN: 23120593BGWJMM2193

Place: Mumbai
Date: May 17) 2023
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r' ANNEXURE B TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT OF EVEN DATE ON THE STANDALONE
FINANCIAL STATEMENTSOF SMARTLINKHOLDINGSLIMITED

[Referred to in paragraph 2 under 'Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements' in the
Independent Auditors' Report of even date to the members of SmartUnk Holdings limited on the
standalone financial statements of the Company for the year ended March 31,2023]

Report on the Internal Financial Controls under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the
Companies Act, 2013 ("the Act")

Opinion

We have audited the internal financial controls with reference to standalone financial statements of
Smartlink Holdings Limited ("the Company") as of March 31, 2023 in conjunction with our audit of the
standalone financial statements of the Company for the year ended on that date.

In our opinion, the Company has, in all material respects, adequate internal financial controls with
reference to standalone financial statements and such internal financial controls with reference to
standalone financial statements were operating effectively as at March 31, 2023, based on the internal
control with reference to standalone financial statements criteria established by the Company
considering the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of
Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of
India (ICAI) (the "Guidance Note"). '

Management's Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

The Company's Management is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial controls
based on the internal control with reference to standalone financial statements crlterta established by
the Company considering the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note.
These responsibilities include the design, implementation and maintenance of internal financial
controls that were operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its business,
including adherence to Company's policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection
of frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, and the timely
preparation of reliable financial information, as required under the Act.

Auditors' Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial controls with reference
to standalone financial statements bused on our audit. We conducted OUI' audit In accordance wilh the
Guidance Note and the Standards on Auditing, issued by ICAI and deemed to be prescribed under
section 143(10) of the Act, to the extent applicable to an audit of internal financial controls. Those
Standards and the Guidance Note require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and
perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether internal financial controls with
reference to standalone financial statements was established and maintained and if such controls
operated effectively in all material respects.
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Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the internal financial controls
with reference to standalone financial statements and their operating effectiveness. Our audit of
internal financial controls with reference to standalone financial statements included obtaining an
understanding of internal financial controls with reference to standalone financial statements,
assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the design and operating
effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed risk. The. procedures selected depend on the
auditor's judgement, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the standalone
financial statements, whether due to fraud or error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis
for our audtt opinion on the Company's internal financial controls with reference to standalone
financial statements.

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls with Reference to Standalone Financial Statements

A Company's internal financial control with reference to standalone financial statements is a process
designed to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the
preparation of standalone financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally
accepted accounting prtnciptes. A Company's internal financial control with reference to standalone
financial statements includes those policies and procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of
records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of the
assets of the company; (2) provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to
permit preparation of standalone financial statements in accordance with generally accepted
accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the company are being made only in
accordance with authorizations of management and directors of the company; and (3) provide
reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorized acqutsitton, use, or
disposition of the company's assets that could have a material effect on the standalone financial
statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls with Reference to Standalone Financial
Statements

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls with reference to standalone financial
statements, including the possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls,
material misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any
evaluation of the internal financial controls with reference to standalone financial statements to future
periods are subject to the risk that the internal financial control with reference to standalone financial
statements may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of
compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

For Shridhar & Associates
Chartered Accountants
ICAIFirm Registration No. 134427W

Abhishek Pachlangia
Partner
Membership No. 120593
UDIN:23120593BGWJMM2193
Place: Mumbaf
Date: May 17, 2023



Smart linkHoldings Limited
Standalone Balance Sheet es at March 31, 2023
(Amou nt In INRLakhs, unless otherwise stated)

As at As at
Partfculars Noto No. March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022

ASSETS
Flnanctal Assets
tnsh nnd cash equivalents 5 35.51 31.10
Dankbalance other than cash and cash equivalents 6 803.58 1,082.58
Receivables

(I) Other Receivables 7 55.36 75.38
Investments 10 17,522.12 15,047.52
Other financial assets 8 9.38 25.23

Hon-ft nanclal assets
Tax assets (net) 9 147.21 56.75
Investment properly 11 1,280.03 1,467.85
Property, plant and equipment 12 875.44 840.39
Capital work-In-progress 43 215.70
Other intangible assets 13
Other non-financial assets 14 77.61 64.85

Total Assets 20,806.24 18,907.35

LIABILlilESAHDEQUITY

LIABILITIES
Financial liabilities
Trade payables 15

(I) total outstanding dues of micro enterprises and small enterprises -
(II) total outstanding dues of creditors other than micro enterprises and
small enterprises 115.64 44.44

Borrowings (Other than debt securities) 16 147.31 180.22
Other financial liabilities 17 77.27 52.77

Hon-Flnanclal L1abliltles
Provisions 18 5.07 5.35
Deferred tax liabilities (net) 31 365.70 311.26
Other non-tinanclaillabilities 19 10.48 3.80

EQUITY
Equity share capital 20 199.50 199.50

Other equity 21 19,885.27 18,110.01

Total Lfablllties and Equity 20,806.24 18,907.35

See accompanying notes forming part of the Financial Statements 1-62

The accompanying notes are an Integral part of the flnandal statements -:

As per my report of even date
For Shrldhar & Associates
Chartered Accountants
ICAIFirm Registration No.: 134427W

For and on behalf of the Board'of Directors of
Smartllnk Holdings Limited
CIH: L67100GA1993PLCOO1341

tf
K.R_ Nalk
Executive Chairman

~~)

K.G.Prabhu
Chief Financial Officer

Urjlta Damle
'C,ompanySecretary
IC's1Membership 1010,24654

Place: Mumbai
Date: May17, 2023
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Smartllnk Holdings LImited
Statomont or Standalone Proll! and loss for the year ended March 31, 2023

(Amount In INRlakhs, unless otherwise stated)

Particulars
Hote For the Yoar Ended for the Year End,d
Ho. March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022

tnceme
Revenuet from operations

Interest Income 22 427.97 ~66.74

Rental Incorne 36(0) 196.50 90.53

fees and conmlsslon Income 23 12.24 9.62

Net g41n on fair value changes 24 317.78 342.-16

Total rovonue from operations 954.49 909.37

Other Income 25 150.69 2,819.64

Total Income 1,105.18 3,729.01

Exp'Jnsos
Finance costs 26 16.69 16.70

impairment on IInandallnstruments 27 0.26 U8
Employee benerlts expenses 28 285.91 276.'18

Depreciation and amortlsatlon expense 29 102.22 108.31

Other expenses 30 679.13 365.18
Total oxponses 1,08<4.21 791.45

Profit I (Loss) before exceptional Items and tax 20.97 2,937.56

Exceptional Items II(e) 2,091.57

Profit I (loss) before tax 2,112.54 2,937.56

Tax Expense:

• Current Tax 33<1.89 108.42

• Deferred Tax 53.29 (73.11)

· Taxes adjustment for earlier year (49.n) 6.90

Total tax expense ll(F) 338.46 42.21

Proflt I (loss) for the year 1,774.08 2,895.35

Other Comprehensive Income

A. Items that will not be reclassilled to prollt or loss

Re-measurernent gains I (loss) on defined beneflt plan 4.61 (3.10)

Income tax relating to above (1.16) 0.78
Subtotal (A) 3.'15 (2.32)

B. Items that will be reda~fled to profit or loss
Net fair value gainl (loss) on nnanclallnstruments

Income tax relating to above
Subtotal (8)

Other Comprehensive Income (A· 8) 3.45 (2.32)

Total Comprehensive Income for the year 1,777.53 2,893.03

Basic and diluted Earnings per share 32 17.79 27.59

(NomInal value per share INR2)

See accompanying notes ronmlng part or the flnandal Statements 1-62
The accompanying notes are an Integral part of the flnandal statements

As per my report of even date
For Shrldhar & Associates
Chartered Accountants
ICAIflnm Registration No.: 134427W

~~
A~he~

Partner
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For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of
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Executive Chainman Executive Director

~~~ ~
K.G.Prabfiu" • - Urjlta Damle

Chief Anandal Officer Company Secretary
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Place: Mumbal
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Smartllnk Holdings Limited

Statement of Standalone Cash flows for the year ended March 31, 2023

(Amount In INRLakhs, unless otherwise stated)

Particulars

Cash flow from operating activities

Net Profit before tax

Adjustments for:

Depreciation and amortisation expense

Interest on Income tax refund

Loss / (Profit) on Property, plant and equipment sold / written off (net)

Net gain on fair value changes

Reversal of Impairment on Investment

Impairment on financial Instruments

EIRImpact of security deposits and rent amortization

EIRImpact of Interest Income on bonds

Bad Debts Written off

Unrealfsed foreign exchange difference (net)

Finance costs

Guarantee commission

Gain on derecognltlon of financial Instrument measured at amortised cost

Operating (loss) before working capital changes

Changes In working capital

(Increase) / Decrease In Investments

(Increase) / Decrease In Fixed deposits With Banks

(Increase) / Decrease In Other Receivables

(Increase) / Decrease In Other financial assets

(Increase) / Decrease In Other non-financial assets

Increase / (Decrease) in trade payables

Increase / (Decrease) In Other financlalllabHltles

Increase / (Decrease) In Other non-fmanciel Itabiltttes

Increase / (Decrease) In provisions

Cash generated from/(used In) operations

Net Income tax paid

Net cash flows from/(used In) operating activities (A)

Cash flow from Investing activities

Purchase of property, plant and equipment and Investment property

Proceeds from Sale of property, plant and equipment and Intangible assets

Net cash flows from/(used In) investing activities (B)

Cash flow from financing activities

Buyback of Company's equity shares

Tax on Buyback of Company's equity shares

Interest payments

Cash Payment for the principal portion of lease payments

Net cash flows from/(used in) financing activities (C)

Net Increase / (Decrease) In cash and cash equivalents (A+B+C)

Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year

Effect of exchange differences on restatement of foreign currency Cash and bank
balance

Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year

Cash and cash equivalents comprise

Balances With banks

On current accounts

Cash on hand

Total cash and cash equivalents at end of the year

For the Year Ended For the Year Ended
March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022

2,112.54 2,937.5(1

102.22 108.31

(0.44)

(Z,095.14) (0.46)

(317.78) (342.48)

(143.95) (2,818.32)

0 5
(0.24) (0.60)

6.94 6.84

58.16

(0.01) (0.01)

16.69 16.70
(12.24) (9.62)

(2.72)

(275.71) (97.30)

(1,999.86)

279.01

(38.14)

16.94

(12.76)

71.20

12.46

6.67

4.32

4,816.72

(621.39)

13.63
(0.02)

(1.01)

(38.51)

(49.75)

1.24

(2.93)

(1,935.87) 4,020.68

(375.19) (129.50)

(2,311.06) 3,891.18

(121.83)

2,459.22

(5.32)

0.46
2,337.39 (4.86)

(2.29)

(19.64)

(3,158.75)

(704.57)

(0.75)

(31.46)

(21.93) (3,895.53)

4.40

31.10

0.01

(9.21)

40.30

0.01

35.51 31.10

33.50

2.01

28.88

2.22

35.51 31.10
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Smartffnk Holdings Limited

Statement of Standalone Cash Flows for the year ended March 31, 2023

(Amount In INR Lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

(I) The above cash flow statement has been prepared under the IndIrect method as set out In Ind AS 7 " Statement of Cash Flows"

(I!) Non Cash Movement In Financing ActivIty

Particulars
For the Year Endod

March 31, 2023
For the Year Ended

March 31, 2022
Lease Liabilities

See accompanyIng notes formIng part of the FInancIal Statements

The accompanying notes are an Integrnl part of the financial statements
1-62

As per my report of even dale
For Shrldhar a Associates

Chartered Accountants
ICAI Firm RegIstration No.: 134427W

c?~
Abhlshek Pachlanllia

Partner
Membership No. 120593

Place: Mumbnl

Date: May 17,2023

(13.27) 15.04

For and on behalf of the Board of DIrectors of

Smartllnk Holdings Limited

CIN : L67100GA1993PLC0013~'

~ «t:
C". '

K.R. Nalk Ara INalk

Executive Chairman

~:3;
K.G.Prabhu
Chief Financial Otr1cer

Place: Mumbal
Date: May 17, 2023

Executive Director

DIN: 069659B5

~
UrJlta Deml.
Company Secretary

ICSIMembershIp No.24654



Smart link HoldIngs LimIted
Notes forming part of the Standalone FInancIal Statements for the year ended March 31, 2023
(AmountIn INR,unless otherwise stated)

Corporate Information
Smartllnk Holdings LImited (formerly known as Smartllnk Network Systems LImited) ("Company"), incorporeted In Goa Is II Non·Banklng
FInancIal Institution (NBFI)(non-deposlt taking) as defined under Reserve Dank of IndIa Act, 1934. The Company Is pubUc limIted compnny
Incorporated and domiciled In India and has Its registered office at Vema IndustrIal Estate, Goa, Indln, The company has Its listIng on 6SE
LImIted and NSElimIted.

The Company operates as an Investment Company and earns maJorly from InvestIng activity.
The FInancial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2023 were approved for Issue by company's Board of DIrectors on May17,2023.

2 SIgnIfIcant accounting policies
Slgnlffcant accountIng policIes adopted by the Company are as under:

2.1 BasIs of Preparatfon of Financial Statements
(a) Statement of Compliance wIth Ind AS

These financial statements have been prepared In accordance with IndIan Accounting Standards (Ind AS) notified under SectIon 133 of
the CompanIes Act, 2013 (the "Act") read with the Companies (IndIan Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 (as amended from time to
time).

Accounting pcltctes have been conslstentty applied to all the years presented except where a newly Issued accountIng standard Is
Initially adopted or a revision to an existing accounting standard requIres a change in the accountIng poUcyhItherto in use.

The financIal statements have been prepared on a historical cost basis, except for certain financial assets and financIal ttablttttes that
are measured at fair value.

The financial statements are presented in Indian Rupees (INR)In lakhs, whIch Is also the functional currency of the company and all
amounts disclosed In financial statements and notes have been rounded off to the nearest lakhs, except when otherwise Indicated.

(b) Use of estImates
The preparation of financial statements in conformity with Ind AS requires the Management to make estimate and assumptions that
affect the reported amount of assets and liabilities as at the Balance Sheet date, reported amount of revenue and expenses for the
year and disclosures of contingent lIabltllies as at the Balance Sheet date. The estimates and assumptions used In the accompanying
financial statements are based upon the Management's evaluation of the relevant facts and circumstances as at the date of tlie
financial statements. Actual results could differ from these estimates. Estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on a
periodic basis. Revisions to accounting estimates, If any, are recognized in the year in which the estimates are revised and in any
future years affected. Refer Note 3 for detailed discussion on estimates and judgments.

2,2 Property, plant and equipment
Property, plant and equipment, are stated at historical cost of acquisition or construction less accumulated depreciation and
Impairment losses, if any. Cost of property, plant and equipment comprises Its purchase price net of any discounts and rebates, any
Import duties and other taxes (other than those subsequently recovered from the tax authorities), any directly attrIbutable
expenditure on making the asset ready for its Intended use, other fnctdental expenses, decommissioning costs, If any, and interest on
borrowings attributable to It up to the date It is ready for tts Intended use. Cost of property, plant and equipment that are not yet
ready (or their Intended use at the balance sheet date are shown under capital work-fn-progress.

Subsequent costs are included In the asset's carrying amount or recognized as a separate asset, as appropriate, only when it is
probable that future economic benefits assoctated with the item witt flow to the Company and the cost of the Item can be measured
reliably. The carrying amount of any component accounted for as a separate asset Is derecognlzed when replaced. Allother repairs and
maintenance costs are charged to Statement of Profit and Lossdurlng the year In which they are Incurred.

Property, plant and equipment's residual values and useful lives are reviewed at each Balance Sheet date and changes, If any, are
treated as changes in accounting estimate.

Depreciation methods, estImated useful lives
The Company depreciates property, plant and equipment using the straight line method over their estimated useful lives as under:

Property, plant and equipment Useful LIves (In years)
Furniture and Fixtures
Motor Vehicle
Office Equlpments
Electrical installations
Air Conditioners
Computers

8
5
5

10
10

3



Smartllnk Holdings LImited

Notes forming part of the Standalone Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2023
(Amount In INR, unless otherwise stated)

Depreciation on property, plant and equipment has been provided on the stralsht·lfne method as per the usefut life prescribed In
Schedule II to the Companies Act, 2013 except In respect of certain categories of assets, In whose case the life of the assets has been
assessed as under based on technical advice, taking Into account the nature of the asset, the estimated usage of the asset, the
operating conditions of the asset, past history of replacement, anticipated technological changes, manufacturers wnrrantles und
maintenance support, etc

Depreciation on addition to property plant and equipment Is provided on pro-rata basiSfrom the date of acquisition.

Property plant and equipment Is derecognlsed on disposal or when no future economic benefits are expected from Its use.
Depreciation on derecognltlon of an asset from property plallt and equipment Is provlded up to the date preceding the date of
derecognltlon.

Any gain or loss arising on derecognltfon of the asset (calculated as the difference between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying
amount of the asset) Is recognised In other Income / expense In the statement of profit and loss In the year the asset Is derecogntsed,

DepreCiation methods, useful lives and residual values are reviewed periodically at each financial year end and adjusted prospectively,
as appropriate.

2.3 Investment properties
Property that Is held for long· term rental yield or for capital appropriation or both, and that Is not used In the production of goods
and services or for administrative purposes Is classlffed as Investment property.

Investment propertles are measured Inltfally at cost. Subsequent to InItial recognttlon, Investment properties are stated at cost less
accumulated depreciation and accumulated Impairment loss, If any.

The cost Includes the cost of replacing parts and borrowing costs for lons·term construction projects If the recognition criteria are
met. When significant parts of the Investment property are required to be replaced at Intervals, the Company depreciates them
separately based on their specifiC usefull1ves. All other repair and maIntenance costs are recognized In profit or loss as Incurred.

Investment properties are derecognlzed either when they have been disposed of or when they are permanently withdrawn from use and
no future economic benefit Is expected from theIr disposal. The difference between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount
of the asset Is recognized In profit or loss In the period of derecognltlon.

Investment properties Include properties leased out and measured under Ind AS 116 as right of use assets.

2.4 Intangible Assets .
Intllnglble assets wIth finite useful lives that are acquired separately are carried at cost less accumulated amortisation and
accumulated Impairment losses. Amortisation Is recognised on a straight line basts basis over their estimated useful lives so as to
reflect the pattern In which the assets economic benefits are consumed. The estlma,ted useful life and amortisation method are
reviewed at the end of each reportfng period, with the effect of any changes In estimate being accounted for on a prospective basis.
The amortisation of Intangible asset Is Included In Depreclatfon and amortisation expense In statement of Profft It Lossaccount.

The Company amortized Intangible assets using the straight Une method over their estimated useful ttves as under:
Intangible assets Useful life (In years)
Computer Software (ERP) 3
Computer Software (other software) 4'
• Subject to license period

Intangible assets with finite lives are assessed for Impairment whenever there Is an Indication that the Intangible asset may be
Impaired. The amortization period and the amortization method for an Intangible asset with a finite useful life are reviewed at least at
each flnanclal year end.

2.5 Foreign Currency Transactions
(a) FunctIonal and presentation currency

Items Included In the flnanclal statements are measured using the currency of the primary economic environment In which the entity
operates ('the functional currency'). The financIal statements are presented In Indian rupee (INR), Which Is the Company's functional
and presentation currency.

\1:2-..



Smartllnk Holdings LImited

Notes forming part of the Standalone Flnanclal Statements for the year ended March 31, 2023

(Amount In INR, unless otherwise stated)

(b) Transactions and balances

On Initial recognition, aU foreign currency transactions are recorded by applying to the foreign currency amount the exchange rato

between the functional currency and the foreign currency at the date of the transaction. Gains/Losses arising out of fluctuation In

foreIgn exchange rate between the transaction date and settlement date are recognised In the Statement of Profit and Loss.

AU monetary assets and liabilities In foreign currencies are restated at the year end at the exchange rate prevailing at the yenr end

and the exchange differences are recognIsed In the Statement of Profit and Loss.

Non-monetary Items that are measured In terms of htstcrtcat cost In a foreIgn currency are translated using the exchange rates at tho
dates of the initIal transactions.

2.6 Fair value measurement

The Company measures financial Instruments at faIr value at each balance sheet date.

Fair value is the price that would be received to seU an asset or paid to transfer a liability In an orderly transaction between market
participants at the measurement date. The fair value measurement Is based on the presumptIon that the transaction to seU the asset

or transfer the liability takes place either:

~ In the prlnclpal market (or the asset or liability, or

~ In the absence of a princIpal market, In the most advantageous market for the asset or liability accessIble to the Company.

The Company uses valuation techniques that are appropriate In the cIrcumstances and for which sufficient data are avaHable to

measure faIr value, maxImIzIng the use of relevant observable Inputs and mInImizIng the use of unobservable Inputs.

AU assets and liabilities for whIch faIr value is measured or dIsclosed In the fInancIal statements are categorized wIthin the faIr value

hierarchy, described as follows, based on the lowest level Input that Is sIgnIficant to the fair value measurement as a whole:

- level 1 - Quoted (unadjusted) market prices In active markets for Identical assets or lIabHltles

- Level 2 - Inputs other than quoted prices Included In Level 1 that are observable for the assets or UabHlty, either

directly (I.e. as prIces) or Indirectly (I.e. derived from prices).

- Level 3 - Inputs for the assets or liability that are not based on observable market data (unobservable Inputs).

2.7 Revenue Rec:ognltlon

(a) Interest Income - the effective Interest rate method

Interest income Is recorded using the effective Interest rate (EIR) method for all financial Instruments measured at amortIsed cost and

debt Instrument measured at FYTOCI. The EIR Is the rate that exactly discounts estImated future cash receipts through the expected

life of the financial Instrument or, when appropriate, a shorter period, to the net carryIng amount of the fInancial asset.

The EIR (and therefore, the amortised cost of the asset) is calculated by taking Into account any discount or premIum on acquisluon,
fees and costs that are an Integral part of the EIR. The Company recognises Interest Income using a rate of return that represents the

best estimate of a constant rate of return over the expected Ufe of the loan. Hence, it recognises the effect of potentially dIfferent

Interest rates charged at varIous stages, and other characterIstIcs of the product life cycle (Including prepayments, penalty Interest

and charges).

If expectations regarding the cash flows on the fInancIal asset are revised for reasons other than credit risk. The adjustment is booked

as a positive or negative adjustment to the carrying amount of the asset in the balance sheet wIth an increase or reduction in Interest

Income. The adjustment Is subsequently amortised through Interest Income In the statement of profit and loss.

(b) Revenue from lease rentals

Lease income is recognised In the Statement of Profit and Loss on straight line basis over the lease term, unless there Is another

systematic basts which Is more representative of the tIme pattern of the lease.

(c) Dividend Income

DIvIdend income (Including from MOcr investments) Is recognIsed when the Company's rIght to receive the payment Is established, It

Is probable that the economIc benefits associated with the dividend will flow to the entity and the amount of the divIdend can be

measured reliably. ThIs is generally when the shareholders approve the dividend.

(d) Trading Income

Trading Income Includes all gains and losses from changes In fair value and the related interest Income or expense and dividends, for

financial assets and flnancialllabllltfes held for trading.

)};?-. ..



Smartllnk Holdings Limited
Notes formlns part of the Standalone fInancial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2023
(Amount In INR,unless otherwise stated)

2.8 Taxes
Tax expense for the year, cornprtslng current tax and deferred tax, arc Included In the determination of the net profit or loss for the
year.

(a) Current Income tax
Current tax Is the amount of tax payable on the taxable Income for the year as determined In accordance with the provisions of the
Income Tax Act, 1961. Current tax assets and tax liabilities are offset where the entity has a legally enforceable right to offset end
Intends either to settle on a net basis, or to realize the asset and settle the liability simultaneously.

(b) Deferred tax
Deferred tax Is recognised on temporary differences, being differences between the carrying amount of assets and ltabtlttles and
corresponding tax bases used In the computation of taxable profit. Deferred tax Is measured using the tax rates and the tax laws
enacted or substantively enacted as at the reporting date. Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for all temporary differences,
except:

(I) Where the deferred tax liability arises from the Initial recognition of goodwill or of an asset or liability In a transaction that Is not a
business combination and, at the time of the transaction, affects neither the accounting profit nor taxable profit or loss.

(il) In respect of taxable temporary differences assocIated with Investments In subsidiaries, where the timing of the reversal of the
temporary dIfferences can be controlled and It Is probable that the temporary differences will not reverse In the foreseeable future.

Deferred tax assets are generally recognised for all deductible temporary differences to the extent that It Is probable that taxable
profits will be available against which those deductible temporary differences can be utilised. Deferred tax assets and liabilities are
offset If s,:!chItems relate to taxes on Income levied by the same governing tax laws and the Company has a legally enforceable right
for such set off.

Deferred tax assets are reviewed at each balance sheet date for their realisabllity.

Current and deferred tax are recognised In profit or loss, except when they relate to Items that are recognised In Other ComprehensIve
Income or directly In equity, In which case, the current and deferred tax are also recognised In Other Comprehensive Income or
directly In equity respectively.

2.9 Leases
The Company's lease asset classes primarily consist of leases for office and factory premises. The Company assesses whether a contract
contains a lease, at Inception of a contract. A contract Is, or contains, a lease If the contract conveys the right to control the use of an
Identified asset for a period of time In exchange for conSideration. To assess whether a contract conveys the right to control the use of
an Identified asset, the c.ompany assesses whether:
(I) the contract Involves the use of an identified asset
(ii) the Companyhas substantially all of the economic benefits from use of the asset through the period of the lease and
(III)the Company has the right to direct the use of the asset.

At the date of commencement of the lease, the Company recognizes a rlght-ot-use asset ("ROU")and a corresponding lease liability for
all lease arrangements in which It is a lessee, except for leases with a term of twelve months or less (short-term leases) and low value
leases.. for these short-term and low value leases, the Company recognizes the lease payments as an operating expense on a stralght-
line basis over the term of the lease.

Lease liability and ROUasset have been separately presented In the Balance Sheet and lease payments have been classified as
financing cash flows.

2.10 Impairment of non-financfal assets
The carrying values of assets I cash generating units at each balance sheet date are reviewed for Impairment. If any indication of
impairment exists, the recoverable amount of such assets Is estimated and Impalnment Is recognised, If the carrying amount of these
assets exceeds their recoverable amount. The recoverable amount is the higher of an assets fair value less cost of disposal and their
value In use. Value in use Is arrived at by discounting the future cash flows to their present value based on an appropriate pre-tax
discount rate to determine whether there is any Indication that those assets have suffered any impairment loss. When there Is an
Indication that an impairment loss recognised for an asset In earlier accounting periods no longer exists or may have decreased, such
reversal of Impairment loss Is recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss,except In case of revalued assets.



Smartllnk Holdings Limited
Notes forming part of the Standalone Financial State~ents for the year ended March 31, 2023
(Amount In INR,unless otherwise stated)

2.11 Provisions and contingent liabilities
Provisions are recognised when the Company has a present obligation (legal or constructive) as a result of a past event, It Is probable
that the Company will be required to settle the obligation, and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the oblfgatlon.

The amount recognised as a provision Is the best estimate of the consideration required to settle the presont obligation lit the end of
the reporting period, taking Into account the risks and uncertaintIes surrounding the obllgatfon. In the event the time value of money
Is material, provision Is carried at the present value of the cash flows required to settle the obligation.
If the effect of the time value of money is material, provisions are discounted using a current pre- tax rate that reflects, when
appropriate, the risks specific to the liability. When discounting Is used, the Increase In the provision due to the passage of time Is
recognized as a finance cost.

Contingent lIabllttles are disclosed when there Is a possible obligation arising from past events, the existence of which will be
confirmed only by the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more uncertain future events not wholly within the control of the
Company or a present obligation that arises from past events, where It Is either not probable that an outflow of resources will be
required to settle the obligation or a reliable estimate of the amount cannot be made. When there Is a possible obligation or a present
obligation In respect of which the likelihood of outflow of resources Is remote, no provision or disclosure Is made.

2.12 Cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalent In the balance sheet comprise cash lit banks and on hand and short-term deposits net of bank overdraft with
an original maturity of three months or less, which are subject to an Insignificant risk of changes In value.
For the purpose of cash flow statement, cash and cash equivalents Include cash on hand, cash In bank and short-term deposits net of
bank overdraft.

2.13 Financial instruments
A financial instrument is any contract that gives rise to a financial asset of one entity and a financial liability or equity Instrument of
another entity.

(a) Investment In subsidiaries
Interest In subsidiaries are recognised at cost and not adjusted to fair value at the end of each reporting period. Cost represents
amount paid for acquisition of the said Investments.
The Company assesses at the end of each reporting period, If there are any Indications that the said Investments may be Impaired. If
so, the Company estimates the recoverable value/amount of the Investment and provides for Impairment, If any I.e. the defiCit In the
recoverable value over cost.

(b) Other Investments and financial assets
(I) Initial recognition and measurement

At Initial recognition, financial asset Is measured at Its fair value plus, In the case of a financial asset not at fair value through profit or
loss, transaction costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition of the financial asset. Transaction costs of financial assets
carried at fair value through profit or loss are expensed In profit or loss.

(II) Subsequent measurement
For purposes of subsequent measurement, financial assets are dasslfled In following categories:
a) at amortized cost; or
b) at fair value through other comprehensive Income; or
c) at fair value through profit or loss.
The classification depends on the entity's business model for managing the financial assets and the contractual terms of the cash
flows.

Amortized cost: Assets that are held for coltection of contractual cash flows where those cash flows represent solely payments of
principal and Interest are measured at amortized cost. Interest income from these financial assets Is Included in interest income using
the effective Interest rate method (EIR).
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E.ru.!: value through profit Q.(~: Assets that do not meet the criteria (or amortized cost .or FVTOCIare measured at fair value through
profit or loss. Interest Income from these fInancial assets is included in interest Income.

Iim!.!rL Instruments: All equity Investments In scope of Ind AS 109 are measured at fair value. Equity Instruments which are held for
trading and contingent consideration recognised by an acquirer In a business combination to which Ind AS103 apptles are classlflod as
at faIr value through profit and loss (FVTPl). For all other equIty Instrumonts, the Company may rnako an Irrevocable election to
present in other comprehensive Income subsequent changes In the (aIr value. The Company makes such electIon on an lnstrurnent-by-
Instrument basis. The classtticatlon Is made on InitIal recognItion and is Irrevocable.

If the Company decides to classIfy an equity Instrument as at FVTOCI, then all fair value changes on the instrument, excluding
divIdends, are recognIzed in the OCI. There Is no recycling of the amounts from OCI to profit and loss, even on sale of Investment.
However, the Company may transfer the cumulative gaIn or loss withIn equity.

Equity instruments Included within the MPl cate;sory are measured at fair value with all changes recognized In the profit and loss.

(III) Impairment of financial assets
In accordance with Ind AS 109, Financial Instruments, the Com~any applies expected credit loss (ECl) model for measurement and
recognition of Impairment loss on financial assets.

For recognition of Impairment loss on Ilnanclal assets and risk exposure, the Company determines that whether there has been a
significant increase in the credit rIsk since Initial recognItIon. If credit risk has not Increased Significantly, 12·month ECl Is used to
provide for Impairment loss. However, If credit risk has Increased sIgnificantly, lifetime ECl 15used. If In subsequent years, credit
quality of the Instrument Improves such that there Is no longer a significant Increase In credit risk since Initial recognition, then the
entity reverts to recognizing Impairment loss allowance based on 12 month ECl.

LIfe time ECLsare the expected credit losses resulting from all possible default events over the expected life of a financial Instrument.
The 12 month ECl Is a portion of the lifetime ECl which results from default events that are possible within 12 months after the year
end.

ECl Is the difference between all contractual cash flows that are due to the Company In accordance with the contract and all the cash
flows that the entity expects to receive (I.e. all shortfalls), discounted at the original effective Interest rate (EIR). When estimating
the cash flows, an entity Is required to consider all contractual terms of the financial Instrument (Including prepayment, extension
etc.) over the expected life of the financial Instrument. However, In rare cases when the expected life of the financial Instrument
cannot be estimated reliably, then the entity Is required to use the remaining contractual term of the financial Instrument.

In general, It is presumed that credit risk has significantly Increased since Initial recognition If the payment Is more than 30 days past
due.

ECl impairment loss allowance (or reversal) recognized during the year Is recognized as Income/expense In the statement of profit and
loss. In balance sheet Eel for financial assets measured at amortized cost Is presented as an allowance, I.e. as an Integral part of the
measurement of those assets in the balance sheet. The allowance reduces the net carrying amount.

(iv) Derecognltion of financial assets
A financial asset Is derecognlzed only when
a) the rights to receive cash flows from the financial asset Is transferred or
b) retains the contractual rights to receive the cash flows of the financial asset, but assumes a contractual obligation to pay the cash
flows to one or more recipients.

Where the financial asset Is transferred then In that case financial asset Is derecognlzed only If substantially all risks and rewards of
ownership of the financial asset Is transferred. Where the entity has not transferred substantially all risks and rewards of ownership of
the financial asset, the financial asset Is not derecognlzed.

(e) financial flabfffties
(I) Initial recognition and measurement

Financlaillabfllties are classified, at initial recognition, as financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss and at amortized cost,
as appropriate.

All financial liabllfties are recognized Initially at fair value and, in the case of borrowings and payables, net of directly attributable

~

transaction costs.
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(II) Subsequent measurement
The measurement of financial liabilities depends on their ctassmcenon, as described below:

Financialllabllltles at fair value through profit or loss
Financial lIablll~les at fair value through profit or loss Include finandalllablllties held for trading end financial liabilities deslgnatod
upon initial recognition as at fair value through profit or loss. Separated embedded derivatives are also classlfled as held for trading
unless they are designated as effective hedging Instruments. Gains or losses on liabilities held for trading are recognized In tho
Statement of Profit and loss.

Loans and borrowings
After Initial recognition, Interest·bearlng loans and borrowings are subsequently measured at amortized cost using the fiR method.
Gains and losses are recognized In Statement of Profit and Loss when the liabilities are derecognlzed as well as throuQh the EIR
amortization process, Amortized cost Is calculated by taking Into account any discount or premium on acquisition and fees or costs that
are an integral part of the EIR.The EIRamortization Is Included as finance costs In the Statement of Profit and loss.

(III) Derecognition
A flnandal liability Is derecognlzed when the obligation under the liability Is discharged or cancelled or expires. When an existing
financial liability Is replaced by another from the same lender on substantially different terms, or the terms of an existing liability are
substantially modified, such an exchange or modification Is treated as the derecognltlon of the original liability and the recognition of
a new liability. The difference In the respective carrying amounts Is recognized In the Stat~ment of Profit and loss as finance costs.

(d) Financial Guarantee Contracts
Financial guarantees are Initially recognised in the financial statements (within 'other lIabHftles') at fair value. Subsequently, the
liability is measured at the hIgher of the amount of loss allowance determined as per Impairment requirements of Ind AS 109 and the
amount recognised less cumulative amortIsation.
Any Increase in the liability relating to financial guarantees Is recorded In the statement of profit and loss In credit loss expense. The
premium received Is recognised in the statement of profit and loss In net fees and commission Income on a straight line basis over the
life of the guarantee.

(e) Offsetting financial Instruments
Financial assets and liabilities are offset and the net amount Is reported In the balance sheet where there is a legally enforceable right
to offset the recognized amounts and there Is an Intention to settle on a net basis or realize the asset and settle the liability
simultaneously. The legally enforceable right must not be contingent on future events and must be enforceable In the normal course of
business and in the event of default, Insolvency or bankruptcy of the Company or the counterparty.

2.14 Employee Benefits
(a) Short-term obligations

liabilities for wages and salaries, Including non- monetary benefits that are expected to be settled wholly within 12 months after the
end 01 the year In which the employees render the related service are recognized In respect of employees' services up to the end of
the year and are measured at the amounts expected to be paid when the liabilities are settled. The liabilities are presented as current
employee benefit obligations In the balance sheet.

(b) long-term employee benefit obligations
(I) Defined contributIon plan

Provident Fund: The Company's contributions to statutory provident fund In accordance with the Employees Provident Fund and
Miscellaneous Provisions Act, 1952 which is a defined contribution plan, are charged to the Statement of Profit and loss in the period
of accrual. The Company has no obligation, other than the contribution payable to the provident fund.

Employee's State Insurance Scheme: Contribution towards employees' state Insurance scheme Is made to the regulatory authorities,
where the Company has no further obligations. Such benefits are classttled as Defined Contribution plan as the Company does not carry
any further obligations, apart from the contributions made on a monthly basis which are charged to the Statement of Profit and loss.
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(II) Defined benefit plans
Gratuity:
The Company provides for gratuity, a defined benefit plan (the 'Gratuity Plan; covering ollglble employees In accordance with tho
Payment of Gratuity Act, 1972. The GratuJty Plan provides n lump sum payment to vosted omployeos lit renrement, donth,
Incapacitation or termination of employment, of an amount based on the respoctlve employoe's snlary. The Compllny's liability Is
actuartally determined (using the Projected Unit Credit method) at the ond of each YOllr,

Remeasurements, comprising of actuarial gains and losses and the return on plan assets (excluding net Interest) Is rellected
Immediately In the balance sheet with a charge/credit recognised In Other Comprehensive Income ("OC'")In the period In which they
occur.

Remeasurements recognised In OClls reflected Immediately In surplus In statement Ofprofit and loss account and Is not reclassified to
profit or loss In subsequent periods.

(c) Other long term employee benefits:
Company's liabilities towards compensated absences to employees wt1lch are expected to be nvalled or encashed beyond 12 months
Irorn the end of the year are accrued on the basis of valuations, as at the Balance Sheet date, carried out by an Independent actuary
using Projected UnIt Credit Method.

Actuarial gaIns and losses comprtse experience adjustments and the effects of changes In actuarial assumptions and are recognised
immediately in the statement of profit and loss.

2,15 Earnings Per Share
Basic earnings per share Is calculated by dividIng the net profit or loss for the year attributable to equity shareholders by the weighted
average number of equIty shares outstandIng durtng the year. Earnings consldered In ascertainIng the Company's earnIngs per share Is
the net profit or loss for the year after deducting preference dividends and any attributable tax thereto for the year. The Weighted
average number of equity shares outstanding during the year and for all the years presented Is adjusted for events, such as bonus
shares, other than the conversion of potentIal equity shares, that have changed the number of equity shares outstandIng, without a
corresponding change In resources.

For the purpose of calculating diluted earnIngs per share, the net profit or loss for the year attributable to equity shareholders and the
weighted average number of shares outstanding during the year Is adjusted for the effects of all dllutlve potential equIty shares.

2.16 Borrowing Costs
Borrowingcosts consist of Interest and other costs that an entity Incurs In connection with the borrowing of funds. Borrowingcosts also
Indude exchange dIfferences to the extent regarded as an adjustment to the borrowing costs.

All borrowing costs are charged to the Statement of Profit and loss except:
a) Borrowing costs directly attrIbutable to the acquisition or construction of assets that necessarily takes a substantial period of time
to get ready for its Intended use are capitalised as part of the cost of such assets.

b) Expenses incurred on raiSing long term borrowings are a.mortlsed using effective interest rate method over the period of borrowings.

Investment Income earned on the temporary investrnent of funds of specific borrowings pendIng their expenditure on qualifying assets
Is deducted trom the borrowing costs eligible for cepnausauon.

2.17 Dividend on ordinary shares
The Company recognises a liability when the distribution Is authorised by the shareholders. A corresponding amount Is recognised
directly in equity.

2.18 Roundi.ngoff amounts
All amounts disclosed In ffnanc1al statements and notes have been rounded off to the nearest lakhs, unless otherwise stated.

3 SIgnIficant accounting judgments, estImates and assumptions
In the preparation of the financIal statements, the Company makes judgements, estimates and assumpnons about the carrying amount of
assets and liabilities that are not readily apparent from other sources. The estimates and assocIated assumptions are based on historical
experience and other factors that are considered to be relevant. Actual results may differ from these estimates.
Estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accountfng estimates are recognised prospectively.
Information about assumptions, judgements and estimation uncertaInties that have a significant risk of resulting In a material adjustment In
the year ending March 31,2023 are as below:
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(a) Useful life of Property, plant and equipment, Investment Property and Intangible assets and Its expected residual value

Property, plant and equipment, Investment Property and other Intangible assets represent a sIgnificant proportIon of tho assets of tho
Company. Depreciation and amortisation Is derived after determinIng an estimate of an asset's expected useful life and the eXI)Gctod
residual value at the end of Its life. The useful lives and residual values of Company's assets are determined by management at the
time the asset Is acquired and reviewed periodically, IncludIng at each financial year end. The lives are based on historical experience
with similar assets as well as anticipation of future events, which may Impact their life, such as changes In technology.

(b) Fair value measurements and valuation processes

The fair value of Imanctal Instruments Is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paId to transfer a liability 'In an orderly
transaction In the principal (or most advantageous) 'market at the measurement date under current market conditions (t.e., an exit
price) regardless of whether that prke Is directly observable or estimated usIng another valuation technique. When the fair values of
financial assets and financial liabilities recorded In the balance sheet cannot be derived from active markets, they are determined
using a variety of valuation techniques that Include the use of valuation models. The Inputs to these models are taken from observable
markets where pOSSible, but where thls Is not feaSible, estimation Is requIred In establishing fair values. Judgements and estimates
Include considerations of liquIdIty and model Inputs related to Items such as credit risk (both own and counterparty), funding value
adjustments, correlation and volatility for further details about determination of tatr value.

(c) Actuarial Valuation

The determination of Company's lIabllfty towards defined benefit obligation to employees Is made through Independent actuarial
valuatfon Including determination of amounts to be recognIsed In the Statement of ProfIt and Loss and In Other ComprehensIve
Income, Such valuation depend upon assumptions determined after taking Into account discount rate, salary growth rate, expected
rate of return, mortality and attrttlon, rate. Due to the compiexntes Involved In the valuation and Its tons-term nature, a defined
benefit obligation Is highly sensitive to changes In these assumptions. Informatfon about such valuation Is provided In notes to the
financial statements.

(d) ImpaIrment of non-financial assets

In assessing Impairment, management estimates the recoverable amount of each asset or cash-generating units based on expected
future cash flows and uses an Interest rate to discount them. Estimation uncertainty relates to assumptions about future operating
results and the determination of a suitable discount rate.

(e) EffectIve Interest Rate (EIR) method

The Company's EIR methodology, recognises Interest Income / expense using. II rate of return that represents the best estimate of a
constant rate of return over the expected behavioural life of loans given / taken and recognises the effect of potentially different
Interest rates at various stages and other characteristics of the financial Instruments.
This estimation, by nature, requires an element of judgement regarding the expected behaviour and life-cycle of the Instruments, as
well expected changes to India's base rate and other fee Income/expen~e that are Integral parts of the Instrument.

(f) Impairment of financial asset

The Company recognizes loss allowances for Expected Credit Losses (ECL) on Its financial assets measured at amortized cost and Fair
Value through Other Comprehensive Income (MOCI) except Investment In equity Instruments. At each reporting date, the Company
assesseswhether the above financial assets are credit- Impaired. A financial asset Is 'credlt- Impaired' when one or more events that
have a detrlmentallmpact on the estImated future cash flows of the financial asset have occurred.
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4 Ministry of Corporate Affairs ("MCA") notifies new standard or amendments to the existing standards under Companies (Indian Accounting
Standards) Rules as Issued from time to time. On March 31, 2023, MCAamended the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Amendmont
Rules, 2023, applicable from April 1, 2023, as below:

(I) IndAS 1 • Disclosure of material accounting policies:
1he amendments related to shifting of disclosure of erstwhHe "significant accounting policies" to "material accounting ootlctes" In tho
notes to the financial statements requiring companies to reframe their accounting policies to make them more "entity specttfc, This
amendment aligns with the "material" concept already required under International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS). The
(ompany does not expect this amendment to have any slgniftcant Impact In Its finanCial statements.

(11) Ind AS8 • Definition of accounting estimates:
lhe amendments will help entitles to distinguish between accounting pctlctes and accounting estimates. The definition of a "change In
accounting estimates" has been replaced with a definition of "accounting estimates." Under the new definition, accounting estimates
are "monetary amounts In financial statements that are subject to measurement uncertainty." Entities develop accounting estimates If
accounting policies require Items In financial statements to be measured In a way that Involves measurement uncertainty. The
Company does not expect this amendment to have any significant Impact In Its financial statements

(ttl) Ind AS 12 - Income Taxes
The amendments narrowed the scope of the recognition exemption In paragraphs 15 and 24 of Ind AS 12. At the date of transition to
Ind ASs, a first-time adopter shall recognize a deferred tax asset to the extent that It Is probable that taxable profft will be available
against which the deductible temporary difference can be utilized. Similarly, a deferred tax liability for all deductible and taxable
temporary differences assocIated wIth:

a) Right-of-use assets and lease liabIlities

b) DecommissIoning, restoration and Similar liabilities and the corresponding amounts recognized as part of the cost of the related
asset.-.
Therefore, If a company has not yet recognised deferred tax on rlght·of·use assets and lease liabilities or has recognIsed deferred tax
on net basis, the same need to recognize on gross basis based on the carrying amount of rlght·of·use assets and lease liabilities.

(Iv) Ind AS 103 - Common control Business Combination
The amendments modify the disclosure requirement for business combInation under common control In the ftrst financial statement
following' the busIness combination. It requires to dIsclose the date on Which the transferee obtains control of the transferor Is
required to be disclosed.
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5 Cash and cash equivalents

31.10

Particulars
Aut

March 31, 2023
Aut

March 31,2022

2.01 2.22Cash on hand
Balances with banks

On current accounts 33.50 28.88
35.51Total

6 Bank balances other than Cash and cash equivalent

803.58

Particulars
Aut

March 31, 2023
Aut

March 31, 2022

In Fixed depostt with maturity for more than 12 months'
Accrued interest on fixed deposit
Unpaid dividend accounts

768.66
33.08

1.84

1,044.26
34.18
4.14

1,082.58Total

1. Includes INR72.45 lakhs (March 31, 2022 INR72.45 lakhs) held as margin money against bank guarantee.
2. Includes INRNIL(March 31,2022 INR330.00 lakhs) held against corporate guarantee to bank for credit facilities availed by
olglsol Systems limited.

3. Includes INR660.00 lakhs (March 31,2022 INR610 lakhs) held against corporate guarantee to bank for credit facilities availed
by Synegra EMSlimited.

7 Receivables

As at As at
Particulars March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022

Others Receivables
Considered good, unsecured (Refer Note 37) 55.36 75.38

From related parties :
OlglsolSystems limited 16.98 14.26

Synegra EMSLimited 30.11 25.44

Telesmart SCSlimited 32.72
47.09 72.42

From others: 8.27 2.96

Total Receivables 55.36 75.38

Receivables ageing

Particulars
Aut As at

March 31, 2023 March 31,2022
(I) Undisputed Trade receivables - considered good

Unbilled Dues
Not Due 1.58 1.65

Less than 6 months 52.13 15.57

6 months- 1 year 0.03 0.60

1·2 years 1.62 44.61

2·3 years 12.95
More than 3 years

Total 55.36 75.38

There are no dues from director or other officer of the company or any firm or private company in which any director Is a
partner, a director or a member, except as disclosed in note 37.
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8 Other Financial assets

Aut
March 31, 2022Particulars

As at
March 31, 2023

Security Deposits (Gross)
Less: Provision for Impairment loss
Security Deposits (Net)
Advance to employees

7.93 31.92
(7.99)

7.93
1.45

23.93
1.30

Total

9 Current Tax assets (Net)

9.38 25.23

As at
March 31,2022Particulars

As at
March 31, 2023

Total

Advance income tax (net of provIsions for taxation of INR1,051.50 lakhs (March 31,
2022: INR1,966.33 lakhs)

147.21 56.75

147.21

..

56.75



SmarUlnk Holdings limIted

Notes lormlng part of the Standalone FInancial Statements for the yoar ended March 31, 1023

(Amount In INR lakin, unless otherwise stated)

10 Invostmonts

15,047.52

Particulars
AHt

March 31, 2023
Aset

March 31,2022

Invostmonts measured at Cost

Subsldlnrlcs 7,031.71 6.1~0.86

Invostmonts measured at amortised cost

Debl securmes
Flxod Deposits

4,551.90

1,537.31

5,0$6.62

Invostments measured at Fair veiue throush Profit or loss

Mllhlnl funds 6.191.41 5.915.92

Invostments measured at Fair Value through Other Comprohonslve Incomo

Dobt securttres 49.30
Tolal • Gross (A) 19,312.33 17,162.70

Loss: Allowance for Impairment loss (B) (1,790.21) (2,115.18)

Total· Not (A)-(B) 17,522.12 15,047.52
Investments outside India

Invostm~nt5 In India 17,522.12

Dotalls of Investments •

Amount
Aset

March 31, 2022

lH.09

1 Invostments measured at Cost
Investments In Equity shares of subsidiaries (Unquoted):
(Fully paid up)
Olglsol Systems limited (reler loot note 1)

Synegra EMSLimited

Telesmart SCS Limited (refer foot note 1)

Particulars Faco Valuo Asat
March 31, 2023

Aut
March 31, 2022

Aset
March 31, 2023

1 4.29.59.857 4,10,00,000 4.471.12 4,288.36

10 2,50,00,000 1,50,00,000 2,560.59 1,555.96

10 28,80,000 296.54

7,031.71 6,140.86
(1,790.21) (2,065.88)

5,241.50 4,074.98

Tolal . Gross

Less: Allowance for Impairment loss

Total· Net

2 Investments measured at Amortised Cost

Investments In bonds (Quoted) (refor note 3):

Cholamandalam Perp NCOSeries POliO 12.90%

Tata Power Company Limited 2072 . NCO10.75%
Canara Dank B\)Perpetuet- 9.55%
Cholamandalam Investment and Finance Company Limited . NCO
8.80%

Mehlndra Rural housing Finance Ltd 2017 • NCO8.5~

HOFCSank Limited Perpetual· 80 8.85%

Teta Motors Finance limited Perpetual NCO·11.1~

SajaJ Finance Ltd 2027 • NCO8.15!1;

Tata Capital Financial Services Limited 2022 . NCO8.45%

L6.TInfrastructure Finance Company Limited ·NCD7.65%

l&.T Infrastructure Finance Company Limited· NCO8.81%

UP Power Corporation Limited· NCO 10.15%

North Eastern Electric Power Corporation limited· NCO7.68;1;

ICICIBank 008 tier ·110.00%

Tata Sons Ltd NCO· 9.54%

M&MFinanCial Services ltd 2031 ·7.35%
Slate Sank of India Unsecured Rated Listed Additional Tier I Non
Convertible Bond • 7.72%

8.50% Muthoot Flncorp limited

Punjab National Bank Tier II • 8.93%

Kotek Mahindra Bank Limited Basel iii perp . 8.10%

State Bank of India perp . 100 year· 7.55%

lo.T Finance limited Tier II (series's)· 9.95%

Punjab National Bank (TIERII) Bonds· 9.20%

lo. T Finance Limited MLD

TATACapital Financial Services limited· 7.89"

laT Finance Limited· 8.75%

Mahlndra & Mahlndra Financial Services l TO • 7.9~

Bank Of India (Series XI) . 9.8~

PHS Housing Finance Limited Bonds (Serles XVlI.B)• 9.48:11

l f1 T Finance limited· 8.90"

5.00,000
10,00,000

10,O(),OOO 100.5810

30

30

10.00,000 320.90

320.94

342.74

50.63

102.29

206.13

210.83

1!.\\EO *

241.65
590.01

100.59

320.90

320.94

302.57

343.01

50.63
210.01
312.94

134.60

102.68

206.34

348.54
163.53

210.83

314.30

100.65

103.85

202.68

204.52

170.85
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Ho. Amount
Particulars Face Valuo Aut Aut Aut Aut

March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022 March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022

Fixed Doposlts (Unquoted)

Fixed Doposit with Oa,a, Finance Limited (reler loot note 2) 15,00,00,000 3 1,'37,31
1,537,31

3 Invostmonts moasured at Fair Value through Profit or Loss

.....ulual lunds (Unquotod)

HDre Mutual Fund

I~OFCLiquid Fund· Dlroct Plan· Growth 1,000 57M30 24,02

HDfC Corflorat~ Oond Fund· Direct Plan' Growth 10 3,90,996,466 ),90,996,~66 107,99 10).54

ICiCIMutual FUl'd

ICICIpflldantlal &anklns a PSUDebt Fund· Growth 10 20,67,5H,707 20,67,524,707 !l69,~" ~~O,J.I

ICICIPrudential Corporate Bond Fund· Growth 10 21,17,912,167 24,35,703,391 m,89 576,19

ICICIPrudontlal Corporate Bond Fund· Dlrocl Plan· Growlh 10 4,93,524,038 4,93,524,038 128,45 121.34

ICICIPrudential Short Torm Fund· Growth Option 10 40,817,002 2,50,792,088 20,62 119.85
ICICIbetence Advantage Fund· Growth 10 78,693,356 51,205,961 4',47 2',37

Kotak Mahlndra Mutual Fund

Kotok Bond Fund Short Term- Growth· ReBular Plan 10 15,04,985,518 '5,04,985,"8 663,94 610,93

Blrla Sun life Mutual Fund

Blrla Sun life ((oaUna rate fund 'arowth ·re8111~rplnn 10 76,645,066 1,27,134.481 224,53 353,32

Adllya Dlrla sun life floating rote rund growth direct plan 100 1,75,327.H2 525,26

SBIMutual rund

S81Short Term Debt fund,RcBular Plan·Growth 10 40.77,363.4'2 40,77,36),452 1,106,21 1,061.98

Franklin Templeton Mutual Fund

Franklin IndIa Short term Income Plan· Retail Plan· Searegated 1.000 13.649.982 18,290.977 12,75
Portfolio 2 (10,90" Vodafone Idea Ltd 02Sep2023 (PIC 03Sep2021) •
Growth OptIon)

Invesco Mutual Fund

Invesco India Ultra Short Term Fund Plan Growth 10 10,022,335 10,022,335 230,95 220.30

Invelco India Short Term Fund· Regular Plan 10 7,n','41 7,n5,541 254.42 2405

HSBCMutual Fund

HS8C Corporate Bond Fund· Direct Growth ( Formerly L 8 T Triple
10 2,52,757,312 9,85,570,099 16M4 619,53Ace 80nd Fund· Direct Plan·Growth)

HS8C Short Duration Fund • Direct Growth (Formerly L a T Short
10 28,97,136,850 28,97,136,850 68D.93 655,07Term Bond Fund· Direct Plan· Growth)

Bandhan Mutual Fund

8andhan BankIng a PSU Debt Fund • Direct Plan· Growth ( Formerly
10 19.40,480.415 19,40,480.0415 4104.35 395.84IDFCBanklns a PSU Debt Fund· DIrect Plen • Growth)

Bandhan &ond Fund· Short Term Plan· Growth ( Formerly 10FC Bond
10 33,384,3049 16,36Fund· Short Term Plan· Growth)

Bandhan DynamIc bond fund • Growth ' rCBular plan ( Formerly IDFC
10 10,77,845,928 309,21DynamIc 80nd lund growth regular)

Ed.lwelss Mutual Fund

Edetwelu NIfTY PSU Bond Plus SOL Index Fund • 2026 DIrect Plan
10 18.37,832,906 18,37.832.906 203,46 197.39Growth

6,191.41 5,915,92

',' .
i : "Ii",

\,

. '.
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Smartllnk lioldlngs Limited

Netes formln8Pftrt of the Standalone Financial Statoments for the year ended March 3', 2023

(Amounlln INRLokhl, unlessotherw1se sloled)

Amount
Partleulan FICO Valuo Aut

March 3', 2023
Aul

March 3', 1022
AI al AI AI

Mareh 3', lOll March 31, 1022

Protoron<. Shares (Unquoted)
InfrftStrllclure Leasing and Financial 5oNleos LImited, Preference
Sharos· 16.46% HO ~9.JO7,500
TOtA\ . Gross

Lou: AlIC7fIAneefor Impairmenllosl
~9.J0

(~9.30)

Tolal· Nel

Tolallnveslments' Gross
Totollmpalrment

TOlallnvestments· Net

~,)M.'2
6,'91.~1

Aggregote book value of:

QlJotod Inv!ltments

Unquoted Investments

5,O~.62

9,331.20
~,551.90

12,'92.16

Atarogato markot valuo of:

~uoted Inv!ltments

Unquotod I~veltments

~,8~O.31

5,9t:l.92

foolnote:-
I Pursuant te me approval of Scheme ot Amalgamallon by National Company LAWTribunal· Mumbal Dranch vldo ordor dAtod March 0), 202) ono of the lubsldlary

Telelmart KS Limited (Telclmart) Is amalgamated with another subsidiary OIBIIOISystoms Llmltod (OISllol) w.o.f April 01,2022. Tho Scheme hOI become effectlvo on
tho dato of filing with Registrar of Companies wnlch II May 04,1023. AI per tho SCheme OIBllol wlllislue 19,59,857 sharos (lOCO value of INR 11·) with Ihare lair
v31ued at INR8.41 .The shares pending allotmont es at the year end have been allotted by tho Doard 01 Directors 01 OIBIIOISYltoms Limited at Its meellns held on May
17,2023.

1 Fixed deposits are pledsed 8salnlt Loan obtained by Dlglsol Systems LImited (Wholly owned sublldlary) (March 31, 2022 INR NIL).

J Investment In Bonds Includes accrued Interest INR 174.68 In the current year and 210.8) lakhs In the previoul yur.



--



-;;;:1
c c
o 41._ E
tlt(
-?:S
0<

.:.:

.2~~----~-------------------r~
ti
%

c
o
P
!IS

'gl---+---------+-I..
c..
41
C

O:~~~~~~~
~M~8~N~Ui~

_N~'_M""

~

-;;;:1
c c
.$! 41

tlS
:::> '"

-n a1:s
o c <
~~----~----------------------_4~
8..
~ ..... :1

'" cC 41
,2 E

:6~
"0 ''''''
<~

N
N
o

...N
!IS •

~o
1:
a.
<

c:~~s~~:g~
t:i~~~~~g~r:_- __ MM-

...
c~~~----r--------------------+-,
c..
'S
<:T
QI

"0
C
!IS...
C
!IS
Q.

}?;~;;~~~Ui~
~M8~~~~~
N "¢... N ..- M M

~

,...
N
o

...N
!IS ,...

~o
1:
~

~~~--+-----------H...
41
%

..... '"II> ...
C C
o 41tis

.:i! ~ .,~

g ~ ~

~~--~-----------~'"..o..
o

N
o

...N., .
~;;

1:
c..-c

c;~~~~~8~

~~~~~~~~
,...

N
00
.....
N,...

NOO
Min

~g
"'.,...

N....
.,.;



M

N
o

..,<-4

'" .
~O

:c
Co

oCt



' ~~ ....... '""""..._._._....._ ~, ..... ~a b 1 ••... ~,,___._..._ ..

Smartlt
Notes f
(Amoun

14 Ot

Pr
Su
Ad
Ba

T

15 T

T

T
T

Ba
an
no

(I)

To

16 B

B

U

T

17 0

De
E
Un
FI
As
T.

nk Holdings limited
ormlng part of the Standalone Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2023
t In INR Lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

her Non Financial Assets

Particulars

epal expenses
rptus In Gratuity fund (funded) (Refer note 35)
vance to vendor
lance with government authoritfes

Aut Aut
Mnrch 31, 2023 March 31, 2022

6.61 10.90
12.50 5.17
7.33 7.93

51.17 40.65
77.61 64,65

As lit Aut
March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022

115.64 44.44
115.64 44,44

otal

rade Poyables

Particulars

otal outstanding dues of micro enterprises and small enterprises

otal outstanding dues of creditors other than micro enterprises and small enterprises
otal

sed on the Information available with the Company, there are no outstanding dues lind payments made to any supplier of goods
d services beyond the specified period under Micro, Small lind Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006 (MSMEDAct]. There Is
Interest payabie or paid to any suppliers under the said Act.

Pllrtlculars

Others (undisputed)
UnbllIed Dues
Payable Not Due
Less than 1 year
1·2 years
2·3 years
More than 3 years

Aut As at
March 31, 2023 March 31,2022

20.84 23.22

92.11 20.59
2.69 0.29

0.31
0.03

115.64 44. 4

As at As lit
March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022

147.31 180.22
147.31 180.22

tal

orrowlngs (Other than Debt Securities)

Particulars

orrowlng measured at amortised cost
nsecured
Lease liabilities

otal

ther Flna:-tcialliabillties

Particulars
Asat As at

March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022

posits 20.17 4.37
mployee Payable 33.97 33.96

paid, dividend" 1.84 4.14
nanclal Guarantee Obligation 12.71 2.38
set Retirement Obligation 8.58 7.92

otal 77.27 52.77
During the year INR1.42 lakhs (March 31,2022 INR 1.43 takhs) was transferred to the Investor Education and Protection Fund .
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mlng part of the Standalone Flnancfal Statements for tho year ended March 31, 2023
n INR lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

Islons

Particulars
As at

March 31, 2023
As at

March 31, 2022

Islon for leave encashment (unfunded) 5.07 5.35
5.355.07

or Non Flnancfal lIabfUties

Particulars
Aut

March 31, 2023
Aut

March 31, 2022
utory dues payable

received In advance
4.14
6.34

3.35
0.45

ty Share Capital
Company has only one class of equity share capital having a par value of INR2/- per share, referred to herein as equity shares.

As at As at
March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022

Particulars

3.8010.48

horlzed
,00,000 Equity Sharesof INR2/- each

ed. SubscrIbed and paid up
5,000 Equity Sharesof INR2/- each, fully patd-op

NIL (Previous Year:33,25,OOO)Equity Sharespurchased under Buy-back scheme

700.00 700,00
700.00 700.00

199.50 266.00

66.50
199.50 199,50

As at Aut
March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022

99,75,000 1,33,00,000

(33,25,000)
99,75,000 99,75,000

cncltlatlon of equIty shares outstandIng at the begInnIng and at the end of the year

PartIculars

tandIng at the beginning of the year
Issueddunng the year

: Buybackduring the year
standing at the end of the year

Board of Directors of the Company at Its meeting held on December 04, 2020 and the Shareholders of the Company through postal ballot on 10th
ruary, 2021 had approved the proposal of the Company to buy-back upto 33,25,000 fully paid-up equity shares of INR2/- each at a prke of INR95/-

hare (aggregatIng to 17.43%of the fully paid-up Equity Share CapItal and Free Reservesof the Company), payable In cash for an aggregate amount
xceeding INR31,58,75,000/- from the existing shareholders of the Company under Tender Offer Mechanism. The offer was kept open from Apn130,
to May 14,2021. The Company had bought back 33,25,000 Equity Sharesand the shares were extinguished on May 27,2021.

ts, preferences and restrictions attached to shares
Company has only one class of equity shares having a par value of INR 2/· per share. Each shareholder Is entitled for one vote per share held. The
end proposed by the board of directors Is subject to the approval of the shareholders In the ensuing annual general meetfng, except in the case of
m dividend. In the event of liquidation of company, the equity shareholders are entitled to receive the remaining assets of the company after
buttons of all preferentIal amounts, in proportion to their shareholding.

Name of the shareholder

lis of shares held by shareholders holding more than 5%of the aggregate shares In the Company
As at

March 31, 2023

KamalakshaR. Naik

As at
M!lrch 31, 2022

No of shares %of holding No of shares %of holding
46,74,160
9,34,833
7,94,608. lakshana A. Sharma

. Sudha K. Naik
7,94,608

~ 4,67,417

48.00,163 48.12~
9,34,833 9.37%

7.97%
4.69%

Arat! K. Nalk
46.86%

9.37%
7.97%
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nk Holdings LImited
ormlng part of the Standalone Financial Statements for the year endod March 31, 2023
t In INR Lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

grogete number of shares bought back during the period of five years Immodlatol

Particulars
No of sharos

bought-back during
No of sharos
outstllndlng

33,25,000
03.2023
03.2022
03.2021
03.2020
03.2019

99,75,000
99,75,000

1,33,00,000
1,33,00,000
1,69,50,000

36,50,000
56,00,000

per records of the Company, Including Its register of shareholders/members nnd other declarations received (rom shareholders rognrdlng oonof1clnl
erest, the above shareholdlng represents both legal and beneficial ownerships of shares.

tails of Shares held by Promoters at the end of the yeer

Promoter name

Aut
March 31, 2023

Kamalaksha R. Nalk
Arat! K. Na!:<

rs. Lakshana A. Sharma
rs. Sudha K. Nalk

Amlt Vlrendra Sharma
R Nalk HUF

48,00,163
9,34,833
7,94,608

4,67,417
17,891

1,00,493

% Change durIng
the year

No. Of Shares " of total shares

2.7~48.12%
9.37%
7.97%
4.69%
0.18% 100"

tal

Promoter name

As at
March 31, 2022

No. Of Shares " of total shares
" Change during

the year
46,74,160 46.86% 29.71%

9,34,833 9.37% 29.71%
7,94,608 7.97% 29.71"
4,67,417 4.69% 29.71%
1,00,493 1.01% 29.71%

69,71,511 69.90%

Kamalaksha R. Nalk
Aratl K. Nalk

s. Lakshana A. Sharma
rs. Sudha K. Nalk
R Nalk HUF
tal

her equity

Partfcu lars

eneral Reserve
rplus In Statement of Profit and loss account
atutory Reserve
pltal Contribution
pltal Redemption Reserve

FVTOCIReserve on Financial Instruments
FVTOCIReserve on defined benefit plans

otal

As at As at
Mefch 31, 2023 Merch 31, 2022

5,567.20 5,567.20
12,566.18 11,146.92

1,254.32 899.50
92.95 92.95

400.60 400.60
2.27

4.02 0.57
19,885.27 18,110.01

• I • '\.',

~.... "',
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Smartlfnk Holdings Limited
Notes forming part of the Standalone Flnenclet Statements for the year ended March 31, 2023
(Amount In INRLakhs, unlessotherwise stated)

(A) General Reserve (GR)"

Partlculers
As lit

March 31, 2023
Aut

March 31, 2022

5,567.20Opening balance
Add: Transfer from Surplus In Profit and Lossaccount

5,567.20

Closing balance 5,567.205,567.20

• General reserve Is free reserve available for distribution as recommended by Board In nccordance with requirements of the
CompaniesAct, 2013

(6~ Surplus I (deficIt) In the Statement of Profit and Loss·

Partlcu lars
Aut

March 31,2023
Aut

March 31, 2022

Opening balance
Add : Net profit 1 (loss) for the yo!ar

12,693.96
2,895.35

11,146.92
1,774.08

Amount evailable for appropriations 12,921.00 15,589.31
Less: Appropriations
Less:Transferred to Statutory Reserve

Less: Paid to Shareholders for purchase of shares under buyback scheme
Less: BuybackTax

(354.82) (579.07)
(3,158.75)

(704.57)
Closing balance 11,146.9212,566.18

, This represents the cumulative profits of the Company. It wlll be utfllzed In accordance wfth the provisions of the Companies Act,
2013.

(C) Statutory Reserve (As per section 45 IC of the Reserve Blink of India Act 1934)*

Particulars
As at

March 31, 2022
As at

March 31, 2023

Opening balance
Add: Transfer from surplus In statement of profft and loss account

320.43
579.07

899.50
354.82

Closlnl! balance 1,254.32 899.50

'This represents provision created under section 45·!C of the Reserve Bankof India Act, 1934. It wfll be utilized In accordance with
the provlstons of the Reserve BlInk of India Act, 1934

(D) Capital Contribution·

Particulars
As at

March 31, 2023
As at

March 31, 2022

92.95Opening balance
Add I (less): Changeduring Lhl! yl!il'

92.95

Closing balance 92.9592.95

, RepresentsImpact of interest on loan to subsidiaries by promoters at lower than market rate of interest.

(E) Capital Redemption Reserve·

Particulars
As at

Milrch 31, 2023
As at

March 31, 2022

334.10Openingbalance
Add: NIL Equity Shares(March 31, 2022 33,25,000 ) of INR2/· each purchased under
buyback scheme

400.60

66.50
Closing balance 400.60400.60

'This Is on account of transfer towards buyback of equity shares. It wfll be utilized In accordance wfth the provisions of the
CompaniesAct, 2013.



Smartlink Holdings LimIted
Notes forming part of the Standalone Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, ~023
(Amount In INR lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

(F) MOCI Reserve on financial Instruments·

Particulars

2.27

Aut
March 31, 2023

Aut
March 31, 2022

Opening balance
Add I (less): Changeduring the year

2.27
(2.27)

2.27

Closing balance

OpenIng balance
Add I (less): Change during the year

• Represents changes In the faIr value of certain Investments In debt securities. These chnnges are accumulated within the MOCI
reserve within equIty. The Company transfers amounts from this reserve to Surplus In the Statement of Profit and Loss when the
relevant debt securities are derecognised.

Closing balance

(G) FVTOCIReserve on defined benefit plans·

Particulars

0.57

Aut
Mllrch 31,2023

As at
March 31, 2022

0.S7
3.45

2.89

(2.32)

• Represents remeasurements l.e. actuarial gains and losses and the return on ptan assets, excluding amounts Included In the net

mterest "'P'"'' on tho oct"no,' boo.,ll '~~Utyare recognised; th',~;;::,,~om, ,,,"" ,r pront,,' ,,",

~
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formIng part of the Standalone FInancial Statements for the year endl)d March 31, 2023
It In INRLakhs, unless otherwIse stated)

Interest Income

For the Year Ended For the Year Endod
March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022

2.53 4.78
2.53 4.78

349.68 412.24
37.18 42.88
38.34 6.24
0.24 0.60

425.44 461.96
427.97 466.74

Particulars

On financial assets measured at FVTOCI
Interest on preference shares

On financIal assets measured at amortIsed cost
Interest on bonds
Interest on deposlts with banks
Interest on deposIts wIth financIal Institutions
Other Interest Income

Total

Fees and commission Income

Particulars
For the Year Ended

March 31, 2023
For the Year Ended

March 31, 2022
Guarantee CommissIonIncome 12.24 9.62
Total 9.6212.24

Net Gain On FaIr Value Changes·

Particulars
For the Year Ended

March 31,2023
For the Year Ended

March 31, 2022
On financial Instruments designated at faIr value through profit or loss 317.78 342.48
Total 317.78 342.48
Fair Value changes:
. Realised
. Unrealised

686.28
(343.80)

199.44
118.34

<Fall'value changes In this schedule are other than those arisIng on account of Interest Income/expense.

Other Income

PartIculars
For the Year Ended

March 31, 2023
For the Year Ended

March 31, 2022
Gain on derecognltlon of RoUassets
Interest on Income tax refund
Profit on Properly, plant and equipment sold I written off (net)
Sale of Scrap
ForeIgn Exchange gaIn· (net)
Reversal of Impairment on financial Instruments (refer foot note)

2.72

0.44
3.57 0.46

0.85
0.01 0.01

143.95 2,818.32
2,819.64Total 150.69

Footnote :.

Current year reversal of INR143.95 lakhs pertain to Impairment on financial Instruments pursuant to the approval of scheme of
amalgamation of subsidiary Company (refer foot note 1 In note 10).
During the previous year, the company has reversed Impalrement of INR2818.32 lakhs of its Investment In subsidiary Diglsol
Systems Limited.

Finance Costs

Particulars
For the Year Ended

March 31, 2023
For the Year Ended

March 31, 2022
On Financlalllabllitfes measured at Amortised Cost

Interest on deposits
Interest on borrowings

Other Interest expense

0.29
15.04

1.13
12.59
2.97

16.69



Smartllnk HoldIngs LImIted

Notes formIng part of the St.andalone Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2023

(Amount In INR Lakhs, unless otherwIse stated)

27 Impairment on fInancial Instruments

PartIculars
For the Year Ended

March 311 2023
For the Year Ended

March 31, 2022

On FInancial Instruments measured at FVTOCI

Investment In Preference Shares (Interest) 0.26 4.78

0.26 4.78Total

28 Employee BenefIts Expenses

Partlculars
For the Yellr Endod For the Yoar Endod

March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022

SalarIes and wages 264.97 257.54

Contribution to provIdent and other funds (Refer Note 35) 6.81 7.12

GratuIty expenses (Refer Note 35) 1.79 1.32

Staff welfare expenses 12.34 10.50

Total 285.91 276.48

29 DepreciatIon and amortisation expense

For the Year Ended
March 31, 2023

For the Year Ended
March 31, 2022

Partlcutars

62.78 64.21

4.65

39.45

DepreciatIon on property, plant and equIpment (refer note 12)

AmortIzation on IntangIble Assets (refer note 13)

DeprecIatIon on Investment Property (refer note 11) 39.44

102.22Total 108.31

30 Other expenses

Particulars
For tho Year Ended For the Year Ended

March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022

Rent, rate and taxes 29.63 20.70

RepaIrs and maIntenance 222.29 52.13

Communlcatfon expenses 6.27 8.00

PrIntIng and stationery expenses 1.90 0.58

Advertisement expenses 12.18 13.42

Dlrector's fees 22.45 14.17

AudItor's fees and expenses (Refer footnote) 15.28 15.22

Legal and professIonal charges 79.07 81.60

Insurance 7.98 11.84

Annual maIntenance expense 12.54 11.80

Software connectivIty license/maintenance expenses 42.67 24.98

Travelling and conveyance expenses 29.76 19.70

Power and fuel expenses 89.18 69.93

Membership and subscription fees 0.40 0.14

Sundry balance wrItten off (net) 8.18

Bad Debts WrItten Ofr 58.16

Office Expenses 13.54 11.51

Application, regIstration & filing Fees 0.72 0.61

ExpendIture on corporate social responsibility (Refer Note 57) 7.65 12.89

Miscellaneous expenses 19.02 15.90

Bank charges 0.26 0.06

Total 679.13 385.18



Smart link Holdings LImited
Notes forming part of the Standalone Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2023
(AmountIn INRLakhs, unless otherwise stated)

Note:-
Payment to Auditors

Particulars
for the Year Ended For tho Year Ended

March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
Charged to Auditor's fees and Expenses:
Statutory audit fees Including GSTexpensed 14.17 14.17

Reimbursement of expenses Including GSTexpensed 0.24 0.40
14.41 14.57

Other certification fees Including GSTexpensed 0.87 0,65

Total 15.28 15.22

31 Income tax expense
(A) Deferred tax relates to the following:

Particulars
For the Year Ended For the Year Endod

March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
Deferred tax assets
On account of timing difference In retlral and other employee benefits 1.28 1.35

On account of fair value of financial assets designated at FVTOCI - 12.41
Provision for doubtful debts I advances - 2.01
On disallowance u/s 40a of Income Tax Act, 1961 1.03 1.14

2.31 16.91
Deferred tax tiab1t1t1es
On property, plant and equipment 161.89 155.10
On account of fair value of financial assets designated at MPL 206.12 173.Q7

368.01 328.17

Deferred tax liability (Net) 365.70 311.26

(6) Reconciliation of deferred tax assets! (liabilities) (net):

Particulars
For the Year Ended For the Year Ended

March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
Opening balance as of April 01 (311.26) (385.15)
Tax assets I (liablllties) recognized In statement of profit and loss (53.29) 73.11
Tax assets I (liabilities) recognized in OCI -

-On re-measurements gain of post-employment benefit obl1gatlons (1.16) 0.78
Closing balance as at March 31 (365.70) (311.26)

(C) Deferred tax a.ssets/ (liabilities) to be recognized In Statement of Profit and Loss

Particulars
For the Year Ended For the Year Ended

March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
Tax liability 53.29
Tax asset - 73.11
Deferred tax assets/ (liabilities)to be recognized in Statement of Profit and Loss 53.29 73.11

(D) Income tax expense reported In the statement of profit or loss

Particulars
For the Year Ended For the Year Ended

March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
. Current tax 334.89 108.42
- Deferred tax charge / (Income) 53.29 (73.11)
- Adjustments In respect of current Income tax of previous year (49.72) 6.90

Income tax expense reported In the statement of profit or loss 338.46 42.21
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ncome tax expense charged I (credit) to OCI

Particulars
For the Year Ended For the Year Ended

March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022

1.16 (0.78)
1.16 (0.78)

For the Year Ended For the Year Ended
March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022

2,112.54 2,937.56
25.168% 25.168%

531.68 739.33

(704.02)
1.92
2.02

(53.38)

(94.06)
(49.72) 6.90

338.46 42.21

Nat fair value (galn)/loss on debt securIties
Net loss/ (gain) on remeasurements of deffned beneflt plans
ncome tax expense charged I (credit) to OCI

Roconclllation of tax charge

Partlculers

Profit before tax
Tax Rate
ncome tax expense at tax rates applicable

Tax effects of:
· Item not deductible for tax
· CSRexpenditure not allowed for tax purpose
· leasehold land amortisation not claimed In Income tax
· Others

Effect due to tax paid on exceptional Item at a lower rate (net of busIness loss)
Earlier year adjustment

ncome tax expense
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32 Earnings/loss per share

__ .,,-......... __ • j

Basic earnings I(loss) per share amounts are calculated by dividing the profltlloss (or the yenr altrlbutllble to equity holders by the weighted
average number of equity shares outstanding during the year.

The weighted average number of ordinary shares outstanding during the period Is the number of ordinary shares outstandIng at the beginnIng of
the period, adjusted by the number of ordinary shares bought back or Issued during the ported multiplied by II tlme,welghttng fnctor. The time-
weIghting factor Is the number of days that the shares are outstandIng as a proportIon of the total number of dnys In the year.

The followIng reflects the Income and share data used In the basIc and diluted EPS computatIons:

PartIculars
For the YOllr Ended

March 31, 2023
For the Year Ended

March 31, 2022

1,774.08

99.75
2

17.79
17.79

Ordinary equity shareholders
Profltl (Loss) attributable to ordinary equity holders

Weighted average number of equity shares
Face Value per share

Basic earnings per share (INR)

Diluted earnings per share (INR)

2,895.35
104.94

2

27.59
27.59

33 Contingent liabilities

Particulars
Aut

March 31, 2023
As at

March 31, 2022

6,641.61

Bank guarantees given In favour of ElectrIcity Department· Governrnent of Goa 71.61 71.61

Corporate guarantees given in favour of banks on behalf of Olglsol Systems LImIted (Wholly owned
subsidiary)

HOFC Bank limited
Bajaj Finance Limited

Corporate guarantees given In favour of banks on behalf of Synegra EMS LImited (Wholly owned
subsidiary)

HDFC Bank Limited

Small Industries Development Bank Of India

1,300.00

270.00

Total

34 Capital and other commitments

2,000.00

1,300.00

3,371.61

Particulars
As at

March 31, 2023
As at

March 31, 2022

719.95

Estimated amount of contracts remaining to be executed on capital account
Nnn-rMrplliltion lease liabilities undiscounted basis net of liability rccognlsed(Refer Note 36)

35 Employee benefits

(A) Deftned Contribution Plans
During the year, the Company has recognized the follOWing amounts in the Statement of Profit and Loss -

275.04

734.22

March 31, 2023
For the Year Ended

March 31, 2022
For the Year Ended

Particulars

Employer's Contribution to Provident Fund and Pension Fund
Employer's contribution to National Penson Scheme

Employer's contribution to Employee State Insurance Scheme

4.43
1.94

0.44

4.72

1.76

0.64

Total 6.81 7.12



Smartllnk Holdings LImited
Notes formJng part of the Standalone Financial Statements for the year endod March 31, 202.3
(Amount In INRlakhs, unless otherwIse stated)

(8) D&flnod benefit plans
II) Grntulty payable to employees

The Company has a defined benefIt gratully plan and governed by payment of Gratuity IIcl, 1972. (very employeo who hos completed fIve years
or more of services Is entitled to a gratuIty on departure at 15 days of last drawn salnry for onch completed yenr of services. The scheme Is
funded through a policy wIth lIC.

Particulars As at ASIIt
March 31, 2023 March 31, 2012

I) Actunrlalassumptlons
DIscount rate (per annum) 7.20% 7.27%
Rote of Increase In Salarl 6.00% 5.00%
E)(pe~ed average remaIning workIng lives of employees (years) 13.07 12.77
AttrItIon rate PS: 0 to 5: 5% PS: 0 to 5: 9%

P:;: 5 to 40 : 0% PS: 5 to 40 : 0%
Mortality IfIlM (2012-14) Ult IALM(2012·14) Ult

II) Changes In the present value of defined benefIt obligatIon
Present value of obligatIon at the begInnIng of the year 24.82 23.71
Interest cost 1.82 1.49
Current service cost 2.17 2.03
Benefits paid (5."')
Actuarial (saln)/loss on obligations· Due to change In FinancIal Assumptions 0.31 (1.20)
ActuarIal (galn)/loss on obligations - Due to experience (4.71) 3.93
Present value of obligation at the end of the year 24.41 24.82

ttl) Change In the faIr value of plan assets:
OpenIng fair value of plan assets 29.99 33.29
Adjustment to Opening FaIr Value of Plan AsSEt - 0.01
Interest Income 2.20 2.20
Contributions by emptoyer 4.50
Benefits paid (5.14)

Return on plan assets excludIng Interest Income 0.22 (0.37)
Closln1' fair value of olan assets 36.91 29.99

Particulars
For the Year Ended For the Year Ended

March 31,2023 March 31, 2022

Iv) Expense recognized In the Statement of Profit and loss
Current service cost
Past service cost
Interest cost (net)
Total expenses recognized In the Statement Profit and loss'

2.17 2.03

(0.38) (0.71)

1.79 1.32
'Included In Employee benefits expense (Refer Note 28).

(4.40)
(0.22)

2.73
0.37

v) Expense recognized In Other comprehensive Income

3.10

Particulars
For the Year Ended For the Year Ended

March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022

Actuarial (gain) / loss on Obligation for the period
Return on plan assets excluding Interest Income
Het actuarIal (gaIns) /Iosses recognised in OCI (4.62)

As at
March 31, 2023

As at
March 31, 2022

Particulars

vi) Assets and liabilities recognized In the Balance Sheet:
Present value of obligation as at the end of the year
FaIr Value of Plan Assets at the end of the year

24.41
36.91

24.82
29.99

Het asset / (liability) recognized In Balance Sheet" 12.50
'Included in Other Non Financial Assets (Refer note 14)
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Expected contribution to the fund In the next year INR2.18 lakin

A quantitative sensitivity analysis for significant assumption Is as shown below:

Impact on Present Value obligation
For the Yeu Endod

March 31, 2023

+1%
26.87
22.23

27.00
22.88

22.27
26.86

ge In discount rate
ge In salary escalation rate

Maturity profile of defined benefit obligation

For tho YOMEnded
March 31, 2022

+1'"
22.93
27.02

Vears
For tho Yoar Ended

Morch 31, 2022

0.13 0.14
0.13 0.17
0.15 0.18
0.20 0.22
2.05 8.98

20.39 18.31

Aut Aut
March )1, 2023 March 31, 2022

7.20% 7.27%
6.00% 5.00%
13.07 12.n

PS: 0 to 5: 5% PS: 0 to 5 : 9%
PS: 5 to 40 : 0% PS: 5 to ,",0: 0%

IALM(2012·14) Ult IALM(2012,14) Ult

1

2
3

4

5

6 to 10

ave encashment

Particulars

arlal essurnpttcns
ount rate (per annum)

of Increase in Salary
cted average remaining working lives of employees (years)
tion rate

altty

For tho Yoar Endod
March 31, 2023

es
ratlng leases where Company Is a lessee;
n the Intermediate lessor enters Into the sublease which Is classified as Operating lease, It retains the lease liability and the r1ght·of·use

relating to the head lease In Its statement of financial position. During the term of the sublease, the Intermediate lessor; Recognises a
eclatlon charge for the rtgbt-ot-use asset and Interest on the lease liability and lease Income from the SUblease.

her Ind AS116 requires inclusion of var1able lease payments based on Index or a rate.
bte lease payments based on an Index or a rate: Variable lease payments based on an Index or a rate (for example, linked to a consumer
index, a benchmark Interest rate or a marf<et rental rate) are part of the lease liability. From the perspective of the lessee, these

ments are unavoidable, because any uncertainty relates only to the measurement of the liability but not to Its existence. Var1able lease
ments based on an Index or a rate are Initially measured using the Index or the rate at the commencement date (Instead of forward

flndlces). ThIs means that an entity does not forecast future changes of the Index/rate; these changes Mil raken Into account at the point
me In Which lease payments change.
ever, based on management's estimates that tease payment increases 10%after a period of a period of three years. Therefore, based on
agement judgement, estimates and conservative approach It Is estimated, lease liability has been calculated based on these estimated cash
s.

wing are the changes in the carrying value of right of use assets for the year ended 31 March 2023:

Particulars TotalCategory of ROUAsset
Land a Buildings Prepaid Rent

nce as on April 01, 2021

11,.44

61.34 1.68
tlons
tion
eclatlon 18.37

44.02nce as on March 31, 2022 42.97
tions
tlon
eclatlon

23.1B
7.35

nce as on March 31, 2023

0.63
1.05

0.81
0.24

63.02

19.00

23.99
7.59

12.44

aggregate depreciation expense on ROUassets is included under depreciation and amortization expense in the statement of Profit and Loss.
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Notes formIng part of the Standalone Flnandal Statements for the year ended March 31, 2023

(Amount in INR Lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

The following is the movement in lease liabilities during the year ended March 31 2023-,
PartIculars Amount

Balance as on April 01, 2021 196.64

AddItions

Deletion

Finance cost accrued during the period 15.04

Payment of lease liabilities . (31.'16)

Balance as on March 31, 2022 180.22

Particulars Amount

Balance as on April 01, 2022 180.22

Additions
~..

Deletion (25.86)

Finance cost accrued during the period A2.59
Payment of tease liabilities . (19.64)

Balance as on March 31, 2023
......

147.32

The table below provides details regardIng the contractual maturtties of tease liabilities as at March 31 2023 on an undiscounted basis',

Particulars
As at As at

March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022

Less than one year 11.59 32.45

One to five years 57.93 72.30

More than five years 797.75 809.69

Total 867.27 914.44

The Company does not face a significant liquidity risk with regard to Its lease liabilities as the current assets are sufficient to meet the

obligations related to lease liabilitIes as and when they fall due.

Lease rentals paid on short term leases for current year INR 2.16 lakhs (previous year INR NIL)

(6) Operating leases where Company as a lessor:

The Company has entered Into cancellable operating leases on its Investment property portfolio consisting of certain office and manufacturing

buildings. These leases have terms of between 11 months to 60 months. Certain leases Include a clause to enable upward revision of the rental

charge on an annual basis according to prevailing market conditions.

The total rental lncome on assets given on operating leases amounts to INR 196.50 lakhs for the year ended March 31, 2023 (March 31, 2022 INR

9o.s3Iakhs).

Future minimum rentals receivables under operating leases as at March 31 are as follows'- ,
As at As at

PartIculars
March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022

Within one year 213.56 131.25
After one year but not more than fIve years 701.20 246.31

37 Related party disclosures:

(A) Names of related parties and description of relationship as Identified and certified by the Company:

SubsidIary CompanIes

Digisol Systems LImited

Synegra EMS Limited

Telesmart SCSLImited (Merged with Digisol Systems Limited w.e.f April 01,2022)

Enterprise over whIch key management person Is able to exercise sIgnIficant Influence.

Mr. Kamalaksha R. Naik (HUF)

Key Management Personnel (KMP)

Mr. Kamalaksha R. Nalk . Executive Chairman

Mr. Krishnanand M. Gaonkar . Non Executive Independent Director

Mr. Bhanubhal R. Patel· Non Executive Independent Director

Mr. Panka] M. Baliga . Non Executive Independent Director

Mr. Pradeep A. Rane • Non Executive Independent Director

Mr. Pradeep G. [ande • Non Executive Independent Director (retired w.e.f January 04,2022)

Ms. Arati K: Nai • Executive Director

Mr. K. G. Prabh • Chief Financial Officer . ~

Ms. Urjlta Damle· Company secre~~p, ~D'

(;:
~u Sit '\ ..~

q~ -1"., ",.

II ~ :~ .;.. \\t* ~Reg IIJo. 14" f.. )',
~ SALCETl- ;

H\LUKP :"::J _ I,
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(Amount InlNR Ln~hs, unless otherwlse stated)

Rolatlvo. of key management personnel:
Ms. Mnll K. Nelk
Mrs. Sudhn K. Nalk
Mrs. lnkshnna A. SlIerma

(B) Oetan, of transactions with related party In the ordinary courso of buslnon for tho yoar on dod:
Fortho yoar ondod March 31, 2023 For tho oar on dod Morch 31 2022

EnterprllO ovor
Entorprlse ovor

Koy Mana,emont
which koy Key Manosoment

Particulars which koy
Porsonnoll R&lattvo manasomont Por.annoll

Subsidiary managoment ponon
of Key manaB&mont

Subsidiary porson b ablo to Rolatlve o( Key
Is able to exorclso eurcl.e manasomont

sl8nlflcant tntluenee.
personnel

significant pononnol
Influonco.

Rent Income
OIBlsol Systems Limited 71.>12 52.80
SyneBrll EMSLimited 55.75

Rent EXJlonso
Olglsot Systems Limited 2.16

Ront Wrltlon off
0181so1Systems Limited 32.72
Synearll EMSLimited 25.>I~

PurchaslI of Networkln. Products
Olalsol Systems Limited 0.07 1.07

Char10d towards CSR expenses
Olgisol Systems Lfmlted . 1.03

Invest mont In Subsidiary
Syneara EMSL1mltod 1,000.00 1,050.00

Manas.rlal Remunoratlon
Mr. K. G. Prabhu

Short-term employee benefits 56.18 35.87
Post·~mploymont benefits 0.22 0.22

Ms. UrJlta Damle
Short·torm omployee benellt' 16.28 13.59
Po,t·employment beneftts 0.22 0.22

Director Sitting F.. ,

Mr. Krlshnand M. Gaonkar 5.55 2.50
Mr. PankaJ M. Ballga 6.05 3.00
Mr. Pradeep A. Rane 3.50 2.50
Mr. Bhanubhal R. Patel 5.50 3.00
Mr. Predeep G. Pando 2.00

ConsIderation paid for Buyback of Sheres
Mr. Kamalakslle R. Nalk 1,877.05
Mr. KamalDksha R. Nalk (HUF) . ~0.36
Ms. Anrtl K. Nalk 375.41
Mrs. Sudha K. Nalk . 187.70
Mrs. Lakshana A. SlIerma 319.10

Bank Guarantee given during the year on behalf of
Olglsol Systems Lfmlted 5,000.00 2,000.00
Synegra EMSUmfted 1.570.00 1.300.00

Bank Guarantee revoked during the year
Olglsol Systems limited 2,000.00 2.000.00
SyneSr. EMSLimIted 1,300.00



Smartlln~ Holdings Limited

Notes forming part of the Standalone Financial Statements for tho year ended March 31, 2023
(Amount In INR Lakhs, unless otherwise stated) .

Dnlnnces duo from and due to related parties

Particulars
Aut As lit

March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
Amount due from related party as on:

Subsidiary Companies:
0181s01Systems LImited 16.98 11\.2G
Synegra EMSLImited 30.11 25.44
Telesmart SCSLimited - 32.72

Amount of Corporate Guarantee given and outstanding as on:

Subsldl~ry Companies:

Olg!sol S:'stC!'!1SLImited 5,000.00 2,000.00
Syncgra EMSLImited 1,570.00 1,300.00

Terms and conditions of transactions with related parties

The rrensacttons with related parties are made on terms equivalent to those thnt prevnllin arm's len8th transacucns.

38 Segment reporting

The Executlve·Chalrman of the Company acts as the chief operatfng decision maker (COOM) of the Company In ecccrdance with Operating
Segment (Ind AS 108), for purpose of assessing the financial performance and position of the Company, and make strategic decisions. The
Company's business activities are malnl)' related to Investments end Real Estate, which are primarily assessed as a slnille reportable operotlnll
segment In accordance with Ind A5108 by the CODM.

39 Fair va lues of financial IIssets and financial liabilities

A. Accounting classification and fair value:
The followlnll table shows the carrying amounts and fair values of financial assets and financial liabilities, Including their levels In the fair value
hierarchy. It does not Include fair value Information for financial assets and flnanciallfabilities not measured at fair value If the carrying amount
Is a reasonable approximation of fair value.

I). Measurement of fair value

The fair values of the financllli assets and liabilities are Included at the amount at which the Instrument could be exchanged In a current
transaction between willing parties, other than In a forced or liquidation sale.

The following methods and assumptions were used to estimate the fair values:

1. Fllir value of cash, bank balances, short·term deposits, trade and other short-term receivables, trade payables, other current liabilities and
other flnanclalllablHtfes approximate their carrying amounts larllely due to short-term maturities of these Instruments.

2. The fair value of non-current financial assets comprising of term deposits at amortised cost using Effective Interest Rate (EIR) ore not
significantly different from the carrylngllmount.

3. The fair value of Lease liabilities are calculated based on cash flows discounted using a current lending rate. They are classified at level 3 In
the fair value hierarchy due to the Inclusion of unobservable Inputs Including own and counterparty credit risk.

-40 ralr value hierarchy

The fair value of financial Instruments as referred to above have been classl(led Into three categories depending on the Inputs used In the
valuation technique. The hierarchy gives the highest priOrity to quoted prices In active markets for Identical assets or liabilities (Level 1
measurements) and lowest priority to unobservable Inputs (Level 3 measurements).

-Level 1 • Level 1 hierarchy Includes financial Instruments measured using quoted prices. This Includes listed equity Instruments, traded bonds
that have quoted price. The fair value of all equity Instruments which are traded In the stock exchanges Is valued uslnll the closing price as at
the reporting period .

• Level 2 - The fair value of flnancllli Instruments that are not traded In an active market Is determined using valuatfon techniques which
maximise the use of observable market data and rely as little as possIble on entlty·speclflc estimates. If all significant Inputs required to fair
value an Instrument are observable, the Instrument Is Included In level 2. The fair value of Mutual funds and FYOCI bonds lind preference shares
are based on published net assets values or other observable market data. They are claSSified at level 2 In the fair value hierarchy.

·Level3 . If one or more of the slgnlffcant Inputs Is not based on observable market data, the Instrument 15Included In level 3.

y.



Smartllnk Holdings Limited
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FaIr value measurement hIerarchy of assets and liabilities
Aut Aut

Particulars FaIr value hierarchy March 31, 2023 March 31, 2012

Financial assets measured at amortized cost
investments In Debt securities Level 3 4,551.90 5,056.62
Fixed ['eposlts Levell 1,537.31
S(!clIrlty Deposits Level 1 7.93 23.93

flnpnclal assets measured at fair value

(a) Financial assets measured at faIr value through profit or loss level 2 6,191.41 5,915.92
Investments in mutual funds
(b) Trade receivables level 2 55.36 75.38
(b) Financial assets measured at fair value through other comprehensive inc level 2 49.30
Investments In Debt securities

Financial liabilities measured at amortized cost
Security Deposits levell 20.17 4.37
lease liabilities levell 147.31 180.22
Financial guarantee obligation Level 3 12.71 2.38
Asset retirement obligation Levell 8.58 7.92

There have been no transfers between levelland Level 2 during the perloo

41 Financial risk management objectives and policies

The Company is exposed to various financial rnks. These risks are categof1zed Into market risk, credit risk and IIqvfdlty risk. The Company's risk
management is coordinated by the 60ard of Directors and focuses on securing long term and short term cash flows. The Company does not
engage In trading of flnandal assets for speculative purposes.

(A) Market rIsk
Market risk is the risk that the fair value of future cash flows of a financial instrument witt fluctuate because of changes In market prices.
Market risk comprises of Interest rate risk and prIce risk.

(I) Interest rate risk
Interest rate risk is the risk that the faIr value or future cash flows of a flnandallnstrument will fluctuate because of changes In market Interest
rates. In order to optfmlse the Company's position with regards to Interest Income, treasury team manages the Interest rate risk by diversifying
Its portfolio across tenures. The Company does not have exposure to the risk 0( cha~es In market Interest rates as the Company's long-term
debt obligations are with fixed Interest rates.

(II) Price risk

The Company's exposure to securities risk arises from investments held by the Company and classified in the Balance Sheet as fair value through
ocr.

(6) Credit risk
Credit risk is the risk of finandal loss to the Company If a customer or counterparty to a financial Instrument falls to meet Its contractual
obligations. Credit risk primarily arises from cash equival~nts, trade recelvablcs, financial assets meaSU"ed at amortised cost and financial assets
measured at fair value through profit or loss or other comprehensive Income. The maximum exposure to credit risk Is equal to the carrying value
of the financial assets. The obJectlve of managing counterparty credit risk Is to prevent losses in financial assets.

For other financial assets and investments, the Company has an Investment policy which allows the Company to Invest only with counterparties
having a good credit rating. The Company reviews the credit worthiness of these counterpartles on an on·golns basis. Counterparty limits may be
updated as and when required subject to approval of Board of Directors.

~.. \~•. i
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The Company limits Its exposore to credit risk of cash held with banks by deutlfngwllh highly rated banks and Institutions nnd retaining sufffcient
bnlances In bank accounts required to meet II month's operational costs. The Management reviews the bank IlCcounts on rcgular bllsls and fund
drawdowns are planned to ensure that there Is minimal surplus cash In bank nccounts.

The Company's maximum exposure to credit risk for the components of the bntance sheet at March 31, 2023 lind March 31, 2022 Is lhe carrying
amounts as mentioned In Note 5, 6, 7, 8 and 10.

(C) Liquidity risk
The Company's principal sources of liquidity are 'cash and cash equivalents' nnd cash flows thot are genernted from operntfons. The Compnny
ballov(!$ that Its working capital Is sufficient to meet the financial liabilities within maturity period. Tho Company hos no borrowings.
Additionally, the Companyhas Invested Its surplus funds In fixed Income securities or Instruments of similar profile thoreby ensuring sllfely of
capttat end availability of liquidity liS and when required. Hence, the Companycarries 8 negligible liquidity risk.
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42 The Company has not given Loans or Advances In the nature of loans to Promoters, Directors, Key Manatlcment Personnel and the related
parties (as defined under Companies Act, 2013), either sevel1llly or jointly with any other person.

43 Capital-Work-In Progress (CWIP)

(a) For Capltal·work-In progress ageing schedule
31 March 2023

Amount In CWIP for a period of
CWIP Less than 1 year 1-2 years 2-3years More than 3 years Total

Projects In progress

Projects temporarily suspended .

31 March 2022

Amount In CWIP for II pertod of
CWIP Less than 1 year 1-2 years 2-3yellrs More than 3 years Total

Projects In progress

Projects temporarily suspended 215.70 215.70

44 Intangible assets under development

The Company does not have any Intangible assets under development during the current year and the previous year.

45 Details of Benaml Property held

The Company does not have any Benaml property, where any proceeding has been Initiated or pending atlalnst the company for holdIng any
Benaml property.

46 Reconciliation of quarterly returns or statements of current assets flied with banks or financial Institutions
The Company. has not availed any overdraft fac1lity I loan during the current year and the previous year.

47 Wilful Defaulter
The Company has not been declared a wilful defaulter by any bank or financial Institution.

48 RelatIonship with Struck off Companies under section 248 of the Companies Act, 2013 or section 560 of Companies Act, 1956.
The Company does not have any transactions with companies struck off under section 248 of the Companies Act, 2013 or section 560 of
Companies Act, 1956.

49 Registration of charges or satisfaction with Registrar of Companies

Tha Company doe, not have any charse~ or ~atl~action whIch I~ yet to be registered wlUI Registrar of Companies beyond the statutory
period.

50 Compliance with number of layers of companies

The company has compiled with the number of layers prescribed under clause (87) of section 2 of the Act read with the Companies
(Restriction on number of Layers) Rules, 2017.
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51 Utilisation of Borrowed funds and share premium:

(I) The Company has not advanced or loaned or Invested funds to nny other persona) or ontlty(les), Including foreign entities
(Intermediaries) with the understanding that the Intermediary shall:
(a) directly or Indirectly lend or Invest In other persons or entities Identified In any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the company
(ULtimate Beneficiaries) or

(b)provlde any guarantee, security or the like to or on behalf of the Ultlmnte Beneficiaries

(II) The Company has not received any fund from any person(s) or entlty(les), Including foreign entities (Funding Party) with tho

understanding (whether recorded In writing or otherwise) that the Company shatl:
(n) directly or Indirectly lend or Invest In other persons or entities Identified In any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Funding
Party (Ultimate Beneficiaries) or .

(b)provlde any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Ceneficlaries,

52 The Company Is a Non Banking Financial Company· Non·Systemlcally Important Non·Deposlt taking Company as per the Reserve Bank of

India circular RBIIDUS'V2016·17/44 Master Direction ONBR.PD.007/03.10.11912016·17. Thus, the following analytical ratios are not
applicable to the Company.

1. Capital to rtsk-weighted assets ratio (CRAR)

2. Tier I CRAR

3. Tier II CRAR

4. LIquidity Coverage Rallo.
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53 Maturity analysis of assets and liabilities
A The below table shows an analysis of assets and liabilities analysed according to when they ore expected to be recovered or settled.

As at March 31, 2023 As at March 31, 2022
Particulars Within 12 Aftor 12 Total Within 12 Aftor 12 Totol

months months months months
Flnancl,,1assets
Cash lind cash equivalents 35.51 35.51 31.10 - 31.10
6anll Oalane'.!other than Cash and cash 1.84 801.74 803.58 4.14 1,078.44 1,062.56
equivalents
Investments 6"OUa 10,810.74 17,522.12 5,915.91 9,131.61 15,047.52
Receivables- Other Receivables 55.36 55.36 75.38 0.00 75.38
Other financial assets 1.45 7.93 9.38 1.30 23.93 25.23

Non Financial Assets
Tax assets (Net) 147.21 147.21 · 56.75 56.75
Investment Property 1,280.03 1,280.03 · 1,467.85 1,467.85
Property, Plant and Equipment 875.44 875.44 - 840.39 840.39
Capital work-In-progress · 215.70 215.70
Intangible assets · .
Other non·financial assets 65.11 12.50 77.61 59.68 5.17 M.85
Total Assets 6,860.65 13,945.59 20,806.24 6,087.51 12,819.84 18,907.35

Financial liabilities
Trade Payables 115.64 115.64 44.44 . 44.44
6orrowlngs (Other than debt securities) 0.03 147.28 147.31 18.82 161.40 180.22
Other financialUabilities 48.52 28.75 77.27 44.85 7.92 52.77

Non financial liabilities
Current tax liabilities (Net) . . · -
Provisions 1.09 3.98 5.07 4.10 1.25 5.35
Deferred tax liabilities (Net) 365.70 365.70 311.26 311.26
Other non-Ifnanctat ltabittttes !i.70 4.78 10.48 3.80 - 3.80
Total Liabilities 170.98 550.49 721.47 116.01 481.83 597.84

Net 6,689.67 13,395.10 20,084.77 5,971.50 12,338.01 18,309.51

B Public Disclosure on liquidity risk
(I) Funding concentration based on slgnfncant counterparty (both deposits and borrowings)

Number of significant counterparties Amount (INR
Crores)

% of total
liabilities

Not Applicable

(II)Top 20 large deposits (amount In INRcrore and % of total deposits)
Not Applicable

(1ft) Top 10 borrowings (amount In INRcrore and %of total borrowings)
NotApplicable

(Iv)Funding Concentration based on significant Instrument/product
%ofTotal
LIabilities

Sr No. Name of the Amount (INR
Instrument! crore)

product
Not Applicable



Smartllnk Holdings LImited
Notes formIng part of the Standalone Financial Statements (or the year ended March 31, 2023
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(v) Stock Rat!os:
(a) Commercial papers as a " of total public funds, total liabilities and total

Not Applicable
(b) Non·convertlble debentures (orIginal maturity of less than one year) as a % of total public funds, totaillabtlities and total assets

Not Applicable
(c) Other short- term liabilItIes, If any as a \\\of total public funds, total liabilitIes lind total assets

Particulars Aut Aut
March 31, 2023 March 31,

2022
Short term liabilitIes as a \\\of total public funds .
Short term liabIlities as a \\\of total LIabilities 23.70% 19.40%
Short term liabilItIes as a % of total Assets 0.82% 0.61%

(vi) Institutional set-up for liquidity risk management
Not Applicable
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Notes forming part of the Standalone Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2023
(Amount In INR Lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

54 Undisclosed Income

The Company does not have any undisclosed Income which Is not recorded In the books of account that has been surrendered or disclosed /1$

Income during the year (previous year) In the tax assessments under the Income Tax Act, 1961 (such as, search or surveyor any other "elevant
provtstons of the Income Tax Act, 1961.

55 Details of Crypto Currency or Virtual Currency

The Company has not traded or Invested In Crypto currency or Virtual Currency during the financial year.

56 Capital management

For the purpose of the Company's capital management, capital Includes Issued equity capital and all other equity reserves attributable to the
equity holders, The Company operates as an Investment Company and consequently Is registered as a Non·8anklng Financial lnstttutlon- (Non
Public Deposit Accepting) with Reserve Bank of India (RSl).

The .Cornpany does not have any borrowings In the nature of loans and advances from Banks, financial Institutions and others and Is cash surplus.

The cash surpluses are currently Invested In Income generating debt Instruments (Including through mutual funds) and money market

instruments depending on economic conditions In line with Investment policy set by the Management. Safety of capital Is of prime Importance
to ensure availability of capital for operations. Objective of Investment policy Is to provide safety and adequate return on the surplus funds.

No changes were made In the objectives, policies or processes for managing capital during the years ended March 31,2023 and March 31,2022.

57 As per provisions of section 135 of Companies Act 2013, the Company was required to spend INR 7.40 lakhs (March 31, 2022: INR 13.76 takhs)

being 2%of average net profits made durIng the three Immediately preceding financial years, In pursuance of Its Corporate Social Responsibility

Polley on the activities specified In Schedule VII of the Act. The Company has spent INR 7.89 lakhs (Including excess of earlier year) (March 31,
2022: INR 14.00 lakhs) towards Corporate SOCialResponsibility activities as under:

Partlculars Aut Aut

March 31, 2023 March 31,2022
Gross Amount required to be spent as per Section 135 of the Act 7.40 13.76

Add: Amount Unspent from previous years

Total Gross amount required to be spent durIng the year 7.40 13.76

A.

B. I A~ount approved by the Board to be spent durIng the year 7.651 16.351

C. Amount spent during the year on

(I) Construction/acquisition of an asset

7:651 12:891(ii) On purposes other than (I) above

D. Details related to amount spent

For the Year Ended For the Year Ended
Particular

March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022

(I) Construction / acquisition of any asset -
(il) On purpose other than (i) above

- Installation of Networking products In various schools . 2.50
• Prime Minister's National Relief Fund - 1.51
-Prornotmg healthcare 0.57

·Contribution to Foundations / Trusts - -
-Educatlon purpose 7.65 8.31

Total 7.65 12.89

E. Details of excess CSRexpenditure

Nature of Activity
Balance excess as Amount required to be Amount spent during Balance excess as at March

at April 01, 2022 spent during the year the year 31,2023

-on purpose other than Construction /
(0.24) 7.40 7.65 (0.49)

acquisition of any asset

Nature of Activity
Balance excess as Amount required to be Amount spent during Balance excess as at March

at April 01, 2021 spent during the year the year 31, 2022

(1.11 ) 13.76
-On purpose other than Construction /

, acqutsitton.of any asset
12.89
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F, Olsc:losures on Shortfall
Particulars March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022

Al'llcunt RequIred to be spent by the Company durIng the year 1,40 13.76

Act'Jal Amount Spent by the Company during the year 7.65 12.89
py Excessadjusted durIng the CY 0.24 1.11
Sholtlall/(Excess) at the end of the year (0,49) (0.24)
Tot.1 of prevtous years shortfall -

-
RealOl) for shortfall - State reasons for shortfall In expenditure

58 Disdosure requIrement as per regulation 34(3) of SEBILODRRules, 2015

Particulars
As at

March 31, 2023

Loans and advances in the nature of loans to subsidiarIes by name and amount.
Loans and advances In the nature of loans to associates by name and amount,
Loans and advances In the nature of loans to firms/companies In whIch dIrectors are
Intelested by name and amount,

Investments by the loanee In the shares of parent company and substdlary company, when
the company has made a loan or advance In the nature of loan,

As lit
March 31, 2022

59 As at March 31, 2023, the Company did not have any outstanding long term derivative contracts (previous year INRNIL)

60 There were no whl5tlebiower complaints received during the FY 2022-23.

61 The Companydoes not have any scheme of arrangement whlch has an accounting Impact on current or previous financial year,

62 Event after reporting date:-
There have been no events after the reporting date that require disclosure In these flnanclal statements,

As per my report of even date
For Shridhar a Associates

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of
Smartllnk Holdings Limited
CIN: L67100GA1993PLCOO1341Chartered Accountants

ICAI FIrm Registration No.: 134427W
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ExecutIve Chairman
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Partner
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Executive Director
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Urjlta Damle

Place: Mumbai
Date: May 17, 2023
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Date: May 17, 2023
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INDEPENDENTAUDITOR'SREPORT

To the Members of Smartltnk Holdings limited

Report on the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements

Opinion

We have audited the accompanyingconsolidated flnanctat statements of Smartltnk Holdings LImited
(hereinafter referred to as the "Holdlng Company") and its subsidiaries (Holding cornpanv and Its
subsidiaries together referred to as "the Group"), which comprise the Consolidated Balance Sheet
as at March 31, 2023, and the Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss (IncludIng the Other
Comprehensive Income), the Consolidated Statement of ChangesIn EquIty and the Consolidated
Statement of Cash Flows for the year then ended, and notes to the Consolidated FInancial
Statements, includIng a summary of sIgnIfIcant accounting poltcles and other explanatory
information (heremafter referred to as "the consolidated fInancIal statements").

In our opinion and to the best of our Information and accordIng to the explanatIons gIven to us, and
based on consideration of reports of other auditors on separate financial statements nnClon the
other financial Information of subsidIaries, the aforesaid consolidated financial statements give the
Information required by the CompaniesAct, 2013 ("the Act") In the manner so required and give a
true and fair view In conformIty wIth the Indian AccountIng Standardsprescribed under section 133
of the Act read with Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 as amended and other
accounting prtnctples generally accepted In India, of their consolidated state of affairs of the Group
as at March 31, 2023, of consolidated profit, consolidated changesIn equity and Its consolidated
cash flows for the year then ended. '

Basisfor Opinion

We conducted our audit In accordance with the Standardson Auditing (SAs)specified under section
143(10) of the Act. Our responslblttttes under those Standardsare further described In the Auditor's
ResponsibilitIes for the Audit of the Consolidated FinancIal Statements section of our report. We
are Independent of the Group in accordance with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our
audit of the consoltdated financial statements In IndIa In terms of the Code of Ethics Issued by
Institute of Chartered Accountant of India ("ICAI"), and the relevant provisions of the Act and we
have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities In accordance wIth these requirements. We believe
that the audit evidence we have obtained Is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our
opinion.

Key Audit Matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, In our professional judgment, were of most significance
in our audit of the consolidated flnanctal statements for the year ended March 31, 2023. These
matters were addressed In the context of our audit of the consolidated financial statements as a
whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion Oil these
matters. We have determIned the matters described below to be the key audIt matters to be
communicated in our report.

1. Revenue Recognition from Networking Products
Refer the disclosure related to Revenue recognition in Note 26 to the accompanyIng Consolldated
Financial Statements.

The Group has two business segments, a) Investment b) Networking products: Developing,
manufacturing, sales and servicing of various Information technology (IT) hardware products.
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Revenue from sale and servlctng of networking products Is recognised not of returns and trade
discounts. The Group recognises revenue when performance obllgtitlons as per the underlying
contracts are satisfied In accordance with Ind AS115 - Revenuefrom Contract with Customers ('Ind
AS 115'). The terms set out In the Group's sales contrncts are varied which affect the timing of
revenue recognition.

We have Identified Revenue recognition from networking products as a Kay Audit Matter because
Ind AS 115 Involved assessingIf distinct performance obligations exists under each type of the
contracts and ensuring that the revenue Is recognised In the appropriate period In which
contractual obligation Is satisfied.

Our audit procedures to assessthe recognition of revenue from Networking Products Included
the following:

• Obtained an understanding and assessed the design, Implementation and operating
effectiveness of Internal controls over Identification of the contractual obligation existence,
accuracy and timing of revenue recognition.

• Verified the contracts on test check baSISto Identify performance obligations under the
contract and to assesswhether revenue Is recognised In the period In which the performance
obligation is satisfied.

• Performed substantive transactional testing on test check basis.
• Performed substantive analytical procedures considering the revenue trends of the previous

years and the relationship between revenue and other financial statement line Items.
• Reconciled the revenue with sales register.
• Performed cut-off testing to validate the timing of revenue recognition determined by

management.
• Verified the completeness and accuracy of the disclosures, which are Included In note 26 of

the consolidated financial statements.

2. Valuation of Investments In Bonds and Mutual Funds

Refer Note 13 to the consolidated financial statements.

As at March 31, 2023, the Holding Company has Investments of Rs. 10,743.31 LakhsIn mutual funds
and bonds which constitutes about 41.06% of the total assets of the Group. During the year, the
Holding Company has recognised Rs. 317.78 Lakhs as fair value gain In the statement of Profit and
Lossas per requirements of Ind AS109 "Financial Instruments".

Due to significance of amount involved, we have considered this as Key Audit Matter.

Our audit procedures to assessthe Valuation of Investment In Bonds and Mutual Funds Included
the following:

• Obtained an understanding and assessed the design, Implementation and testing of the
operating effectiveness of Internal controls over the existence, valuation and'classification, In
mutual funds and bonds.

• Verified the de-mat account and statement of holdings to confirm existence and accuracy of
Bondsas at March 31, 2023

• Verified the confirmations from Fund Housesand statements of holdings to confirm existence
and accuracy of investments in Mutual Fundsas on March 31, 2023.
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• In respect of Investments In mutual funds which are fair valued through proflt or loss,

performed Independent price checks based on confirmation and statement of Net Asset value
(NAV)from mutual funds houses.

• In respect of Investments In bonds which are valued at amortised cost, verified the deal sheet?
and computation of Interest accrued.

• Evaluated the basis of classification of Investments Into the various categories of financial
Instruments.

• Verified the completeness and accuracy of the disclosures, which are Included In note 13 of
the Consolidated financial statements.

Information Other than the Consolidated Financial Statements and Auditor's Report Thereon

The Holding Company's Board of Directors Is responsible for the other Information. The other
Information comprises the Information Included In Director's Repott, but does not Include the
consolidated financial statements and our auditor's report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolfdated flnanetal statements does not cover the other Information and we
do not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements, our responsibility Is to read
the other Information and, In doing so, consider whether the other Information Is materially
inconsistent with the consolidated financial statements or our knowledge obtained In the audit or
otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, based on the work we have performed, we
conclude that there Is a material misstatement of this other Information, we are required to report
that fact. We have nothing to report In this regard.

Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged with Governance for the Consolidated
Financial Statements

The Holding Company's Board of Directors Is responsible for the preparation and presentation of
these consolidated financial statements In term of the requirements of the Act that give a true and
fair view of the consolJdated financial position, consolidated financial performance and
consolidated cash flows of the Group In accordance with the accounting principles generally
accepted in India, including the Accounting Standards specified under section 133 of the Act. The
respective Board of Directors of the companies Included In the Group are responsible for
maintenance of adequate accounting records In accordance with the provisions of the Act for
safeguarding the assets of the Group and for preventing and detecting frauds and other
irregularities; the selection and application of appropriate accounting policies; making judgments
and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and the design, Implementation and maintenance
of adequate internal financial controls, that were operating effectively for ensuring accuracy and
completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of the
consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view and are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, which have been used for the purpose of preparation
of the consolidated financial statements by the Directors of the Holding Company, as aforesaid.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the respective Board of Directors of the
companies included in the Group are responsible for assessing the ability of the Group to continue
as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going
concern basis of accounting unless the Board of Directors either Intends to liquidate the Group or to
cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

The respective Board of Directors of the companies included in the Group are responsible for
overseeing the financial reporting process of the Group.
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Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated financial
statements as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to
issue an auditor's report that Includes our opInion. Reasonable assurance Is a high level of
assurance, but Is not a guarantee that an audit conducted In accordance with Standards on Auditing
(USAs")will always detect a mater1al mIsstatement when It exists. Misstatements can arise from
fraud or error and are considered material If, IndivIdually or In the aggregate, they could
reasonably be expected to Influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these
consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit In accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain
protesstonal skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

• Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated flnancfal
statements, whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive
to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that Is sufficient and appropriate to provide a
basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from
fraud Is hIgher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may Involve cottuston, forgery,
Intentional omissIons, misrepresentations, or the override of Internal control.

• Obtain an understanding of Internal control relevant to the audit In order to design audit
procedures that are appropr1ate In the circumstances. Under section 143(3)(1) of the Act,
we are also responsible for expressing our opinion on whether the Holding Company has
Internal flnandal controls with reference to financial statements In place and the operating
effectiveness of such controls.

• Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of
accounting estimates and related disclosures made by management.

• Conclude on the appropriateness of management's use of the going concern basis of
accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty
exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the ability of the
Group to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we
are required to draw attention In our auditor's report to the related disclosures In the
consolidated financial statements or, If such disclosures are Inadequate, to modify our
opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our
auditor's report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Group to cease to
continue as a going concern.

• Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the consolldated financial
statements, Including the disclosures, and whether the consolidated financial statements
represent the underlying transactions and events In a manner that achieves fair
presentation.

• Obtain sufficIent appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial Information of the
entities or business activities within the Group to express an opinion on the consolidated
financial statements. We are responsible for the direction, supervision and performance of
the audit of the financial statements of such entities included in the consolidated financial
statements of which we are the independent auditors. For the other entities Included In the
consolidated financial statements, which have been audited by other auditors, such other
auditors remain responsIble for the direction, supervision and performance of the audits
carried out by them. We remain solely responsible for our audit opInion. .
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We communicate with those charged with governance of the Holding Company and such other
entities Included In the consoltdated financial statements of which we are the Independent
auditors regardIng, among other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and
significant audit findings, Including any sIgnificant deflctenctes In Internal control that we
Identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governancewith a statement that we have complied with
relevant ethical requirements regarding Independence, and to communicate with them all
relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our Independence,
and where applicable, related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we determine those
matters that were of most significance In the audit of the consolidated financial statements for
the year ended March 31, 2023 and are therefore the key audit matters. We describe these
matters In our auditor's report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure about the
matter or when, In extremely rare circumstances, we determine, that a matter should not be
communicated in our report becausethe adverseconsequencesof doing so would reasonablybe
expected to outweigh the public Interest benefits of suchcommuntcatlon,

Other Matters

(a) We did not audit the fInancial statements of two subsIdiaries whose financial statements
reflect total assets of Rs. 11,584.43 takhs as at March 31,' 2023, total revenue of Rs.
20,452.23 lakhs and total net profit after tax of Rs. 368.41 lakhs and net cash outflows
amounting to Rs. 22.63 lakhs for the year ended on that date, as considered In the
consolidated fInancial statements, whose financial statements have not been audited by us,
These financial statements have been audited by other auditors whose reports have been
furnished to us by the Management and our opInion on the consolidated financial
statements, In so far as It relates to the amounts and disclosures Included In respect of
these substdtartesand our report In terms of sub-section (3) of Section 143 of the Act, In so
far as It relates to the aforesaid subsidiaries, Is based solely on the reports of the other
auditors.

Our opinion on the consolfdated financial statements, and our report on Other Legal and
Regulatory Requirements below, Is not modified In respect of the above matters with respect to
our reliance on the work done and the reports of the other auditors.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

1. As required by Section 143(3) of the Act, we report, to the extent applicable, that:

a. We have sought and obtaIned all the Information and explanatIons which to the best of our
knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit of the aforesaId
consolfdated financial statements.

b. In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law relatIng to preparation of the
aforesaid consolidated financial statements have been kept so far as it appears from our
examInation of those books and the reports of the other auditors.

c. The Consolfdated Balance Sheet, the Consolfdated Statement of ProfIt and Loss (including
Other Comprehensive Income), the Consolidated Statement of Changesin Equity and the
Consolidated Statement of Cash Flow dealt with by thIs Report are in agreement wIth the
relevant books of account maintained for the purpose of preparation of the consolidated
financial statements.

Shrldhar & Associates, 101, pI Floor, Vafbhav Chambers, Madhusudan Kalekar Road, Bandra East, Mumbal·400052
Head Office Tel: +91 (22) 2604 3028 / 2604 4363/6741 1399 Email: lnfo@shridharandassoclates.com
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d. In our opinion, the aforesaid consolidated financial statements comply with the Accounting
Standards specified under Section 133 of the Act read with Companies(Indian Accounting
Standards)Rules, 2015.

e. On the basis of the written representations received from "the directors of the Holding
Company as on March 31, 2023 taken on record by the Boord of Directors of the Holding
Companyand the reports of the statutory auditors of Its subsidiary companies, Incorporated
In India, none of the directors of the Group companiesIncorporated In India are disqualified
as on March 31, 2023 from being appointed as a director In terms of Section 164 (2) of the
Act.

f. With respect to the adequacy of Internal financial controls over financial reporting of the
Group and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our separate report In
"Annexure A".

g. With respect to the other matters to be Included In the Auditor's Report In accordance with
Rule 11 of the Companies (Audit and Auditor's) Rules, 2014, In our oplnlon and to the best
of our Information and according to the explanations given to us:

f. The group does not have any pending litigations on Its financial position which
require disclosures In the consolidated financial statements as at March 31, 2023.

fl. The Group did not have any material foreseeable losses, on long-term contracts
including derivative contracts.

iii. There has been no delay In transferring amounts, required to be transferred, to the
Investor Education and Protection Fund by the Holding Company and Its subsidiary
companies Incorporated In India.

Iv.
(1) The Management of the Holding Company has represented that, to the best of

it's knowledge and beUef, no funds have been advanced or loaned or Invested
(either from borrowed funds or share premium or any other sourcesor kind of
funds) by the Holding Company, and It's subsidiary companies to or In any other
persons I entities, Including foreign entities ('Intermediaries'), with the
understanding, whether recorded In writing or otherwise, that the
Intermediaries have, whether directly or Indirectly lend or invest In other
persons or entities Identified In any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the
Holding Company, and it's subsidiary companies ("Ultimate Beneficiaries") or
provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate
Beneficiaries;

(2) .The Management of the Holding Company has rep'resented that, to the best of
it's knowledge and belfef, no funds have been received by the Holding
Company, and It's subsidiary companies from any person(s) I entity(ies),
Including foreign entities ("Fundlng Parties"), with the understanding, whether
recorded in writing or otherwise, that the Holding Company and It's subsidiary
companies have directly or indirectly, lend or Invest In other personsor entities
identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Funding Party
("Ultimate Beneficiaries") or provide any guarantee, security or the like on
behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries;

Shridhar & Associates, 101, 1'1 Floor, Vaibhav Chambers, Madhusudan Kalekar Road, Bandra East, Mumbai-400052
Hend Office Tel: +91 (22) 2604 3028 / 2604 4363/6741 1399 Email: info@shrldharandassoclates.com
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(3) Based on our audit procedures which we have considered reasonable and
appropriate In the circumstances and according to the Information and
explanations provided to us by the Managementof the Holding CompemyIn this
regard, nothing has come to our notice that has caused us to believe that the
representations made by the Managementof the Holding Company under sub-
clause (1) and (2) contain any material misstatement.

v. The Holding Company and It's subsidiary company Incorporated In India have not
declared or paid dividend during the year and therefore reporting compliance
with section 123 of the Act Is not applicable.

2. In our opinion, according to Information, explanations given to us, the remuneration for
the year ended March 31, 2023 paid by the Group to Its directors Is within the limits
laid prescribed under Section 197of the Act read with ScheduleV to the Act.

3. According to the Information and explanations gIven to us and based on the CARD
reports Issued by us for the Companyand on consIderation of CARDreports by statutory
auditors of subsidiaries associates Included In the consolidated fInancial statements of
the Company to which reporting under CARDIs applicable, we report that there are no
Quatfffcatfonsl adverse remarks. .

4. Proviso to Rule 3(1) of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014 requires all companIes
which use accounting software for maIntaining their books of account, to USesuch an
accounting software which has a feature of audit trail, with effect from the financial
year beginning on 1 April 2023 and accordingly, reportIng under Rule 11(g) of
Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014 (as amended) Is not applicable for the
current financial year.

For Shrldhar & Associates
Chartered Accountants
ICAIFirm Registration No. 134427W

C)?~
AbhishekPachlangia
Partner
MembershipNo.: 120593
UDIN:23120593BGWJMN1876

Place: Mumbal
Date: May 17, 2023

Shridhar & Associates, 101, In Floor, Vaibhav Chambers, Madhusudan Kalekar Road, Bandra East, Mumbai·4000S2
Head Office Tel: +91 (22) 2604 302812604 4363/6741 1399 Email: Info@Shrldbarandassociates.com
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Shridhar & Associates
Chartered Accountants

ANNEXURE A TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT OF EVEN'DATE ON THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS OF SMARTLINK HOLDINGS LIMITED FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2023

[Referred to In paragraph 1 under 'Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements' In the
Independent Auditors' Report of even date to the Members of Smartllnk Holdings Limited on tlw
consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2023]

Rt'port on the Internal Financial Controls under Clause (I) of Sub-sectlon 3 of Section 143 of the
Companies Act, 2013 (lithe Act")

Opinion

Inconjunction With our audIt of the consolidated finanClal statements of the Company as of and for the
year ended March 31, 2023, we have audIted the Internal flnanclal controls with reference to
consolidated financial statements of Smartllnk Holdings LImited (hereinafter referred to as "the
Holding Company") and its subsidiary companies, which are companies Incorporated In India, as of that
date.

In our opinIon, and to the best of our Information and according to the explanations given to us, the
Holding Company andIts subsidiary companies are companies lncorporated In India, have, In all
material respects, adequate internal financial controls with reference to consolidated financial
statements and such internal financial controls with reference to consolidated fInancial statements
were operating effectively as at March 31, 2023, based on the internal control with reference to
consolidated fInancial statements criterIa established by the respectIve companIes consIderIng the
essential components of internal control stated In the GuIdance Note on Audit of Internal Financial
Controls Over Financial Reporting Issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India ("the
ICAI").

Management's Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

The respective Board of Directors of the Holding company, Its subsidiary companies, which are
companies incorporated in India, are responsible for establfshlng and maintaining Internal flnanclal
controls based on the internal control with reference to consolidated financial statements criteria
established by the respective companies considering the essential components of Internal control
stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by
the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India ("the ICAI"). These responsIbilities Include the design,
implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls that were operating
effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its business, Indudlng adherence to the
Iespecttve company's policies, the safeguarding of Its assets, the prevention and detection ot frauds
and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, and the timely preparation of
reliable financial information, as required under the Act.

Shrldhar & Associates, 101, piFloor, Valbhav Chambers, Madhusudan Kalekar Road, Bandra East, Mumbai-4000S2
Head Office Tel: +91 (22) 2604 3028/26044363/6741 1399 Email: info@shridharandassoclates.com

~

(j'-........0 "'U~'1t \,-; ~)..~ -4"" 1,. '
~ <S>,,< -.,.....

A.. S ' \
< ~o, \4 :"1\
;: ~p'g _~\'"
..:; S,l.l.\..l, 'f.,p :.:: I,~ \}

. 'f~\..0 ;",,;..'

1"\ ....~-b_ .<:::.~)/,' ~
\,). '''' cNDS O~r.\ (,

OF GO!)-
,~



\ j •

Shridhar & Associates
Chartered Accountants

Auditor's Responsibility

Our responsibility Is to express an opinion on the Internal financial controls with reference to
consolidated financial' statements of the Holding company, Its subsidiary companies, which al'"
companies Incorporated In India, based on our audit. We conducted our audit In accordance with the
Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls OVer Financial Reporting (the "Guidance Note")
Issued by the ICAIand the Standards on Auditfng prescribed under section 143(10) of the Act, to the
extent applicable to an audtt of Internal financial controls. Those Standards and the Guidance Note
require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable
assurance about whether Internal financial controls with reference to consolidated financial statements
was established and maintained and if such controls operated effectively in all material respects.

Our audit Involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the Internal financial controls
with reference to consolidated financial statements and their operating effectiveness. Our audtt of
Internal financial controls with reference to consolidated financial statements Included obtaining an
understanding of Internal financial controls with reference to consolidated financial statements,
assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the design and operating
effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed rlsk. The procedures selected depend on the
auditor's judgement, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the
consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained and the audit evidence obtained by the other
auditors in terms of their reports referred to In the Other Matters paragraph below, is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion on the Internal financial controls with reference to
consolidated financial statements of the Holding company, its subsidiary companies, which are
companies incorporated in India.

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls with reference to Consolidated Financial Statements

A company's internal financial control with reference to consolfdated financial statements is a process
designed to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the
preparation of consolidated financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally
accepted accounting principles. A company's internal financial control with reference to consolidated
financial statements Includes those policies and procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of
records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of the
assets of the company; (2) provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to
permit preparation of consolidated financial statements in accordance with generally accepted
accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the company are being made only in
accordance with authorizations of management and directors of the company; and (3) provide
reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorized acquisition, use, or
disposition of the company's assets that could have a material effect on the consolidated financial
statements.

Shrldhar & Associates, 101, 1st Floor, Vaibhav Chambers, Madhusudan Kalekar Road, Bandra East, Mumbai-400052
Head Office Tel: +91 (22) 2604 3028 , 2604 4363 '6741 1399 Email: info@shridbarandassociates.com
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Sl,ridhar & Associates
Otartered Accountants

Inhrtrent LImitations of Internal Financial Controls with reference to .Consolldated FinanCial
Sta!oments

Because of the Inherent lfmltatlons of Internal financial controls with reference to consolidated
f1 nmclal statements, Including the posslbllfty of collusion or Improper management override of
cortrols, material misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected, Also,
p relecttons of any evaluation of the Internal financial controls with reference to consotfdated financial
statements to future periods are subject to the risk that the Internal financial control with reference
to consolidated financial statements may become Inadequate because of changes In conditions, or that
the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate,

Other Matters

Our aforesaid reports under Section 143(3)(1) of the Act on the adequacy and operating effectiveness of
the Internal f.i'nanclal controls with reference to consolidated financial statements Insofar as It relates
to two subsidiary companies, which are companies Incorporated In India, Is based on the corresponding
reports of the auditors of such companies Incorporated In India,

For Shrldhar & Associates
Chartered Accountants
ICAI Firm Registration No. 134427W

cJo~
Abhlshek Pachlangla
Partner
Membership No.: 120593
UDIN: 23120593BGWJMN1876

Place: Mumbal
Date: May 17, 2023

Shridhar & Associates, 101, JSI Floor, Vaibhav Chambers, Madhusudan Kalekar Road, Bandra East, Mumbai-400052
Head Office Tel: +91 (22) 2604 3028/2604 4363 16741 1399 Email: info@shridharandassoclates.com



SMAl'tTLIt« HOLDINGS ~IMITED,
CoMollc:fattd Dalance'Sheet as at March 31,2023

(Amount iAINl1lokhs, unless otherwIse stated)

Noto As lit As lit
Particulars

No. March 31, 2023 Mllrch 31, 2022

ASSETS
Flnllncl~ I .uIOts

Cllsh lind osh equivalents 5 40.91 59.,/j
Sanl( bnl ene other than cash and cosh equtvetents 6 1,361.62 2,065,37

Receivable

(I) TrndO' recolvabtes 7 4,032.24 1,712.811

(II) Other ncetvabtes 7 8.27 2.96
Invoslm<:-ntl 13 12,260.62 10,972.511

otnor fll"Iaoclol assets 8 314.02 173.!l8

Non·flnancial Assets

Curront t axessets (Net) 9 176.28 80.60
Defl'lrrod t~ assets (Net) 36 267.03 327.21
Invostmcntproperty 10 1.106.11 1,279.88

Property, pt.antand equipment 11 2,203.49 1,851.09

Capllol won-ln-progress 215.70
other Intangible assets 12 3.71

lnvontortes 14 3,330.91 1,433.21

Othor non-manclal assets 15 1,041.36 703.60
Total Assets 26,162.86 20,887.63

L1AOILITIESANDEQUITY

LIAOILITIES

Financial liabIlities

Trade pilyables 16

(I) tota l outstanding dues of mIcro enterprises and small enterprIses 124.66 8.66

(If) teta l outstanding dues or creditors other than micro enterprfses
and small enterprtses 3,581.33 1,229.84

BorrowIngs (Other than Debt Securities) 17 3,366.66 2,527.89

Other rlnandallfabllftles 18 400.97 455.65

Non·Flnancial Llilbillties

Provisions 19 144.25 97.86

Other non- financlalliabflltles 20 194.69 72.47

EQUITY

Equity share capital 21 199.50 199.50

Other equity 22 18,150.80 16,300.57

Non·controlling Interest 23 (4.81)

Total Lfabflttles and EquIty 26,162.86 20,887.63

See accompanying notes to the consolidated fInancIal statements 1·68

The accompanyfng notes are an integral part of the finandal statements

As per my report of even date

For Shrldhar & Associates

Chartered Accountants

ICAIFirm Registratfon No.: 134427W

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of

Smartllnk HoldIngs Limited

CIN: L67100GA1993PLCOO1341

~'lk ~'

Executive Chairman Executive Direct

~~~
K.G.Prabhu Urjlta Damle

Chief Financial Officer Company Secretary

ICSI MembershIp No.24654

Uo~
Abhlshek Pachlangla

Partner

Membership No. 120593

'.

Place: Mumbai

Date: May 17, 2023
Place: Mumbal

Date: May 17.2023



SMARnl~ Kr.oI.DINOSLIMITED

Co",olldlO te{SIMomont or Prollt lind lOll (or tho yOftr ondod March 31, 2023

(Amount I n "~Inkhs, unloss otherwtso stated)

NOLO For Iho Yciftr ondod rer Iho YOM oncJod
Partlculan No. March 31, 2023 March 31, 2021

Royonuo f"rOJ eperattom
Inloroslltl COftO 2~ ~~~.76 ~?9.20
RlNlInllnc om f,Q.n 37.7)
Not gnltl ()n Inrvntue changes 25 311.1R HMU
ROVOIlilUr rotbCOntrnclS wllh customo» 26 ",1\73.38 7,070.77
Tolftl Roven", from oporatlons 16,)0:l.26 7j9~O.16

Olhor Inco me 27 128.68 9%.96
TOl811nco me 16,~3J.9~ 8,0~).H

£xpomol
Flnnoco cc:>sts 28 171.91 70.M
ImpnlrmOI\ t dllnnnclnllnslfllmcl1ts 29 0.26 4.76
PllrchnlO of S:ocl<·hHraue )0 7.09?68 2,~39.3~
COIl of fftW mlorlal consumed 31 5,014.0) 2,60MB
Chango In fnVIQloriel of IInlshed goods, work.ln·progress nnd ~tock.ln· trndo 32 (1,~26.68) (lM.29)
Employoo berelilS expenses n ',6'3.07 1,384.71\
DeprOClntlo n ald amortisation expense 31\ 290.60 2)9.46
Othor OXP(tnsfl 35 ',836,85 94',2)
Tolftl EXpen!!1 16,250,72 7,301\.61

Profit / (Loss)bo(oro oxcoptlonalltoms and tax 183,22 738.5)

Excopllonnl It",,1 treter note 10 (c) ) 2,091.'7

Profit I (Loss)boforo tax 2,27",79 739,'3

tess: TllXExpenlo:
· Cllrrenl Tax 33U9 100.~2
• Dororrod Tax 6~.60 (408,39)
• Tnx AdJust mInis 01 earlier year (~9.72) 6.90
Total TIIX ExptnlO 36(D) leO.8' (29),07)

Profit I (Loss) lor the year 1,923,94 1,031,60

Other Comprellonslve Income

A. Items that Vl1II not be reclassified to prollt or loss

R<!·mCtl5Ultmont gains I (1055)on dertned benefit plan (lM6) ('4.39)
. Income tax rolatlng to above 5,~9 0.71

Other Comprehensive Income (A) (29.37) (13,68)

Total Comprehenslvo Income for the year 1,894,51 1,017,92

Prollt I (loss) lor the year attributable to

Equity holders or the parent 1,923.94 1,038.74
Non·control tfng Interest (7.H)

Other comprehensive Income for the portod attrtbutable to
Equity holders or the parent (29.)7) (14.03)
Non'controillng Interest 0.35

Total comprehensive Income for the year, net of tax, attrtbutable to
Equity holders 0( the parent 1,89~.57 1,024.71
Non·controlling Interest (6.79)

Basic and diluted Earnings per share

(Nominal value per share Rs 2) )8 19.29 9.90
See accompanyilli notes to the consolidated financial statements 1-68
The accompanying notes are an Integral part of the Ifnanclat statements

As per my report of even date

For Shrtdhar & AssocIates
Chartered Accountants

rcAI Firm RegIstration No.: 134427W

for and on behall 01 the Board of Directors of

Smartllnk Holdfngs limited
ClN: L6710OGAI99)PlC001341

~~
Abhlshek pachlangla .

Partner
Membership No. 120593

K.R. Nafk
Executlve Chairman

Place: Mumbal
Date: May 17, 202)



SMMrUNK HOLDINGSLIMITED

Conaot ilated Statement Of Cash flows for the year on dod March 31, 2023

(AmOllr11n INR lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

Particulars
For the Yoar Ended For the YOllr End()d

March 31, 2023 March 31, 2Of2

eMil fI cw from operating activities

Net profit before tax 2,274.79 738.53

AcJJustrnnts for:

Depredation and amortisation expense 298.60 239.46

Profit: on Property, plant and equipment sold' written of( (net) (2,11!3.28) (0.64)

Provlsbn for diminution in value of non current Investments 0.26 4.78

fiR IrT1?actof security deposits and rent amortization (1.32) (0.80)

I!IR IITl~nct of Interest Income on bonds 6.94 6.84

Intere!t on Income tax refund (2.79) (0.36)

Bad DEbts written off 0.22 1.32

Provlslm for doubtful debts made/(wrltten back) 5.82 4.96

Net gain on fall' value changes (317.78) (342,118)

Unreallsed Foreign exchange difference (net) (13.14) (23.38)

Slindrybnlances written off' (back) (net) iI.S3 1.20

Finance costs 171.91 70.86

Gain on derecognltlon of Right to use assets (2.72)

Provision for warranty (net) 9.30 4.24

Statutory provision no longer required written back (8.70)

Operating profit' (loss) before working capital changes 291.34 695.83

Changes In working capital

(Increase) , Decrease In Investments (995.22) 5,866.72

(Increasel' Decrease In Fixed deposits with Banks 591.63 (762.43)

(Increasel' Decrease in Inventories (1,897.70) (743.40)

(Increase)' Decrease In Trade and other receivables (2,329.23) (832.11)

(lncreasej z Decrease In Other financial assets (27.00) (435.61 )

(lncreasel ? Decrease In Other non- financial assets (337.75) (131.77)

Increase I (Decrease) In Trade payables 2,474.59 464.97

Increase I (Decrease) in Other financial liabilities (103.25) 169.16

Increase I (Decrease) in Other non·flnandalliabllities 112.90 31.83

Increase I (Decrease) In provisions 11.55 16.42

Cash generated from I (used In) operations (2,208.14) 4,339.61

Income tax paid (377.86) (143.00)

Net cash flows from' (used In) operating actlvltles (A) (2,586.00) 4,196.61

Cash flow from Investing activities

Purchase of property, plant and equipment and Investment property (412.09) (424.06)

Proceeds from Sale of property, plant and equipment and Intangible asse 2,507.37 0.68

Net cash flow from' (used In) Investing activities (8) 2,095.28 (423.38)

Cash flow from Financing activities

Buyback of Parent Company's equity shares (3,158.75)

Tax on Buyback of Parent Company's equity shares - (704.57)

Proceeds from' (Repayment of) borrowings 681. 92 237.31

Interest payments (146.47) (100.14)

Cash Payment for the principal portion of lease payments (62.94) (42.26)

Net cash flows from I (used In) financing activities (C) 472.51 (3,768.41)

Net Increase I (Decrease) In cash and cash equivalents (A+B+C) (18.21) 4.82
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year 59.14 54.31

Effect of exchange differences on restatement of foreign currency Cash
(0.02) 0.01and bank balance

Cash and cash equl,!!!!.ents at the end of the year 40.91 59.14
-" ~ ,. ",



SMARr LlIK HOLDINGS LIMITED

cornet idltod Statement Of Cllsh flows for the year ondod Mllrch 31, 2023

(Amount illNR lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

Perttculers
For tho Yfillr Endod For tho YOllr Endod

Mllrch 31, 2023 March 31, 2022

ClISh IIndclI5h equlvalents comprise

Bnlances with banks

On CU mot accounts

Cnsh on lund

Totlil cash and cash equlvelents lit end of tho YOllr 59.14

38.13

2.78

55.84
).30

40.91

(I) Tho abovo Consolidated Stlltement of Cllsh flow hes beon pro pared undor tho Indlroct mothod liS sot out In
Ind AS 7 ·Statement of Cesh Flows".

(II) Hon CashMovement In Financing Activity

Partlculers
For the Yeer Ended For tho Yellr Ended

Merch 31, 2023 Mllrch 31, 2022

Borrow! ngs (Including current maturities of long term Debt) (45.16)

Lease Liabilities 219.79 15.87

See accompanying notes to the consolidated f!nanclal statements 1-68

The accompanying notes are an Integral part of the finanCial statements

As per my report of even date

For Shr Idhar a Associates

Chartered Accountants

ICAI Firm Registration No.: 134427W

Abhlshek Pachlangla

Partner

Membership No. 120593

Place: Mumbal

Date: May 17, 2023

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of

Smartllnk Holdings Limited

CIN : L67100GA1993PLCOO1341

r3.AK.R. Halk

Executive Chairman

\::~2~':
K.~

Chief Flnancfal Officci Company Secrctary

ICSIMembership No.24654

Place: Mumbal

Date: May 17, 2023



~
~
...
1"\

-'=
U...
~
'Q
CII
'Q
c:
CII..
10
ell
>-
CII

5
.2~-,~ '2g. ....
ILl 2
c: '".~ 9:
t '~
~ CII

S
10 .c:-'= ....

t::
u 0
'"- VI

~ 0 Jl:J .... c
VI

c: :;)
CII..,
E .".. ~Z ell ~9 .... '0.B .!!l 10

0 VI ~ U
J: 'Q a; CII
:.: ell ..
Z

.... .= 10
10 s:

:J :'2 ...,
VI

C

~ 0 8 ,~III

~ c:

~
:;)

8 sr
VI ILl

8 ~ 0
, I.()... ~ ~ 0:

:::l c 0-:l N - ...
0 0
N E
....- oct
1"\

s:
~

~ § §§~ 10

8 .n .n.... s:
10 III N "~ ... ,...; ,...; ~0 "'!. C-o ....

z

0 0
lI'> I.()... 0:

, ,
0:

'" c: 0- ~N :l ....
0 0
N E
.... oct

'".c:
~ '" 8 §10 CII~ .. 0 ,

10 .n .n... s:
10 III " ".~ .... c; 0-0 0- 0-

0
Z

...
'"III>-
<II

:G s:
e

...,
CII ....

10 >- c
"5 <II 'C
u £ :;)

'f '0
.... .:!!

'" C va.
'C '":;) .D
'0 ....
'2 -'=

""
""

:;) :>
III c8.£ ~ ""c Vi

c
~-o 'in

o ~ ~ .2_,
u

..........
f • • 00

i

~
N '

.....
I I t N

N

.....
ItI

I I I 0\

~

c:
o

ji:f
.. :l
,~ .D
a. 'C'" ....u c

8

11'1
0>

N
0>

..
00

t, , I

~:

!9

1
'Q

ij~~~~~+-~~4-~

j

....
,0-

N
0-



SMARTLIHK. IOLDINGSLIMITED

Notes (orml I1j Pllrt of the Consolldeted Flnllncllli Stlltements for tho YOllr ondod 31 Mnrch 2023
(Amount In IIR,unless otherwise stated)

Corpor ale tnformatlon

Smnrtll ntlloldlngs limited (formerly known liS Smartllnk Networ1l Systems Limited ) (~Company" or "Poronl" or ·Pnront Compnny"),
Incorpe>rllod In Goa Is a Non·6nnklng Flnrlllclniinstitution (!'I6FI) (non·ooposlt tllklng) liS doflnod undor Rosorvo Bank of Indlll Act, 193",
Tho Corn)c'lIW'sregistered office Is situated nt Vema Industrial Estnto, GOII, India,

Tho Con~lIdnted Financial Statement of Smnrtllnk Holdings LImited comprlso of tho flnnnclni stntomonls of tho Poront COIllPMY nnd Its
s\tb~ldlar'u Dfglsol SystemsLImited and Synegra EMSLimited, togethor rererred to liS the 'Group' ,

Tho pnreo,ACompany operates as an Investment Company and earns majorly rrom InvestlnB nctlvlty,

0181101Sllloms limited Is In the business of developing, manllillclurlng, markotlng, distributing and servicing or vorlolls cMoRorlel 01
NotWOI'klr.glind Information TechnoloBY (IT) Products.

SynoBI't'\ IMSLImited Is In the business o( manufacture 01 various clltcgOf'los of oloctronlc lind IT products on job work bl'uls nnd 0150
engllRos hcontract manufacturing (or Original Equipment Manufncturers,

TolosmanSCS limited Is In the business of manufacture of various cateBory or oloctronlc nnd IT products, Dur1ngtho YOllrtho compnny
hilSmorgld with DIBlsolSystems limited (refer note 37(6».

Tho 00ar6 of Directors approved the consolidated financial statements for tho yonr ondod Morch 31, 2023 and lIuthortsod for Issue on
.'My 17, 2m,

2 Slgnlflcart acccuntlng policies

Slgnlrtcanlllccounting coucies adopted by the Group are as under:
2,1 Balls of Preparation o( Financllli Statements

(n) St.toment o( Compliance with Ind AS

Th~o financial statements have been prepared In accordance with Indian AccountlnB Stllndllrds (Ind AS) notified under Section
1 33 of the ccrnpanies Act, 2013 (the "Act") read with tho Companies (Indilln Accounting Stllndllrds) Rules, 2015 and Compnny
(Injlnn Accounting Standard) Ammendment Rules, 2016,

Ac(ountlng policies have been consistently applied to all the years presented except where II newly Issued accounting stnndord
is Inltlnlly edopted or a revision to an existing accounting standard requires II chongo In tho IIccounting policy hitherto in usc.

Th~ financial statements have been prepared on n historical cost basis, except for cortaln flnonclal assets and flnnnciol
liabilities that lire measured lit fair vetue.

Th~ financial statements are presented In Indian Rupees (INR) in lakhs, which Is also the functional currency of the company lind
at! amounts disclosed In financial statements and notes have been rounded off to the nearest lakhs, except when otherwlso
Ind1cllted.

(b) Use of estimates
The preparation of financial statements In conformity with Ind ASrequires the MIInagement to make estimate and assumptions
that o((ect the reported amount of assets end liabilities as at the Balance Sheet date, reported amount of revenue and expenses
for the year and disclosures of contingent liabilities as at the 6alance Sheet date, The estimates lind assumptions used In the
IIccompanying flnilnclill statements <Ire based upon the MIInegemont'sevaluation of the relavllnt fllcts and circumstances IlS et
the date of the ffnancllli statements, Actual results could differ (rom these estimates. tsumetes and underlying assumptions are
reviewed on a pertodlc basis. Revisions to accounting estimates, If any, are recognized In the year In which the estimates are
revised and In any future years affected. Refer Note 3 for detailed discussion on estimates and judgments.

2,2 Principles of consolidation
SubsidiarIes
Subsldlartes are all entities (Including structured entities) over which the group has control. The Group controls an entity when
the group Is exposed to, or has rights to, vartable returns from Its Involvement with the entity and has the ability to affect those
returns through Its power to dIrect the relevant activities of the entity. Subsldlartes are (utly consolidated (rom the date on
whIch control Is transferred to the Group. They are deconsolldated (rom the date that control ceases.

The Group combines the flnancllli statements of the parent and Its subsldlartes line by line adding together like Items of assets,
liabilities, equity, Income and expenses. lnterc.ompany transactions, balances and unrellllsed gllln.s on transactIons between
group companies are eliminated, Unreallsed losses are also eliminated unless the transaction provides evidence o( an
Impairment of the transferred asset. Accounting policies of subsidiaries have been changed where necessary to ensure
consistency with the policies adopted by the group.

~ . .
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IlJllness combtnatlens

Aqlllsition of substdlartes and businesses are accounted for using the purchase method. Tho consldcrlltlon transferred In oecn
bJslnesscombination Is measured at the aggregate of the ecqutsnton date, folr volues of assets given, liabilities incurred by the
Cto\Jpto the former owners of the acqulree, and equity Interests Isslied by the Group In exchooge for control of the IIcqulroe,

Aqulsltion related costs are recognised In the consolidated statement of profit ilnd loss,

Glodwlll anslng on acquisition Is recognised as an asset and measured lit cost, being the excessof the consideration transferred
i nthe businesscombination over the Group's Interest In the net fllir vatue of the Identlfloblo aSSetsacquired, IInbllitles essumou
and contingent lIabilitIes recognised, Where the fair value of the Identifiable essets and liabilities exceed the cost of
acquIsItion, after re-assesstng the fair values of the net assets and contingent liabilities, the excess Is recognised as capital
retlrve on consolidation,

(Xe control has been achieved, any subsequent acqutsltlons where the Group does not onglnally hold a hundred percent
f rurest In a subsIdIary are treated as an acqutsttton of shares from non-controlling shareholders, The Identifiable net assets ore
net subject to further faIr value adjustments and the dIfference between the cost of acquisItion of the noncontroillng Interest
ard the net book value of the addItional proportIon acquired Is adjusted In eqUIty, The amount of non,controlllng Interests In
til ocqulree Is measured either at the non-controtung Interests proportIon of the net fair value of the assets, liabilities and
cQO\1ngentlIablllttes recognIsed or at faIr value,

BlJllness combInations anslng from transfers of Interests In entities that are under the common control are accounted for usIng
tte pooling of Interest method. The dIfference between any consIderatIon transferred and the IIggregate hlstorlcat carryIng
values of assets and liabilities of the acquired entIty are recognised In shareholder's equIty,

Wt.en a transactIon or other event does not meet the definItion of a busInesscombInation due to the asset or group of assets not
• ijentifies and recognises the IndIvidual Identifiable assets acquired
• allocates the cost of the group of assets and liabilIties to the IndivIdual Identifiable assets and liabilIties on the basis of their
SIXh a transactIon or event does not gIve rise to goodwill or a gllin on a bargain purchase,

2,) Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment, are stated at hIstorIcal cost of acqutsttlon or constructIon less accumulated deprecIatIon and
Impairment losses, If any, Cost of property, plant and equipment comprtses Its purchase price net of IIny dIscounts and rebates,
any Import dutIes and other taxes (other than those subsequently recovered from the tax euthortttes), any dIrectly attributable
expenditure on makIng the asset ready for Its Intended use, other Incidental expenses, decommIssionIng costs, If any, and
Interest on borrowings attnbutabte to It up to the date It Is ready for Its Intended use, Cost of property, plant and equIpment
that are not yet ready for theIr Intended use at the balance sheet date are shown under cepltal work-In-progress.

Subsequent costs are Included In the asset's carrying amount or recognIzed as a separate asset, as apprcprtate, only when It Is
probable that future economIc benefits associated with the Item will flow to the Group and the cost of the Item can be
measured reliably, The carrying amount of any component accounted for as a separateasset Is derecognlzed when replaced, All
other repairs and maIntenance costs are charged to Statement of Profit and Lossduring the year In which they are Incurred,

Property, plant and equipment's restdual values and useful lives are revIewed at each Balance Sheet date and changes, If any,
are treated as changes In accounting estimate.

Depredation methods, esttmated useful lives
The Group depreciates Property, Plant and Equlpments usIng the straIght line method over theIr estImated useful lives as under:
Property, plant and equIpment Useful Lives (In years)
Plant and Equlpments
Fumlture and Fixtures
Motor VehIcle
Office Equipment
Electrical Installations
AIr Conditioners
Computers

8
8

5

5
10

10

3
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Notes fOI'mi n!pllrt of the Consolidated FlnanclZlI Statements for the year ended 31 March 2023
(Amount In 1Ill, unless otherwise stated)

[)~rcclat!on on property, plant and equipment has been provldod on tho strnlghHlne methoc as per tho userut urc prescribed In
Sc!edule II to the CompaniesAct, 2013except In respect of certnln cntegorles of IISSOts,In whose coso thl'! life of tho nssets hns
bm assessedas under based on techntca; advIce, tnklng Into nccount tho neture of tho nssGt, tho ostlm!ltod ustlgGof tho
aS~I, the operating condItions of the asset, post history of replacement, antlclpntod technologlcnl changes, mnnufacturel's
Vo'arnntlesand maintenance support, etc

Dcrcclatlon on addition to property plant nnd equIpment Is provided on pro·ratn basis from tho date of acquiSition.

Pr\'!)mty plant and equipment Is derecogntssd on dlsposnl or when no future economic benefits ere expected from Its uso.

Dejroclatlon on derecognltlon of an asset from property plant nnd equlpment Is provldcd up to the date preceding the dato of
d~cosnltlon.
Any gain or loss arisIng on derecognttton of the asset (calculated as the dlHcrence between the net dtsposat proceeds nnd the
carrying amount of the asset) Is recognised In other Income I expense In the statement of profit nnd loss In the yanr tho asset Is
dellcognlsed.

Der(eciatlon methods, useful lives and residual values are reviewed perlodlcnlly at each financial yonr end and ndjustocl
pr~pectlvely, as appropriate.

2.4 Invlstment properties
pro;erty that Is held for long - term rental yIeld or for capital approprIation or both, and that Is not used In the production of
gOOs and servIcesor for administrative purposes Is classified as Investment property.

lrivstrnent properties are measured Initially at cost. Subsequent to Inltlnl recognition, Investment properties are stated at cost
lessnccumulated depreciation and accumulated Impairment loss, If any.

Thecost Includes the cost of replacing parts and borrowing costs for tong-term constructfon projects If the recognition criteria
are met. WhenSignifIcant parts of the Investment property are required to be replaced at Intervals, the Group depreciates them
seplrntely based on their specific useful lives. All other repair and maintenance costs are recognized In profit or loss as
tnorred,

Investment properties are derecognlzed either when they have been disposed of or when they are permanently withdrawn from
use and no future economic benefit Is expected from their disposal. The difference between the net disposal proceeds and the
carrying amount of the asset Is recognized In profit or loss In the period of derecognltlon.

Investment properties include properties leased out and measured under Ind AS 116as right of use assets.

2,5 Intangible Assets
Intangible assets with finite useful lives that are acquired separately are carried at cost less accumulated amortisation and
accumulated Impairment losses. Amortisation Is recognised on a straight line basis over their estimated useful lives so as to
reflect the pattern In which the assets economic benefits are consumed. The estimated useful life and amortisation method are
reviewed at the end of each reporting period, wIth the effect of any changes In estimate being accounted for on a prospective
basis. The amortisation of intangible asset Is Included In Depreciation and amortisation expense In statement of Profit a Loss
account.

The Group amortized Intangible assets using the straight line method over their estimated useful lives as under:

Intangible assets Useful life (In years)

Computer Software (ERP)
Computer Software (other software)
Technical know-how

3

4

5

Intangible assets with finite Uvesare assessedfor Impairment whenever there is an Indication that the Intangible asset may be
Impaired. The amortization period and the amortization method for an Intangible asset with a finite useful life are reviewed at
least at each financial year end.

2.6 Foreign Currency Transactions
(a) Functional and presentation currency

Items Included In the financial statements are measured using the currency of the primary economic environment In which the
entity operates ('the functional currency'). The financial statements are presented in Indian rupee (INR), which is the Group's
functional and presentation currency.
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(b) "Tansactlons end batences
Olnltlal recognltfon, ntt foreIgn currency transactions oro rocordod by npplylna to tha (oro Ian curroncy nmount tho o)(chonBo
rll~ between tho functlonnl curroncy and the foreIgn currency lit lho dnto of tho trenseeuon, Gnlns/Lossos (irIsh,S out o(
~h:lUatfon In forellIn exchange rote between the transoctlon date and solllamemt dolo nre recognIsed In the Statamont of Prom
aId toss.

Almonetary assets and liabilIties In foreign currencIes are restatod ntlho yoor end lit tho exchnngo rMo prevailing 01 tha yew
er~ nnd the exchange differences are recognised In the Statement of Prom nnd Loss.

t-lOl·monetnry Items that are mensured In terms or hlstoncnl cost In n (orollln curroncy ere translnted usIng the e)(chl1080rot03
aUho dates of tho InItial trensecnons,

2,7 Fir value measurement

TIe Group measures flnnnclal Instruments, such as, dertvenves lit faIr valuo at each betance sheet deto,

Far value Is the prIce that would be received to soli an asset or paid to transfer Q IInblllty In en orderly trnnsactlon bolwoan
mlrket particIpants at the measurement date, The fair value measuremont Is based on the presumptIon thnt the rrensecttcn to
sel the asset or trensror the IInblllty takes place either:
~!n the pnnclpal market (or the asset or liabIlity, or
~ In the absence of a pnnclpal market, In the most advantllgeous markot for tho assot or liabIlity accessible to the Group,

Til! Group uses valulltlon technIques tMt lire approprtate In the ctreumstences lind for which sufrtclont data tire available to
rnesure fair value, maximizIng tho use of relevant observable Inputs and minImIzing the USeo( unobsorvable Inputs, The Group·s
mlllngement determines the policies and procedures (or ralr value measurement.

AlIilssets and liabIlities (or which (aIr value Is measured or disclosed In Ihe fInancIal stntements are categorized within the (nlr
vaue hIerarchy, described as follows, based on the lowest level Input that Is slgnlflcnnt to the (air value measurement as n
wtete:
- level 1 - Quoted (unadjusted) merket prices In actIve markets (or Identical assets or IInbHltles
- level 2 - Inputs other than quoted prices Included In Level 1 that are observnble ror the assets or liability, elthor

directly (I.e. as prices) or Indirectly (t.e, derived from prices).
- level 3 - Inputs for the assets or liability that lire not based on observable market data (unobservable Inputs),

2.8 Revonue RecognItion
(a) Interest Income

Interest Income Is recorded using the effective Interest rate (EIR) method (or all rtnanclal instruments measured lit amortised
cost and debt Instrument measured at MOCI. The EIRIs the rere thllt exactly dIscounts estimated future cash receiots through
the expected life of the rtnanclal Instrument or, when appropriate, a shorter period, to the net carrying amount of the flnnncial
asset.

The EIR (and therefore, the amortIsed cost of the asset) Is calculated by taking Into account any discount or premium on
acqotstuon, fees and costs that lire lin Integrlll part of the EIR. The Group recogntses Interest Income using a rate of return that
represents the best estimate of a constant rate of return over tho expected life of tho loan. Hence, It recognIses the effect o(
potentially different Interest rates charged at vartocs stages, and other charactertsttcs of the product life cycle (Including
prepayments, penalty interest and charges).

If expectations regarding the cash flows on the finanCial asset lire revised for reasonsother than credit risk. The adjustment Is
booked as a positive or negative adjustment to the carrying amount of the asset In the balance sheet with an Increase or
reduction In Interest Income. The adjustment Is subsequently amortIsed through Interest Income In the statement of profit and
loss.

(b) Revenue from lease rentals

LeaseIncome Is recognised In the Statement of Profit and Losson straight Une basis over the lease term, unless there Is another
systemattc basis which is more representative or the time pattern of the lease.

(c) Dlv1dend Income

Dividend Income (Including from FVOCIInvestments) Is recognised when the Group's nght to receive the payment is established,
it Is probable that the economic benefits associated with the dividend will flow to the entity and the amount of the dividend can
be measured reliably. Thts Is generally when the shareholders approve the dIvidend.
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(d) Indlng Income

"Trcdlng Income Includes all gains and losses from changes In fair value and the rotated Interest Income or expense and
dil'donds, for financial assets and ffnanclallfllbillties held for trading.

(0) Relllnue from contract with customers

ReII!nue from contract with customers Is recognised upon satisfaction of the performance obllgollon by transferring promlsod
gOlds and renderfng of services to the customer. The revenue Is measured based on transaction price, whIch Is tho fnlr valuo of
cOl$lderatlon received or receivable, and Is net of discounts, allowances, returns, goods and services tax/value .,dded
tal:!s/sales tax and amounts collected on behalf of third party.

2.9 ACtOuntins for Government Grants

GOIernment grants In terms of Incentives are recognized only when there Is reasonable essurance that (I) the Group will comply
with the conditions attached to them, and (11) the grant/subSidy will be received.
The Government grant In the form of Incentives are recognized liS Income on a systematic basis In the Statement of Profit' nnd
LOSI over the perfods necessary to match them with the related costs, which they are Intended to compensate lind the
aclievement of the performance crfterla for belns eligible for receipt of the gmnt. The grants are presented under 'Olhol'
Ol)frntlng Income' In the Statement of Profit and Loss.

2,10 Taxes

Taxexpense for the year, comprising current tax and deferred tox, are Included In the determination of the net profit or loss for
theyonr.

(0) Curront Income tax
Current tax Is the amount of tax payable on the taxable Income for the year as determined In accordance with the provlslons of
the Income Tax Act, 1961. Current tax assets and rex 1I0billties are offset where the entity has a legnlly enforceable right to
offset and Intends either to settle on a net basts, or to realize the asset and settle the liability simultaneously.

(b) Defmed tex
Deferred tax Is recognised on temporary differences, being differences between the carrying amount of assetsand liabilities and
corresponding tax basesused In the computation of taxable proftt. Deferred tax Is measured using the tax rates and the tax Inws
enacted or substantively enacted as at the reporting date. Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for all temporary differences,
except:
(t) Wherethe deferred tax lIablltty arises from the Initial recognition of goodwill or of an asset or liability In a transaction that Is
not abusinesscombination and, at the time of the transaction. affects neither the accounting profit nor taxable profit or loss
(11)In respect of taxable temporary differences associated with Investments In subSidiaries, where the timing of the reversal of
the temporary differences can be controlled and It Is probable that the temporary differences will not reverse In the foreseeable
future.

Deferred tax assets are generally recognised for all deductible temporary differences to the extent that It Is probable thnt
taxable profits will be available against which those deductible temporary differences can be utilised. Deferred tax assets and
liabilities are offset If such Items relate to taxes on Income levied by the same govemlng tax laws and the Group has a legally
enforceable right for such set off.
Deferred tax assetsare reviewed at each balance sheet date for their reallsabillty.

Current and deferred tax are recognised In profit or loss, except when they relate to Items that are recognised In Other
Comprehensive Income or directly In equity, In which case, the current and deferred tax are also recognised In Other
ComprehensiveIncome or directly In equity respectively.



SMARTI.INK tOLDINGS LIMITED

Notes forml nlPllrt of the Consolidated Financial Statements for the year endod 31 March 2023
(Amount In Ih~,unless otherwise stated)

2.11 LElSOS

A entract Is, or contains, a lease If the contract conveys the right to control the lise of (Ill IdellUftod ossat for LI parlotl of limo
; J'lIxchangefor consideration.

GrGIII) as II lessee

TI'l Group accounts for each lease component within the contract (IS {\ lense separately from ncn-tease components of the
c01trllct and allocates the consideration In the contract to each lease component on tllo bnsls of tho rolatlve stand-alone price
ofU1e lease component and the aggregate stand-atone price of the non-lease components.
TII1 Group recognises right· or-use asset representing Its right to use the underlying asset for tho leoso term at tM l(toso
c onmencernent date. The cost of the right-of-use asset measured at Inception shall comprise of tho amount of the Inltlnl
measurement of the lease liability adjusted for ony lease payments made at or before the commencement date less any lenso
f ncei1t1vesreceived, plus any Initial direct costs Incurred and an estimate or costs to be Incurred by the lesseo In dlsmnntllng
an! removing the underlying asset or restoring the underlying asset or site on which It Is located. Tho right-or· use assets Is
s ub!G(Juentlymeasured at cost less any accumulated deprectatlon, accumulated Implllrmcnt tosses, I( any lind adjusted for any
reaensuremenr of the lease liability. The rlght·o(-use assets Is deprectated usIng the strnlght·llne method from the
co:nmencement date over the shorter of lease term or useful lifo of right-of-use asset. The estlmnted usofulllv(ls of rlght·of use
assets are determined on the same basis as those of property, plant and equipment. Right-of-use assets are tested for
Impairment whenever there Is any Indication that their carrying amounts may not be recoverable. ImpDlrment loss, If any, Is
recognised In the statement of profit and loss.

The Group measures the lease liability at the present value of the lease pnyrnents that are not paid at the commencement date
of Ihe lease. The lease payments are discounted using the Interest rate ImpliCit In the tease, If that rete can be rc1!ldlly
determIned. If that rate cannot be readily determined, the Group uses Incremental borrowing rate. For leases with reasonably
sirnlliir characteristics, the Group, on a lease by lease bests, may adopt either the Incremental borrowIng rate specific to the
lease or the Incremental borrowing rate for the portfolio as a whole. The lease p1lymentsshatt tnclude fixed payments, variable
lease payments, residual value guarantees, exercise price of a purchase option where the Group Is reasonably certain to
exercise that option and payments of penaltfes for terminating the lease, If the lease term reflects the lessee exercising en
option to termInate the lease. The lease liability Is subsequently remeasured by Increasing the carrying amount to reflect
Interest on the lease liability, reducing the carryIng amount to reflect the lease payments made and rerneasurlng the carrying
amount to reflect any reassessmentor lease modIfications or to reflect revised In-substance fixed lease payments.

The Group recognises the amount of the re-measurernent of lease liabilIty as an adjustment to the right-of-lise asset. Where the
canylng amount of the right-of-use asset Is reduced to zero and there Is a further reduction In the measurement of the lease
liability, the Group recognises any remaining amount of the re-rneasurernent In statement of profit and loss.

The Group has elected not to apply the requirements of Ind AS116 to short-term leasesof all assets that have a lease term of 12
months or less and leases for which the underlying asset Is of low value, The lease payments assoclated with these leases are
recognized as an expense on a straight -ltne basis over the lease term.

Group as a lessor

At the Inception of the lease the Group ctasstncs each of Its lenses us either an operating lease or n flnilnce lease. The Group
recognises lease payments received under operating leases as Income on a straight- line basis over the lease term. In case of a
finance lease, finance Income Is recognised over the lease term based on a pattern reflecting a constant periodic rate of return
on the lessor's net investment In the lease. When the Group Is an Intermediate lessor It accounts for Its Interests In the head
lease and the sub-lease separately. It assessesthe lease classification of a sub-lease with reference to the rlght-ot-use asset
arisIng from the head lease, not with reference to the underlying asset. If a head lease Is a short term lease to which the Group
applies the exemption described above, then It classifies the sub-tease as an operating lease.
If an arrangement contains lease and non-lease components, the Group applies Ind AS 115 Revenueto allocate the consideratIon
In the contract.

lnd AS116 requires Inclusion of variable lease payments based on Index or a rate.
Variable lease payments based on an index or a rate: Variable lease payments based on an index or a rate (for example, linked
to a consumer price index, a benchmark interest rate or a market rental rate) are part of the lease liability. From the
perspective of the lessee, these payments are unavoldabte, because any uncertainty relates only to the measurement of the
liability but not to its existence. Variable tease payments based on an index or a rate are Initially measured using the index or
the rate at the commencement date (instead of forward rates/indices). This means that an entity does not forecast future
changesof the index/ rate; these changes are taken Into account at the point In time In which lease payments change.
However, based on management's estimates that lease payment Increases 10%after a period of a period of three years.
Therefore, based on management judgement, estimates and conservative approach it is estimated, lease liability has been
calculated based on these estimated cash flows.
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(Amount In n'l unless otherwise statod)

<JJer(lting leases
Ala lessee:
Fatrnnsltlon, the Group has elected not to apply the requirements of Ind AS 116 to leaseswhich (1(0 oxplrlng within 12months
r(!m the date of transition by class of asset and leases for which the undorlylng esser Is of low valuo on a loase·by lOllsabosls.
Tte Group has also used the practical expedient provided by tho standnr{! whon IIpplylng Ind AS 116 to teases previously
c:hsslffed as operating leases under AS 17 and therefore, has not reassessedwhethor 0 contrect, Is or contnlns n tense, at the
dile of InitiaL application, relied on Its assessmentof whether leases ere onerous, opplylng AS29 Immediately before the dote
of Initial application as an elternattve to performing an Impairment review, oxcluded Inltlol direct costs from measuring tho
rl~1 of use asset at the date of Initlalllpplication nnd used hindsight when determining tho teaso term If tho contract contolns
oilions to extend or terminate the lease. The Group has used a single discount rate to a porttotto of toesos with slmllo,'
cmr(\ctenstlcs.
Onappllcatlon of Ind AS 116, the nature of expenseshas changed from leose rent In previous periods to deprecletlon cost for tho
rlSltt·to-use asset, and (lnance cost for Interest accrued on lease liability.

Asa lossor:
Til! Group Is not required to make any adjustments on transition to Ind AS 116 for loosesIn which It acts as II lessor, except for
a IUb·lease.The Group accounted for Its leases In accordance with Ind AS 116 from the date or Inltlnl nppllcatlon. The Group
d01S not have any slgnlflcllnt Impact on account of sob-Leaseon tho eppttcetlon of this stnndllrd.

2.12 I rnpalrment of non-flnanclel essets
T~ carrying values of assets I cash generating units et each balance sheet dnte are rovlewod for Impairment. If llny Indication
of Impairment exists, the recoverable amount of such assets Is estfmated and Impairment ISrecognised, If the carrying amount
of these assets exceeds their recoverable amount. The recoverable amount Is the fair value less cost to sell and their value In
use. Value In use Is arrived at by discounting the future cash flows to their present value based on an approprfate pre-tax
discount rate to determine whether there Is any Indication that those assets have suffered any Impairment loss. When there Is
an Indication that an Impairment loss recognised for an asset In earlier accounting periods no longer exists or may have
decreased, such reversal of Impairment loss Is recognised In the Statement of Profit lind Loss,except In case of revalued assets.

2.13 Provisions and contingent liabilities

Pronstons are recognised when the Group has II present obligation (Legal or constructive) as a result or a past event, It Is
probable that the Group will be required to settle the obligation, and II reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the
obllglltlon.
The amount recognised as a provision Is the best estimate of the consideration required to settle the present obligation at the
end of the reporting pertod, taking Into account the risks and uncertainties surrounding the obligation. In the event the time
value of money Is material, provision Is carried at the present value of the cash flows required to settle the obligation.
If the effect of the time value of money Is material, provisions are discounted using a current pre-tax rate that reflects, when
appropriate, the risks specific to the liability. When discounting Is used, the Increase In the provision due to the passageof time
Is recognizedas a finance cost.

Contingent liabilities are disclosed when there Is a possible obligation arising from past events, the existence of which will be
confirmed only by the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more uncertain future events not wholly within the control of the
Group or a present obligation that arises from past events, where It Is either not probable that an outflow of resources will be
required to settle the obligation or a reliable estimate of the amount cannot be made. When there Is a possible obligation or a
present obligation In respect of which the likelihood of outflow of resources Is remote, no provision or disclosure Is made.

Contingent assets are possibLeassets that arises from past events and whose existence will be confirmed only by the occurrence
or non-occurrence of one or more uncertain future events not wholly within the control of the entity. A contingent asset Is
disclosed, where an Inflow of economic benefits is probable.

2.14 Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalent In the balance sheet comprise cash at banks and on hand and short-term deposits with an onglnal
maturity of three months or less, which are subject to an insignificant risk of changes In value.

For the purpose of cash flow statement, cash and cash equivalents Include cash on hand, cash In bank and short-term deposits
net of bank overdraft.

\
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2.1!l Fhanclallnstruments
A ftnnncial Instrument Is OilY contract that gives rtse to a flnonclnl nssot of one ontlty lind 11 flnnnclni liability or equity
i nsrument of another entity.

I mestments and rtnanclalassets

(I) I n~lftl recognition and measurement
Atlnltlal recognition, flnnnciainsset Is measured at Its (air value plus, In the case of a flnanclnl nssot not ot (air value through
profit or loss, transnctlon costs thnt are directly attributable to the acquisition of tho rtnunclol asset. Transaction costs of
firnnclal assets carried at fair value through profit or loss are expensed In profit or loss,

(II) Su~soquent measurement
Fcrpurposes of subsequent measurement, flnandal assets are classified In (ollowlng categories:
a) at amortized cost; or
bHt fair value through other comprehensive Incomo; or
c) at fair value through profit or loss.
Til! classification depends on the entity's business model for managing the flnanclnl assets and the contractual terms of tho
cash flows.

Amlrtlzed £Q1t: Assets that are held for collection of contractual cllsh flows where those cnsh flows represent solely pnyments
of principal and Interest are measured at amortized cost, Interest Income from these financial assets 15Included In Interest
Income using the effective Interest rate method (EIR).

~ value through ~ comprehensive Income iEYQQl: Assets that are held for collection of contractuet cosh flows Ilnd for
selUng the financial assets, where the assets' cash flows represent solely payments of principal nod Interest, ore measured at
fair value through other comprehensive Income (FVOCI). Movements In the carrying amount are taken through other
comprehensive Income (OCI), except for the recognition of Impairment gains or losses, Interest revenue and foreign cxchnnge
gains and losses which are recognized In Statement of Profit and loss. When the flnllnclalllsset Is derecognlzed, the cumulative
gain or loss previously recognized In OCI Is reclasslffed from equity to Statement of Profit and loss and recognized In other
galnsl (losses). Interest Income from these financial assets Is Included In Interest Income using the effective Interest rete
rnemod.

Dillvalue through Q[Qffi Q£ !!ill: Assets that do not meet the criteria for amortIzed cost or FVOCIare measured at fair value
through profit or loss. Interest Income (rom these financial assets Is Included In Interest Income.

~ Instruments: All equity Investments In scope of Ind AS 109 are measured at fair value. Equity Instruments which are held
for trading and contingent consideration recognised by an acqulrer In a business combination to which Ind AS103 applies are
classified as at fair vatue through profit and loss (MPL). For all other equity Instruments, the Group may make an Irrevocable
election to present In other comprehensive Income subsequent changes In the fair value. The Group makes such election on an
Instrument- by-instrument basis. The classification Is made on Initial recognition and Is Irrevocable.

If the Group decides to classify lin equity Instrument as at FVTOCI,then all fair value changes on the Instrument, excluding
dividends, are recognized In the OCI. There Is no recycling of the amounts from OCIto profit and loss, even on sale of
Investment. However, the Group may transfer the cumulative gain or loss within equity.

Equity instruments Included within the FVTPl category are measured at fair value with all changes recognized in the profit and
loss.

(III) Impairment of flnanehll assets
In accordance with Ind AS 109, Finandallnstruments, the Group applies expected credit loss (ECt) model for measurement and
recognition of impairment loss on financial assets.

For recognition of Impairment loss on financial assets and risk exposure, the Group determines that whether there has been a
significant increase In the credit risk since Initial recognition. If credit risk has not Increased significantly, 12·month ECl Is used
to provide for Impairment loss. However, If credit risk has Increased significantly, lifetIme ECl Is used. If In subsequent years,
credit quality of the Instrument Improves such that there Is no longer a significant Increase In credit risk since Initial
recognition, then the entity reverts to recognizing Impairment loss allowance based on 12 month ECL.



SMARTLII'IKf-I)LOINGSLIMITED
Notes (ormll1lpnrt of the Consolidated Financial Statements for the yellr ended 31 March 2023

(Amount In • t--", unless otherwise stated)

Lite lime ECls are the expected credit losses resulting from all possible dafnult events over the oxpoctod lire of a (lnnnclnl
f mrument. The 12 month Eel Is a portion of the IIfetlma ECl which results from default events that IIro possible within 12
nllfllhs after the year end.

EO. Is the difference between all contractual cash flows thnt are due to the Group In eccoroance with tho contrllct lind all tho
cilih (lows that the entity expects to receive (t.e, nil shortfalls), discounted at thl} original EIR.Whon ostlmatlng tho cash flows,
aocntlty Is required to consider all contractual terms of lhe flnnoclal Instnlmont (Including prepayment, oxtonslon etc.) ovor
thlexpected life of tho ftnanclollnstrument. However, In rare cases when the expected IHoof tho ffnoncltliinstrurnant cannot
becst!mated reliably, then the entity Is required to use tho remtllnlng contractual term of the (Inonclnllnstrumollt.

In !cneral, It Is presumed that credit risk has Significantly Increased since Initial recognition If tho payment Is more thllil 30 dtlys
past due.

ECllmpairment loss allowance (or reversal) recognIzed during the yenr Is recognIzed as Income/expense In the stntoment of
prtllt and loss. In balance sheet ECl for financial assets measured III amortized cost Is presented as (10 allownnco, 1.0. ns nn
Integrul part of the measurement of those assets In the balance sheet. The allowance reduces the net cnrrylng amount.

(Iv) DClecognltlon of financial assets
A fVlllnclalasset Is derecognlzed only when
Il) the rights to receive cash nows from the financial asset Is transferred or
b) retains the contractual rights to receive the cash flows of the flnanclalllsset, but assumes 0 contractual obligation to pay the
cam flows to one or more recipients.

Where the fInancial asset Is transferred then In that case financial asset Is derecognlzed only If substantially all rIsks and
rewards of ownershIp of the financIal asset Is transferred. Where the entity has not transferred substantially all rfsks and
rewards of ownership of the financial asset, the financial asset Is not derecognlzed.

(e) Financial liabilities
(I) Initit,1recognition and measurement

FinancIal lIabtlltles are classIfied, at Initial recognition, as financial liabilitIes at fair value through profit or loss and at
nmortlzed cost, as approprfate.

All financial liabilities are recognized Initially at fair value and, In the case of borrowings and payables, nct of directly
attributable transaction costs.

(II) Subsequent measurement
The measurement of financial liabilities depends on their classification, as descrfbed below:

FinancIal liabilities at faIr value through profit or loss
Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss Include financial liabilities held for trading and financial liabilIties
designated upon initial recognition as at fair value through profit or loss. Separated embedded derivatives are also classttted as
held for trading unless they are desIgnated as effective hedging Instruments. Gains or losses on liabilitIes held for tradIng are
recognized in the Statement of Profit and loss.

loans and borrowings
After Initial recognition, Interest-bearing loans and borrowings are subsequently measured at amortized cost using the EIR
method. Gains and losses are recognized In Statement of Profit and loss when the liabilities are derecogntzed as well as through
the fiR amortIzation process. Amortized cost is calculated by taking Into account any discount or premium on acquisition and
fees or costs that are an Integral part of the EIR. The EIRamortization Is included as finance costs In the Statement of Profit and
loss.

(III) Derecognition
A financial liability is dereccgntzed when the obligation under the liability Is discharged or cancelled or expires. When an
existing financial liabilIty Is replaced by another from the same lender on substantially different terms, or the terms of an
existing liability are substantially modified, such an exchange or modification is treated as the derecognltlon of the ortgmet
llablllty and the recognition of a new liability. The difference in the respective carrying amounts is recognized In the Statement
of Profit and Loss as finance costs.
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SMARTI.INK HDINGS LIMITED

Notes formlrlgpnrt of the Consoltdllted Financial Statements for the year ended 31 Mllrch 2023

(Amount In • NI,unless otherwlso stilted)

(d) Fiflnclal GUarantee Contracts

FiliOClal guarantees are Initially recognised In the finanCial statements (withIn 'other lIabllltlos') at fair vetue. Subsoquonlly,
thtllllblllty Is measured at the hlghcr of the amount of loss allowanco determined es per Impalrmont roqulrements of Ind AS 109
anCtllc amount recognised less cumulative amortIsation,

AI1)1ncrease In the lIabHlty relating to flnanclallluarllntees Is recorded In the statement of profit and loss In credit loss oxpenso,

Til! premium receIved Is recognised In the statement of profit lind loss In net tees llnd commission Incomo on Il strllight line
balS over the life of the guarantee,

(e) otrl(lttfng flnancfallnstruments

Fillincial assets and liabilities are offset and the net amount Is reported In tho betence shoet where there Is n legally
en~ceable right to offset the recognized amounts and there Is nn Intention to seuto on a not bnsls or roall%e tho assot and

setae the liability simultaneously, The legally enforcoable right must not be contlngont on future events nnd must bo
enl,rceable In the normal course of business and In the event of default, Insolvency or bankruptcy of the Group or the
cOUlterparty.

2,16 InVlIltorles

I nV!Iltories are valued at the lower of cost (on weighted average basts) and net renllsnble votue,

COS! of Inventories comprises of cost of purchases, costs of conversion lind other costs Incurrod In brIngIng the Inventories to

the~ present locatIon and condItIon,

Pro·,lslon of obsolescence on Inventories Is considered on the basis of management's estimate based on demand and market of
the Inventories,

Net realizable value Is the estimated seilIng price In the ordInary course of busIness, less the estImated cost of completIon and

the estImated costs necessary to make the sale.

Thenet realizable value of work In progress Is determIned with reference to the seUlng prices of related finished products, Raw
materlals and other supplies held for use In the production of finished products are not written down below cost except In ceses
where material prices have declined and It Is estimated that tho cost of the finIshed products will exceed the net realfzable
value.

2,17 Employee Benefits

(a) Shcrt-terrn obligatIons

liabilitIes for wages and salaries, Including non-monetary benefits thnt are expected to be sottled wholly within 12 months after
the end of the year In whIch the employees render the related servIce are recognized In respect of employees' services up to the
end of the year and are measured at the amounts expected to be paId when the liabilitIes are settled, The liabilitIes are

presented as current employee benefit obligatIons In the balance sheet.

(b) long-term employee benefit obligations

(I) DefIned contribution plan

Provident Fund: The Group's contributions to statutory provident fund In accordance with the Employees Provident Fund and
Miscellaneous ProvIsions Act, 1952 which Is a defined contribution plan, are charged to the Statement of Profit and loss In the

period of accrual. The Group has no obligatIon, other than the contribution payable to the provident fund,

Employee's State Insurance Scheme: Contribution towards employees' state Insurance scheme Is made to the regulatory
authortttes, where the Group has no further obligatIons. Such benefits are classIfied as Defined Contribution plan as the Group
does not carry any further obligations, apart from the contributions made on a monthly basIs which are charged to the

Statement of Profit and loss.

(II) Defined benefit plans

Gratuity:
The Group provides for gratuIty, a defined benefit plan (the ·Gratulty Plan") covering eligible employees In accordance with the
Payment of Gratuity Act, 1972. The GratUity Plan provIdes a lump sum payment to vested employees at retirement, death,
Incapacitation or termination of employment, of an amount based on the respective employee's salary. The Group's liability Is

actuartally determined (using the Projected Unit Credit method) at the end of each year.

Remeasurements, comortstng of actuarial gains and losses and the return on plan assets (excluding net Interest) Is reflected
immediately in the balance sheet with a charge/credit recognised In Other Comprehensive Income ("CCI") In the period In which
they occur.

Remeasurements recognIsed In OCI is reflected immediately In Surplus
reclassifl~ ~o profit or loss In subsequent periods.
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SMARTLINK ttOLOINGS LIMITED
Notes forml nlPlirt of the Consolidated Flnancfal Statements for thG YOllrended 31 Mllrch 2023
(Amount In I Nt,unless otherwise stated)

(e) Oll\<IrLong Term Employee Benefits:
Grcup's liabilitIes towards compensated absences to employees which ere expoctod to bo avallOd or oncashod boyond 12 months
f"ran the end of the year lire accrued on the basis of valuatfons, as lit tho DalMeo shoot date, earned out by on IndopOlldonl
actuary using Projected Unit Credit Method.

Actullrlal gaIns and losses comprise experience adjustments and tho arrocts of changes In actuarial IIssumptions lind oro
re<ognlsed Immediately In the statement of profit and loss.

2.16 Elrnlngs Per Share
Balic earnings per share Is calculated by dividIng the net profit or loss for tha y(l(Ir attributable to equity shnroholdol'$ by lho
weighted average number of equIty shares outstanding during the year, Enrnlngs consldored In Ilscortnlnlng tho Grou!)'s oomlngs
per share Is the net profft or loss for the year after deducting prctorcnco dividends and nny attributable tax thereto lor lhG
year. The weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the yenr and for nll the years presented 1$adjustad for
events, such as bonus shares, other than the conversion of potential equity shores, thnl have changed the number 01 equity
s hires outstanding, without a corresponding change In resources.

For the purpose of calculating diluted eamlngs per share, the nat profit or loss for the year attrlbutoblo to equity shareholders
a nil the weighted average number of shares outstanding during the yeor Is IIdJusted for the orrects 01 all dltuuvo potonuet
equity shares.

2,19 Borrowing Costs
Borrowing costs consist of Interest and other costs thot nn entity Incurs In connection with the borrowing of funds, Borrowing
COlts also Include exchange differences to the extent regarded 8S an adjustment to the borrowing costs.

All borrowing costs are charged to the Statement of Profit and Lossexcept:
a) Borrowingcosts directly attributable to the acquisition or construction of assets thnt necessarily tnkes II substantial period of
tfme to get ready for Its Intended use are capitalised as part of the cost of such assets,
b) Expenses Incurred on raising long term borrowings lire amortised using effective Interest rate method over the period of
borrowings.

Investment income earned on the temporary Investment of funds of specific borrowings pending their c)(pendlture on qualifying
assets Is deducted from the borrowing costs eligible for capitalisation.

2.20 Dividend on ordinary shares
The Group recognises a liability when the distribution Is authorised by the shareholders. A corresponding amount Is recognised
directly In equity.

2.21 Segment Reporting
Operating segments are defined as components of an enterprise far which discrete financial Information Is available that Is
evaluated regularly by the chief operating decision maker.

The group has two business segments:
(i) investment: Earning Income through dividends, interest, rentals and gains on Investment In securities and property.
(il) Networking: Developing, manufacturing, marketing, distributing and servicing of networking products.

2.22 Rounding off amounts
AUamounts disclosed In ffnanclal statements and notes have been rounded off to the nearest lakhs, unless otherwise stated.

3 Significant accounting judgments, estimates and assumptions
in the preparation of the financial statements, the Group makes judgements, estimates and assumptions about the carrying amount of
assets and liabilities that are not readily apparent from other sources. The estimates and associated assumptions are based on
historical experience and other factors that are considered to be relevant. Actual results may differ from these estimates.
Estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are recognised
prospectively. information about assumptions, judgements and estimation uncertainties that have a significant risk of resulting In a
material adjustment in the year ending March 31, 2023 are as below:

l' • •



SMARTLINK tIlLOINGSLIMITED
1 Notes forml nlPllrt of the Consolidated FinancIal Statements for the year ondod 31 March 2023

(Amount In I~, unless otherwise stated)

(II) U~flll life of Property, plant and equipment, Investmont Proporty nnd fntnnslbllt assets and Its expected residual vnluo
P!!porty, plant and equipment, Investment Property and other Intangible assets represent n slgnlflcDnt proportlon of the nsseU
oHill' Group. Depreciation and amortisation Is derived aftar determining an esnmete of M asset's expected lIsofulllfolU1d thQ
e~ccted residual value at the end of Its life. The useful lives nnd resldllnl vnlues of Group's aSsots ero determined by
rnm~gement at the tIme the asset Is acquired and reviewed periodically, Including lit eoch flnnoclal yellr ond, Tho IIvos ore
ba;&d on historical experience with similar assets as well as antlclpntlon of future events, which OlIlY Impact tholr lifo, such I'lS

cNnges In technology.

(1)) F~r value measurements and valuation processes
Tie (olr value of financial Instruments Is the prtce that would be received to soil an asset or pnld to trenstor n lI11b1UlyIn lin

orderly transaction In the prtnclpal (or most advantageous) market at the measurement date under current morl<ct conditions
(i.p., an exit price) regardless of whether that price Is directly observable or estimated using Mother vnluntlon techotque, when
th (nlr values of financial assets and financlallllibilities recorded In the bnlence sheet cannot be derived from active mnrkoU,
th!y nre determined using a variety of valuation techniques that Include the use of valuatlon models. Tho Inputs to these modols
art taken from observable markets where possible, but where this Is not feasible, estfmauon Is required "' establishing fall'
valuos. Judgements and estimates Include considerations of liquidity nod model Inputs related to Itoms such liS crodlt risk (both
ov.n nnd counterparty), funding value adjustments, corretatlon and volatility for further details about dtltermlnatlon of fl'llr
value,

(c) Acluarlal Valuation
Th~ determination of Company's liability towards defined benefit obligation to employees Is made through tndependont
aCIU.arialvaluation Including determInation of amounts to be recognised In the Statement of Profit and Loss nnd In otber
Comprehensive Income. Such valuation depend upon assumptions determined after tnklng Into occount discount rate, snlnry
growth rate, expected rate of return, mortality and attrition rate. Due to the complextttes Involved In tho valuotlon and Its Ions'
tenn nature, a defined benefit obligation Is highly sensitive to changes In these assumptions, Information about such vnluatlon Is
provided in notes to the financial statements.

(d) Impairment of non·flnanclal assets

In assessingImpairment, management estimates the recoverable amount of each n}set or cash·senerntlns units based on
expected future cash flows and uses an Interest rate to discount them. Estimation uncertainty relates to assumptions about
future operating results and the determInation of a suitable discount rate.

(e) Effective Interest Rate (EIR) method

The Group's EIRmethodology, recognises Interest Income I expenseusing a rate of return that represents the best estimate of n
constant rate of return over the expected behavioural life of loans given / taken and recognises the effect of potentially
dlflerent interest rates at venous stages and other characteristics of the financial Instruments.
This estimation, by nature, requires an element of judgement regarding the expected behaviour and IIfe'cycle of the
Instruments, as well expected changes to India's base rate and other fee Income/expense that are Integral parts of the
Instrument.

(f) Impairment of Itnanctal asset

The Group recognizes loss allowances for txpected Credit Losses(Eel) on Its flnonclal assets measured at amortized cost and
Fair Value through Other Comprehensive Income (FVOCI)except Investment In equity Instruments. At each reporting date, the
Group assesseswhether the above financial assets are credlt- Impaired. A financial asset Is 'credit- Impaired' when one or more
events that have a detrimental Impact on the estimated future cash flows of the financial asset have occurred.

4 Ministry of Corporate Affairs ("MCA") notifies new standard or amendments to the e)(lstlng standards under Companies (Indian
Accounting Standards) Rules as Issued from time to time. On March 31, 2023, MCAamended the Companies (Indian Accounting
Standards)Amendment Rules, 2023, applicable from Apr111, 2023, as below:

(I) Ind AS 1 • Disclosure of material accounting policies:
The amendments related to shifting of disclosure of erstwhile "significant accounting policies" to "mater1al accountIng policies"
in the notes to the financial statements requlrtng companies to reframe their accounting policies to make them more "entity
specific. This amendment aligns with the "material" concept already required under International Financial Reporting Standards
(IFRS).The Companydoes not expect this amendment to have any significant impact In Its financial statements.



SMARTLINK 101.0lNGSLIMITED
Notes formlll pert of the Consolidated Financial Statements for tho year ended 31 March 2023
(Amount In IJR, unless otherwise stated)

(l)lnd AS8 . Definition of accounting estimates:
~ amendments wtll help entities to distinguish between accounting policies and accounting estimates. The definition of a
...·(hange In accounting estimates" has been roplaced with a dertnltlon of "accountlnB estlmlltes." Under tho new definition,
at(ountlng estimates are "monetary amounts In financial statements that are subject to measurement uncertainty." Entities
dNolop accounting estimates If accounting policies require Items In financial statements to be measured In a WDYthat Involves
rnnsurement uncertainty. The Company does not expect this amendment to have Ilny slgnlflCtlnt Impact In Its financial
slltoments

(fn) Ind AS 12· Income Taxes
~ omendments narrowed the scope of the recognition exemption In paragraphs 15 and 24 of Ind AS 12. At tho dato of
tnnsltlon to Ind ASs, a flrst·tlme adopter shall recognize a deferred tex asset to the extent thot It Is probable that taxable
p:Jflt wtn be available against which the deductible temporary difference can be utilized. Slmllorty, a deferred tax liability for
aldoductlble and taxable temporary differences associated wtth:

alrlght·of·use assets and lease liabilities
bl decommissioning, restoration Dnd similar liabilities and the corresponding amounts recognized as part of the cost of the
related asset.

Tterefore, If a company has not yet recognised deferred tax on nght·of·use assets and lease IInbllltlcs or has recogntsed
d~forred tax on net basts, the same need to recognize on fiross basis based on the carrying amount of nght·of·usc essets and
tene 1I11blllties.

(i.) Ind AS 103· Common control Buslncss CombInation
The amendments modify the disclosure requIrement for business comblnatton under common control In the fIrst financllli
s tnoment following the business combination. It requires to disclose the dllte on Which the transferee obtains control of the
t ril'lsreror Is required to be dlsctosed .

. ~. ,..\
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Notes forming part of the Consolidated Financial Statements for the yellr ended 31 Mllrch 2023

(Amount In INRlakhs, unlessotherwise stated)

5 Cash and cash equivalents

Particulars
Aut As at

March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022

Cashon hand 2,78 3,30

Balanceswith banks
On current accounts 38.13 55,64

Total 40,91 59,14

6 Bank balances other than cash and cash equivalent

Particulars
As at As at

March 31,2023 March 31, 2022

In Fixed deposit with maturity for more than 12 months' 1,323.66 2,011,36

Accrued interest on deposit 36.12 49,85

Unpaid dividend accounts 1.84 4,14

Total 1,361,62 2,065.37

*
1. Includes INR72.45 lakhs (March 31, 2022 INR72.45 lakhs) held as margin money against bank guarantee.

2. Includes INRNIL (March 31,2022 INR940.00 lakhs) held against corporate guarantee to bank for credit facilities

3. Includes INR660.00 lakhs (March 31, 2022 INR Rs.967.12 lakhs) fixed deposits under lien with the banks as margin
money against credit facflity availed.

4. Includes INR55.00 lakhs (March 31,20221NR NIL) fixed deposits under lien with the Small Industrial Development
Bank Of India as a margin money against term loan availed.

7 Receivables

Particulars
As at As at

March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022

Trade Receivables
Receivablesconsidered good- Secured
Receivablesconsidered good . Unsecured 4,032.24 1,712.84
Receivables considered doubtful· Unsecured 29.01 23.19

Less: Provision for doubtful debts (29.01) (23.19)

4,032.24 1,712.84
Others Receivables

Considered good- Unsecured· From Others 8.27 2.96
Total 4,040.51 1,715.80

There are no dues from director or other officer of the company or any firm or private company In which any
director is a partner, a director or a member.

The net carrying value of trade receivables is considered a reasonable approximation of fair value.



SMARTLINKHOLDINGSLIMITED

Notes forming part of the Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March 2023

(Amount In INR lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

Ageing of Trade Receivables

Partfculars
As at Aut

March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022

(I) Undisputed Trade receivables - considered good

Unbllled Dues -
Not Due - 3,765.03 1,548.98

Less than 6 months 283.94 174.66

6 months - 1 year 0.35 5.01

1-2 years 1.62 0.36

4-3 years - -
More than 3 years - 0.46

Total 4,050.94 1,729.46

(If) Undisputed Trade Receivables -which have significant Increase In - -
credit risk

(1ff) Undisputed Trade Receivables - credit impaired . .
(Iv) Disputed Trade Receivables-considered good

6 months - 1 year 10.43 .
More than 3 years 8.15 9.53

Total 18.58 9.53

(v) Disputed Trade Receivables - which have significant Increase In

credit risk

(vi) Disputed Trade Receivables - credit impaired

less: Allowance for bad and doubtful debts (Disputed + Undisputed) (29.01 ) (23.19)

Total 4,040.51 1,715.80

8 Other financial assets

Particulars

Security Deposits (gross)

less: Provision for Impairment loss

Security Deposits (net)

Advance to employees

Production linked Incentive Receivable

As at As at

March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022

28.13 37.23

(T.99)

28.13 29.24

5.89 8.57

280.00 135.77

314.02 173.58Total

9 Current tax assets (net)

Particulars
As at As at

March 31, 2023 March 31,2022

Advance payment of taxes and tax deducted at source {net of
provisions for taxation of Rs. 1,051.50 lakhs (March 31,2022: Rs.
1966.33 lakhs)

176.28 80.80

Total 176.28 80.80

v •
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SMARTLINK HOLDINGSLIMITED

Notes formlns part of the Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended 31 Morch 2023

(Amount In INl1lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

13 Invostments

Particulars

Investments measured at amortised cost

Debt securities

Fixed Deposits

Investments measured at Fair Value through Profit or Loss

Mutual funds

Investments measured at Fair Value through Other Cornprehenstve Income

Debt securities

As at As lit
March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022

4,551.90

1,537.31

6,191.41

49.30

12,280,62 11,021,84

(49.30)

12,280,62 10,972,54

12,280,62 10,972.54

Total - Gross (A)

5,915.92

Less: Allowance for Impairment loss (B)

Total - Net (A)-(B)

Investments outside India

Investments in India

Details of Investments

Nos Amount

Particulars Face Value As at As at As lit 'As lit
March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022 Mllrch 31, 2023 March 31, 2022

Investments measured at Amortised Cost

Investments In bonds (Quoted) (refer note 2);

Cholamandalam Perp NCOSerles POI 10 12.90% 5,00,000 40 241.65

Tata Power Company LImited 2072 . NCO 10.75% 10,00,000 55 590.01
Canara Bank BD Perpetual· 9.55% 10,00,000 10 10 100.58 100.59
Cholamandalam Investment and Finance Company Limited· NCO

10,00,000 30 30 320.90 320.908.80%

Mahlndra Rural housing Finance Ltd 2017· NCO8.50% 10,00,000 30 30 320.94 320.94
HOFCBank Limited Perpetual - BD 8.85% 10,00,000 28 - 302.57
'rata Motors Finance Limited Perpetual NCO ·11.10% 10,00,000 30 30 342.74 343.01
Bajaj Finance Ltd 2027 . NCO8.15% 10,00,000 5 5 50.63 50.63
Tata Capital Financial Services Limited 2022 . NCO8.45% 1,000 20,000 210.01

L&T infrastructure Finance Company Limited ·NCD 7.65% 25,00,000 12 312.94
L&T Infrastructure Finance Company Limited - NCO8.81% 25,00,000 5 . 134.60
UP Power Corporation Limited· NCO10.15% 10,00,000 10 10 102.29 102.68
North Eastern Electric Power Corporation Limited· NCO7.68% 10,00,000 20 20 206.13 206.34
ICICI Bank OOBtier ·110.00% 1,00,000 365 . 348.54
Tata SonsLtd NCO· 9.54% 10,00,000 15 163.53
M&'MFinancial Services Ltd 2031 ·7.35% 10,00,000 20 20 210.83 210.83

State Bank of India Unsecured Rated Listed Additional Tier I Non
1,00,00,000 3 3 314.09 314.30Convertible Bond· 7.72%

8.50% Muthoot Fincorp limited 10,00,000 10 100.65
Punjab National Bank Tier II . 8.93% 10,00,000 10 - 103.85
Kotak Mahindra Bank Limited Basel III perp • 8.10% 5 40,00,000 40,00,000 201.20 202.68
State Bank of India perp . 100 years· 7.55% 1.00,00.000 2 2 204.50 204.52
LftT Finance ttrmted Tier II (sertes-s) . 9.95% 10.00.000 16 16 167.50 170.85
Punjab National Bank (TIER II) Bonds· 9.20% 10,00.000 11 117.47
L&T Finance limited MLO 10.00.000 20 200.23

TATA CapItal Financial Services Limited· 7.89% 10,00,000 50 529.18
:L&T Finance Limited . 8.75% 10.00.000 9 92.87 .

Mahindra & Mahindra Financial Services LTD· 7.90% 10.00,000 50 523.41
Bank Of India (Series XI) . 9.80% 10.00,000 8 88.49
PNB Housing Finance Limited Bonds (Series XVII.B) . 9.48% 10.00.000 25 252.66
L 6: T Finance Limited· 8.90% 10,00,000 19 205.26

4,551.90 5,056.62

Fixed Deposits (Unquoted) -£~7;0Fixed DeI?9.Sit:lYitrBajaj Finance Limited (refer foot note 1) 15,00.00,000 3 . 1,537.31 1-/:/'.: ../.\~.:':;:<:. ~ 1,537.31 71C;;?
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SMARTLINKHOLDINGSLIMITED

Notes formlne part of the Consolidated Financial Statements for the yoar ended 31 Mnrch 2023
(Amount In INRlakhs, unless otherwise stated)

Nos Amount
Particulars Face Value As at As at Aut Aut

March 31, 2023 March 31 .. 2012 March 31, 2013 March 3.1, 2012
2 Investments measured at Fair Value through Profit or Loss

Mutual funds (Unquoted)
HDfC Mutual Fund
HDFCliquid Fund - Direct Plan - Growth 1,01313 574,1330 24,02
HDFCCorporate Bond Fund - Direct Plan - Growth 10 3,90,996,466 3,90,996,466 107,99 10M4

ICICIMutual Fund
ICiCIPrudential Banking & PSU Debt Fund - Growth 10 20,67,524,707 20,67,524,707 569.54 540.34
lelCI Prudential Corporate Bond Fund - Growth 10 21,17,912.2 24,35,703,391 528,89 576,19
ICICIPrudential Corporate Bond Fund - Direct Plan - Growth 10 4,93,524,038 4,93,524,038 128.45 121,)4
ICiCIPrudential Short Term Fund - Growth Option 10 40,817,0132 2,50,792,088 20,62 119,85
ICiCIbalance Advantage Fund - Growth 10 78,693,35~ 51,205.961 45,47 25.37

Kotak Mahlndra Mutual Fund
Kotak Bond Fund Short Term - Growth - Regular Plan 10 15,04,985.518 15,04,985.518 663.94 MO,93

Blrla Sun Life Mutual Fund
Blrla Sun Ufe floating rate fund -growth -regular plan 10 76,645.066 1,27,134.481 224,53 353.32
Aditya Olrla sun life floating rate fund growth direct plan 100 1,75,327,342 525,26

SBI Mutual fund
SBIShort Term Debt Fund-Regular Plan-Growth 10 40,77,363.452 40,77,363.452 1,106,21 1,061,98

Franklin Templeton Mutual Fund

Franklin India Short term Income Plan- Retail Plan- Segregated 1,000 13,649,982 16,290,9n 12,75
Portfolio 2 (10.90% Vodafone Idea Ltd 02Sep2023 (prC 03Sep2021)-
Growth Option)

Invesco Mutual Fund
Invesco India Ultra Short Term Fund Plan Growth 10 10,022.335 10,022,335 230,95 220,30
Invesco India Short Term Fund - Direct Plan Growth 10 7,725.541 7,725.541 254.42 244.55

HSBCMutual Fund

HSBCCorporate Bond Fund - Direct Growth ( Formerly L& T Triple 164,..,4 619.53
Ace Bond Fund - Direct Pian-Growth) 10 2,52,757,312 9,85,570.099
HSBCShort Duration Fund - Direct Growth (Formerly L & T Short Term 680,93 655.07
Bond Fund - Direct Plan - Growth) 10 26,97,136.850 28.97,136.650

Bandhan Mutual Fund

Bandhan Banking & PSU Debt Fund - Direct Plan - Growth ( Formerly
IDFCBanking & PSU Debt Fund - Direct Plan - Growth) 10 19,40,460.415 19,40,480.415 414.35 395,84

Bandhan Bond Fund - Short Term Plan - Growth (Formerly IDFCBond 16.36
Fund - Short Term Plan - Growth) 10

33,384.349

Bandhan Dynamic bond fund - Growth· regular plan ( Formerly IDFC 309.21
Dynamic Bond fund growth regular) 10 10,n,845.926 -

Edelweiss Mutual Fund

Edelweiss NIFTYPSU Bond Plus SOLIndex Fund· 2026 Direct Plan
10 18,37,832.906 18,37,832.906 203.46 197.39Growth

6.191,41 5,915,92



SMARTlINK HOLDINGS LIMITED
Notes forming part of the Consolfdated Flnanctal Statements for the year ended 31 March 2023

(Amount tn INRlakhs, unless otherwise stated)

Nos Amount

Particulars FClceVillue As lit Aut As lit Asnt

Morch 31, 202.3 March 31, 2022 March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022

Preference Shares (Unquoted)

Infrastructure Leasing and Financial Services Limited- Preference
7,500 340 . 49,30

Shares- 16.46%

Total· Gross 49,30

Less:Allowance for Impairment loss (49,30)

Totnl - Net
Total Investments- Gross 12,28Q,62 11,021,84
Totnllmpalrment (49,30)
Totnllnvestments· Net 12,280,62 10,972,54

Aggregate book value of:

Quoted Investments 4,551,90 5,056,62
unquoted Investments 6,950,66 5,256,21

Aggregate market value of:
Quoted Investments 4,364,52 4,840,31
unquoted investments 6,191,41 5,915,92

Footnote:-

Fixed deposits are pledged against loan obtained by Olgisol Systems Limited (March 31, 2022 INRNIL),

z Investment '" Bonds includes accrued Interest INR 17',68'0 tho current Y'" and ~83 ~ previous Y~
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RTLlt-I KHOLDINGSLIMITED

s forrring part of the Consolidated Financial Statements for tho yeer ended 31 March 2023
unt InlNR lakhs, unlessotherwise stated)

Ilvontorles
(Velued at the lower of cost or net realizable value)

Pertfculars

Rnw muertets and components
Raw muenats and components In transit
Work· in·progress
Flnlshagoods
Stock inTrade
Stocl<inTrade In transit
Stores.lpares and packing materials

As et Aut
Mllrch 31,2023 Mllrch 31, 2022

790.71 181.11
256.85 405.59
515.73 0.39

68.04 2.50
1,649.56 653.23

13.84 164.37

36.18 26.02

3,330.91 1,433.21

5,814.83 2,604.48

3,294.73 852.02

Totlll

The Coli of raw materials Inventories recognised as expenseduring the
year

Carrylnlvalue of Inventories hypothecat.ed as security by the subsidiary
compares
(Also refer note 17)

Other non financial assets

Particulars

Advance to vendor
Balancewlth govemment authorities
Surplus in Gratuity fund (funded) (Refer note 42)

Prepaid expenses

Aut Aut
March 31, 2023 March 31,2022

112.13 142.63
870.10 512.14

12.50 6.36
46.63 42.47

1,041.36 703.60Total

Trade payables

Parttculars
Aut

March 31, 2022
As at

March 31, 2023

Total outstanding dues of micro enterprises and small enterprises
(refer foot note below)

Total otAstanding dues of creditors other than micro enterprises and
small enterprises

124.66 8.66

3,581.33 1,229.84

Total 1,238.503,705.99

The disclosures under the Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006 have been made In respect
of such vendors to the extent they could be Identified as micro enterprises and small enterprises on the basis of
Information available with the Company.

Note:

Partlculers
As at

March 3',2022

. Principal Amount

0.70

As at
March 31, 2023

Outstanding principal amount and Interest as on 31st March.

• Interest due thereon

Amount of Interest paid along with the amounts of payment made
beyond the appointed day

124.66 8.66
0.04

0.23 0.31Amount of Interest due and payable (where the principal has already
been paid but interest has not been paid)

The amount of interest accrued and remaining unpaid at the end of
each accounting year

The amount of further Interest remaining due and payable even In
succeedIng years, until such date when the interest dues as above are
actually paid for the purpose of disallowance as a deductible
expenditure under section 23 of the said Act

0.23 0.68



SMARTLINK HOLDINGS LIMITED

Notes forming part of the Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March 2023

(Amount In INR lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

Trade Payables ageing schedule

Particulars
Aut

March 31, 2023
Aut

March 31, 2022

(I) MSME

Unbllled Dues

Payable Not Due

less than 1 year

1·2 years

2·3 years

More than 3 years

8.42

0.24

122.73

1.93

Total

(I) Others (Undisputed)

Unbilled Dues

Payable Not Due

Less than 1 year

1·2 years
2·3 years

More then 3 years

124.66 8.66

280.38 161.08

1,986.28 726.26

1,311.98 337.36

2.69 1.09

3.78

0.27

3,581.33 1,229.84

~ ~ ~

~

Total
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RTLINK HOLDINGSLIMITED

s forming part of the Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March 2023

ount In INR lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

Oorrowlnss (other than debt securities)

Particulars
As at

March 31, 2023
As at

March 31,2022

Borrowings measured at Amortised Cost

~
Ilnnk Overdraft

Term Loan
Loan from Financial Institution

Unsecured
Loans (rom director

Lease liabilities

205.82

206.98
1,350.06

614.33

1,263.37
340.41

1,730,00

183,56

Total 3,366.66 2,527.89

Borrowings In India

Borrowings outside India

3,366,66 2,527,89

2,527.893,366.66Total

Torms and conditions:

Secured Loan:
Bank Overdraft of Synegra EMS Limited and that of Dlgisol Systems Limited Is secured by charge ranking pari
passu, by way of hypothecation of all eXisting and future Inventory and trade receivables, Corporate Guarantee
(rom Parent Company o( INR 4300 lakhs, and lien on Fixed Deposit o( Parent Company of INR 660 lakhs.

During the year ended March 31, 2023, new term loan from SIDBI was availed by Synegra EMSLimited amounting
to INR 206.84 lakhs and carries Interest <P 8.25%. The term loan Is repayable In 30 equal monthly Instalments after
a moratorium of 6 months.
Term loan Is secured by a first charge, by way of hypothecation of all movable assets (except Inventory and trade
receivables), lien on fixed depOSit of INR 55 lakhs of Synegra EMSLimited and Corporate Guarantee from Parent
Company of INR 270 lakhs.
As per the loan sanction letter, the said loan was taken for the purpose of purchase of Plant a Machinery, The
Company has used such borrowings for the purposes as stated tn the loan sanction letter.

During the year ended March 31, 2023, new short term revolving loan from Baja) Finance Limited was availed by
Olglsol Systems Limited amounting to INR 1350.00 lakhs and carries floating Interest. The short term revolving
loan Is repayable In 90 days.
Short term revolving loan Is secured by way of lien on fixed deposit of INR 1500 lakhs and Corporate Guarantee
from Parent Company of INR 2000 lakhs.
As per the loan sanction letter, the said loan was taken for the purpose of working capital. The Company has used
such borrowings for the purposes as stated In the loan sanction letter.

Unsecured Loan
Loan from Director taken (or a tenure of 365 days

Other financial liabilities

Payable to Telesmart SCSlimited Minority Shareholder (Refer note 37(b 41.20

9.56
4.14

0.68

284.47

148.88

7.92

As at
March 31, 2023

As at
March 31, 2022Particulars

DepOSits
Unpaid dividend II

nterest accrued on delayed payment to MSME(Refer Note 16)

Capital creditors
Employee Payable

Asset Retirement Obligation

25.36
1.84

0.09

90.76
233.14

8.58

Total 400,97 455.65

It During the year INR 1.42 lakhs (March 31,2022 INR 1.43 lekhs) was transferred to the Investor Education and
Protection Fund.



SMARTLINK HOLDINGS LIMITED

Notes forming part of the Consolidated Financial Statements for tho year ended 31 March 2023

(Amount In INR lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

19 Provisions

Particulars

Provision for gratuity (funded) (Refer note 42)

Provision for leave encashment (unfunded)

Provision for Warranty (Refer note 39)

Aut Aut
March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022

70.77 39.22

36.66 31.32

36.62 27.32

144.25 97.86Total
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IN HOLDINGSLIMITED

orRlng part of the Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March 2023

; nINRlakhs, unlessotherwise stated)

e rnon {inanciaillabflfties

Particulars
Aut

March 31, 2023
Aut

Mllrch 31, 20n

u tory duespayable

anres from clients/customers

ance rent received

33.62

154.73

6.34

21.66

50.36

0.45

al 72.47194.69

Ityshare capital

C<mpanyhasonly one class of equity share capital having a par value of INR2 per share, referred to herein as
ItYihares.

Particulars
Aut

March 31,2023
Aut

March 31, 2022

horlzed

0,00,000 Equity Sharesof INR2/- each

ed, Subscribed and paid up

75,000 (March31, 2022 : 1,33,00,000) Equity Sharesof INR.2/· each,
y plid-up

s: IIIL(March31, 2022 : 33,25,000) Equity Sharespurchased under Buy-
k scheme

700.00 700.00

700,00 700,00

199.50 266.00

66.50

al 199,50 199.50

onclflatlon of equity shares outstanding at the beginning and at the end of the year

Particulars
As at As at

March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022

standing at the beginning of the year

: Issuedduring the year / Bonus

s: Boughtback dUring the year

99,75,000 1,33,00,000

(33,25,000)

standing at the end of the year 99,75,000 99,75,000

Board of Directors of the Company at its meeting held on 4th December, 2020 and the Shareholders of the
mpany through postal ballot on 10th February, 2021 had approved the proposal of the Company to buy-back upto
25,000 fully paid-up equity shares of INR. 2/- each at a price of INR. 95/- per share (aggregating to 17.'13%of the
y paid-up Equity Share Capital and free Reservesof the Company), payable in cash for an aggregate amount not
eeding INR. 31,58,75,000/- from the existing shareholders of the Company under Tender Offer Mechanlsm_The
r was kept open from April 30, 2021 to May 14, 2021. The Company had bought back 33,25,000 Equity Sharesand
shareswere extinguished on May 27, 2021_

hts, preferences and restrictions attached to shares

Company hasonly one class of equity shares having a par value of INR2/- per share. Each shareholder Is entitled
one vote per share held. The dividend proposed by the board of directors is subject to the approval of the
eholders in the ensuing annual general meeting, except in the case of interim dividend. In the event of liquidation
ompany, the equity shareholders are entitled to receive the remaining assets of the company after distributions of

preferential amounts, in proportion to their shareholding.

. :.
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SMARTLI~KHOLDINGSLIMITED
Notes forming part of the Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March 2023
(Amount in INRlakhs, unless otherwise stated)

(c) Details of shares held by shareholders holding more than 5" of the aggregate shares In the Company

Name of the shareholder
As lit March 31, 2023 As at March 31, 2022

No of shares " of holding No of shares " of holdIng
Mr. Kamalaksha R. Naik 48,00,163 48.1~ 46,74,160 46.86%

Ms. Aratl K. Naik 9,34,833 9.37% 9,34,833 9.37%
Mrs. Lakshana A. Sharma 7,94,608 7.97'ro 7,94,608 7.97%
Mrs. Sudha K. Nalk 4,67,417 4.69% 4,67,417 4.69%

(d) Aggregate number of shares bought back during the period of five years immediately precedIng the reporting
date:

No of shares No of shares
Particulars bought-back durlng outstanding

the year

31.03.2023 . 99,75,000
31.03.2022 33,25,000 99,75,000
31.03.2021 1,33,00,000
31.03.2020 36,50,000 1,33,00,000
31.03.2019 56,00,000 1,69,50,000

(f) Details of Shares held by Promoters at the end of the year

Aut
March 31,2023

Promoter name

No. or Shares " of total shares
" Change durlng

the year

Mr. Kamalaksha R. Nalk 48,00,163 48.12% 2.70%
Ms. Aratl K. Naik 9,34,833 9.37%

Mrs. Lakshana A. Sharma 7,94,608 7.97%
Mrs. Sudha K. Nalk 4,67,417 4.69%

Mr. Amit Virendra Sharma 17,891 0.18% 100%

KR Nalk HUF 1,00,493 1.01%
Total 71,15,405 71.34~

As at
March 31,2022

Promoter name

No. Of Shares' " of total shares
" Change during

the year

Mr. Kamalaksha R. Naik 46,74,160 46.86% ·29.71%
Ms. Arat! K. Nalk 9,34,833 9.37% ·29.71%

Mrs. Lakshana A. Sharma 7,94,608 7.97% ·29.71%
Mrs. Sudha K. Naik 4,67,417 4.69% ·29.71%
KR Nalk HUF 1,00,493 1.01% ·29.71%

Totlll 6'1,71,511 69.90%

22 Other equity

Aut As at
March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022

5,567.20 5,567.20

400.60 400.60
92.95 92.95

2.27
(52.32) (22.95)

1,254.32 899.50
10,888.05 9,361.00

18,150.80

l ~ ~

Particulars

General Reserve
Capital Redemption Reserve
Capital Contribution
MOCI Reserve on financial Instruments
MOCI Reserve on defined benefit plans
Statutory Reserve
Surplus in Statement of Profit and loss
Total
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LINK HOLDINGSLIMITED

ormlng part of the Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ondod 31 March 2023

t In INRlakhs, unlessotherwise stated)

nerat Reserve"

Particulars
Aut

March 31,2022
Aut

March 31, 2023

enlng balance

d I (Less):Transfer from SurplusIn Profit and Lossaccount

5,567.20 5,567.20

oslng balance 5,567.20 5,567.20

eneral reserve Is free reserve available for distribution as recommended by Iloard In accordance with requirements
the CompaniesAct, 2013

pltal Redemption Reserve·

Particulars
Aut

March 31, 2022
As at

March 31, 2023

enlng balance

d: NIL (March31,2022: 33,25,000) Equity sharesof INR2/· each
rchased under buyback scheme

400.60 334.10

66.50

osln!! balance 400.60 400.60

Is Is on account of transfer towards buyback of equity shares. It wilt be utilized In accordance with the provisions of
e CompaniesAct, 2013.

pltal contribution-

Partlcu lars
Aut

March 31, 2022
Aut

March 31, 2023

enlng balance

d I (Less):Changeduring the year

92.95 92.95

sing balance 92.9592.95

epresents impact of Interest on loan to subsidiaries by promoters at lower than market rate of Interest.

VTOCI Reserve on Financial lnstruments"

Particulars
As at

March 31, 2022
As at

March 31, 2023

enlng balance

t fair value galnl (loss)on financial Instruments

2.27

(2.27)

2.27

sing balance 2.27

epresents changesIn the fair value of certain investments In debt securities. These changesare accumulated within
FVTOCIreserve within equity. The Group transfers amounts from this reserve to retained earnings When the

evant debt securities are derecognised.

FVTOCIReserve on defined benefit plans·

Particulars

(9.27)
(13.68)

enlng balance

fair value galnl (loss)on financial Instruments

As at
March 31, 2023

(22.95)

(29.37)

As at
March 31, 2022

sing balance (22.95)

epresents, remeasurements i.e. actuarial gains and losses and the return on plan assets, excluding amounts
uded in the net Interest expenses on the net defined benefit liability are recognised In the other comprehensive

ome instead of profit and loss.
__,~",.:::-:.:",..."

(52.32)
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SMARTLINK HOLDINGS LIMITED

Notes formIng part of the Consolidated FInancial Statements for tho year ended 31 March 2023

(Amount In INR lakhs, unless otherwIse stated)

(F) Statutory Reserve (As per sectIon 45 IC of the Reserve Bank of India Act 1934)*

As at Astlt
Particulars March 31, 2023 March 31,2022

Opening balance 899.50 320.43

Add I (less): Transfer from Surplus In Statement of Profit and loss 354.82 579.07

Closing balance 1,254.32 899.50

'This represents provisIon created under section 45·IC of the Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934. It will be utilized In
accordance with the provisions of the Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934

(G) RetaIned Earnlngs / Surplus In Statement of ProfIt and loss"
As at Aut

Particulars
March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022

OpenIng balance 9,361.00 12,765.00

Add : Net profit / (loss) for the year 1,923.94 1,031.60

Amount available for appropriations 11,284.94 13,796.60

Less: Appropriations

Less: Transferred to Statutory Reserve (354.82) (579.07)

less: Paid to Shareholders for purchase of shares under buyback scheme (3,158.75)

less: Buyback Tax (704.57)

Less: Adjustment on Amalgamation (42.07) .
Add: Share in loss attributable to Minority Interest . 6.79

ClosIng balance 10,888.05 9,361.00

'This represents the cumulative profits of the Group which can be utilized In accordance with the provisIons of the
Companies Act, 2013.

23 Non-controlling Interest

As at As at
March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022

(4.81) 1.98
. (6.79)

4.81

- (4.81 )

~

__._

~ ~
,,'v\~K

'>P:

Particulars

Opening

Add: Loss for the pertod

less: Change in controlling stake of Subsidiary

Total



SMARTLINKHOLDINGSLIMITED
Notes forming part of the Consolidated Flnan~lal Statements for the year ended 31 March 2023

(Amount In INRlakhs, unless otherwise stated)

24 Interest Income

For tho year ended
March 31, 2022

For the Yellr ended
March 31, 2023Particulars

On flnanctal assets measured at FVTOCI
Interest on bonds
Interest on preference shares 2.53 4.78

2.53 4.78

52.91 74.88

38.34 6.24

349.68 412.24

1.32 0.80
0.26

444.78 499.20

For the Year ended For the Year ended
Mllrch 31, 2023 March 31, 2023

317.78 342.48

317.78 342.48

199.44 686.28
118.34 (343.80)

317.78 342.48

On Financial Assets measured at Amortised Cost
Interest on deposits with banks

Interest on deposits with financial Institutions
Interest Income on bonds
Interest Income on security deposits
Interest Income- others

Total

25 Net galnf (loss) on fair value changes·

Particulars

On financial Instruments designated at fair value through profit or loss

Total
Fair Value changes:
-Realised
-un rea Used

Total

'Falr value changes In this schedule are other than those arising on account of Interest Income/expense.

26 Revenue from contracts wIth customer

For the Year ended For the year ended
March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022

14,332.89 5,987.68
698.07 569.72

141.35 340.20

13.54 8.35
280.00 135.n

7.53 29.05

15,473.38 7,070.77

Particulars

Sale of goods
Sale of servIces
Royalty Income

Other Operating ActiVities
Process Scrap Income
Production Linked Incentive Income (refer note 65)
SEISScrip Duty Income

Total

The SubsidIaries derives Its revenue from contract with customers for the transfer of goods and services at a point In time In a
manner In which the they transfers the control of goods and servlces to customers. The Subsidiaries are engaged mainly in the
business of manufacture, sale and servicing of networking products.

Contract Balances
Advance from Customers

Movement In contract LIabilities during the year
Currency Year Previous year

50.37 31.71Opening Balance
Less: Revenue Recognised
Add: Amount received

Closing Balance

41.32
145.68
154.73

30.13
48.79
50.37
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Notes forming part of the Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March 2023

(Amount In INRlakhs. unless otherwise stated)

27 Other income

Particulars
For the Year ended For thll year ended

March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022

Foreign exchange gain I (loss) (net) 69.0.4 47.69

Interest on Income tax refund 2.79 0.36

Sundry debtors written back 15.70

Other Support Services 18.47

Miscellaneous Income 2.42 0.55

liabilities no longer required written back 8.70

Gnln on derecognltlon of RoUassets 2.72
Goln on sale of property, plant and equipment (net) 51.71 0.64

Scrap Income 0.85

Total 128.68 92.96

28 Finance costs

Particulars
For the Year endod For the year ended

March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022

Interest on bank overdraft account 40.00 42.27

Interest on Term Loan 35.04 5.55

Interest on deposits 1.13 0.29

Interest on delayed payments to MSNIf. Vendors 0.16 0.09

Interest on others 4.4) 1.88

Inlerest on loan from directors 65.71 4.91

Interest on lease liabilities 25.44 15.87

Total 171.91 70.86

29 Impairment of financial instruments

Particulars
For the Year ended For the year ended

March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022

On Financial Instruments measured at FVTOCI
Investment In Preference Shares 0.26 4.78

Total 0.26 4.78

30 Purchase of stock-In-trade

Particulars For the Year ended For the year ended
March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022

Networking products 7,899.88 2,439.35

Total 7,899.88 2,439.35

31 Cost of raw material consumed

Partlculars
For the Year ended For the year ended

March 31.2023 March 31,2022

Inventory at the begimlng of the year 586.70 244.46

Add: Purchases 6,275.69 2,946.72

Less: Inventory at the end of the year (1,047.56) (586.70)

Total 5,814.83 2,604.48

32 Changes in inventoreis of finished goods work-in-progress and traded goods.
Particulars

For the Year ended For the year ended
March 31, 2023 March 31. 2022

Inventories at the beginnln!! of the year
Finished goods

· Manufactured 2.50 0.17

· Traded 817.60 435.19

Work-in·progress 0.39 0.84

820.49 436.20

Less: Inventories at the end of the year
Finished goods

· Manufactured 68.04 2.50

· Traded 1,663.40 817.60

Work-in·progress 515.73 0.39

2.247.17 820.49

Changes In Inventories of finished goods, work-in-progress and traded goods (1,426.68) (384.29),-



SMARTLINK HOLDINGS LIMITED

Notes formIng part of the Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March 2023

(Amount In INR lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

33 Employee bene/its expenses

For the Year ended For the year ended
March 31,2023 March 31, 2022

1.499.90 1.265.24

51.09 46.06

85.84 39.72
16.24 11.12

1,653.07 1,384.74

For the Year ended For the year ended
March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022

269.50 200.73

3.71 13.33

25.39 25.40

298.60 239.46

Particulars

Snlnrles and wages

Contribution to provident and other funds (Refer note 42)

Stnff welfare expenses

Gratuity expenses (Refer Note 42)

Total

34 Dopreciaticn and amort/ration expenses

Particulars

Depreciation on property. plant and equipment (refer note 11)

Amortization on Intangible Assets (refer note 12)

DeprecIation on Investment Property (refer note 10)

Total

35 Other expenses

Particulars
For the Year ended For the year ended

March 31,2023 March 31, 2022

lease Rent and license Fees 36.77 8.62

Repairs and maintenance

. Machinery 10.70 0.89

• Others 239.35 59.16

Communication Expenses 18.23 18.35

PrintIng and stationery Expenses 6.09 2.57

Advertisement and publicity Expenses 201.96 89.46
Dlrector'S fees 40.10 34.70
Auditor's fees and Expenses (Refer footnote 1) 26.94 23.33
legal and ProfessIonal charges 355.28 192.82
Insurance charges 56.05 57.76

Consumption of store and spares 36.47 14.62

Power and fuel 130.78 97.16

Rates and taxes 54.60 25.12

Servicing Expenses 38.84 9.81
Warranty provision movement 9.30 4.24

Computer consumables, software and maintenance charges 56.00 38.81

Office Expenses 42.24 27.46

Bank charges and commission 16.84 10.67

Freight Outward 121.66 84.41

Travel and conveyance expenses 113.58 62.65

Application, Registration a FIling Fees 14.87 10.04

Provision for advance paid to supplier 13.86

Bad debts written off 0.22 1.32

Expected Credit Loss on trade receivables for time value of money 5.82 4.96

Expenditure on Corporate Sodal responsibility (Refer Hote 63) 10.67 12.89

Sundry Balance written off 4.53 1.20

Production Unked Incentive Income written off 135.77

Miscellaneous Expense 55.19 38.35

Total 1,838.85 945.23

Foot Notes:-

1. Payment to Auditors

Particulars
For the Year ended

March 31, 2023
For the year ended

March 31, 2022

Charged to Audltor's fees and expenses

Statutory audit fees Indudlng GST expensed

Reimbursement of expenses Including GST expensed

25.17 22.17

0.40 0.51

25.57

1.37 0.65

26.94 2.3.33

~ ~ ~)P:

Other certification fees Induding GST expensed

Total
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Hote~ forming part of the Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March 2023

(Amount In INR lakbs, unless otherwise stated)

36 Income tax

(A) Oeforred tax relates to the following:

Pertlculars
Aut Aut

March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022

Deferred tax assets

On account of timing dlHerence In retlrel and other employee benefits 23.62 17.31

on account of fair value of financial assets designated al MOCI 1.71 14.12

Provision for doubtful debts I advances 7.30 7.84

On disallowance u/s 'lOa of Income Tax Act, 1961 14.95 10.98

On business losses 519.09 549.51

On provision for slow moving stock 42.72 26.46

On VRSCompensation 8.52 17.03

Others 15.60 12.81

633.51 656.06

Deferred tax liabilities

On property, plant and equipment 160.36 155.78

on account of fair value of financial assets deSignated at MPl 206.12 173.07

Other temporary differences

366.48 328.85

Deferred tax liability (Het) 267.03 327.21

(B) Reconciliation of deferred tax assetsl (liabilities) (net):

Particulars
For the Year ended For the year ended

March 31,2023 March 31, 2022

Opening balance as of 1 Aprft 327.21 (81.89)

Tax assets I (liabilities) recogni'Zed In Statement of Profit and loss (6S.68) 408.39

Tax IIssets.1 (liabilities) recognl'Zed In OCI

On re-rneasurernents gllln/(losses) of post-employment benefit obligations 5,49 0.71

On preference shares and bonds

Closing balance as at 31 March 267.03 327.21

(C) Deferred tax assetsl (liabilities) to be recognized In Statement of Profit and Loss

Particulars
For the Year ended For the year ended

March 31, 2023 March 31,2022

Tax liability

Tax asset (65.68) 408.39

Deferred tax assetsl (liabilities) to be recognized In Statement of Profit and
(65.68) 408.39

loss

(O) Income tax expense reported in the statement of profit or loss

Particulars
For the Year ended For the year ended

March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022

· Current tax 334.89 108,42

· Adjustments In respect of current Income tax of previous year (49.72) 6.90

· Deferred taX charge I (Income) 65.68 (408.39)

Income tax expense reported in the statement of profit or loss 350.85 (293.07)

(E) Income tax expense charged 1 (credit) to OCI

Particulars
For the Year ended For the year ended

March 31, 2023 March 31,2022

Net fair value (galn)lloss on debt securities

Net loss/(gain) on remeasurements of defined benefit plans (5.49) (0.71)

Income tax expense charged 1 (credit) to OCI (5.49) (0.71)
.- "- .....

',._.r. __ ...". .... ' __ I ,..'.;i.oI."""",,,J ••
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Notel (arming part of the Consolidated Flnanctal Statements for the year ended 31 March 2023
(Amount In INR lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

(F) Roc01clllatlon of tax charge

Particulars

Profft before tax
Tax !late
Inco rno tax expense at tax rates applicable

Tllx effects of:
· Item not deductible for tax

• brought forward losses adjustments
• deferred tax assets on taxable business losses
· CS R oxpendlture not allowed for tax purpose
· Leasehold land amortisation not claimed In Income tax

·Otl-ers

Effect of unrecognized deferred tax assets (net)
Earll er year adjustment

350.85 (293.07)

For the V,ar end.d
March 31, 2023

For th, y.ar endod
March 31, 2022

2,27".79
25.168~
572.52

738.53
25.168%
185.87

105.07
(133.52)

(344.73)
(141.11)

1.92

2.02

(53.38)

(9<4.06)

(49.72)

Incol'1lo tax expense
6.90
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mlnll part of the Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March 2023

n IHRlakhs, unlessotherwise stated)

$ for preparation of consolidated financial statements (CFS)

Consoltdated Financial Statements (CFS)are prepared In accordance with the requirements 01 Indian Accounting Standard (IndAS) 21, 'ConsolldDtod
ndol Statements' (IndAS) 110, as notified under Section 133 of the Compnnles Act, 2013 (the"Act") read with tha Compnnlas (Indlon Accounting
dards) Rules, 2015and Companies (Indian Accounting Standards)Amendment Rules, 2016.
CFScomprises the finandal statements of Smartllnk Holdings LImited and Its subsldUirfes. References In these notes to Smartllnk, Company,
panics, Parent Companyor Group shalt mean to Include Smartllnk Holdings LImited or any of Its subsidiaries, unless otherwise stated.
notes and significant accounting poltdes to the CFSare Intended to serve as a guide for better understanding of the Group's poSition. In this
act, the Group hasdisclosed such notes and policies which represent the required disclosure.

list of subsidiaries Included In the consolidated financial statements are as lIlder:

Name of the Company Nature of business " of shllroholdlng

Developing, manufacturfng, selling, marketing and servIcing of varIous categortes of Networking
and Information Technology (IT) products.

Manufacture of various categories of electronic and IT products on Job work basis and also
engages In contract manufacturtng for Original Equipment Manufacturers (collectively the
activities constitute Electronic Manufacturing Services (EMS) business).

1oo~01 Systemslimited

Bra EMSlimited 100%

ng the year, the Hon'ble National Company Law Tn'bunal (HCLT), Mumbal Bench vide Its order dated March 3, 2023 has approved the 'Scheme of
Igamation ( 'Scheme')' of a SubsidialY namely Telesmart SCSLimited (Telesmart) (Transferor Company) with another SubsidIary namely 0181$01
ems Limited (Transferee Company) with appointed date April 1, 2022. Dlglsol Systems limited has filed the certified copy of the said order along
the requisite form with the RegIstrar of Companies, Goa on May 4, 2023 (effective date).

effects of the 'Scheme' has been accounted for in the books of accounts of Olglsol Systems limited In accordance wIth the Scheme and Is In
rdance with the Indian Accounting Standards.

ninssl (loss) per share

c earnings 1(loss) per share amounts are calculated by dividing the proflt/(loss) for the year attributable to equIty holders by the weighted average
ber of equity sharesoutstanding during the year.

weighted average number of ordInary shares outstandIng during the period Is the number of ordinary shares outstanding at the beginnIng of the
od, adjusted by the number of ordInary shares bought back or ISS\Jeddurfng the period multtplled by a tlme·welghtlng factor. The tlme·welghting
or Is the numb!!r of days that the shares are ouutanding as a proportion of the total number of days in the year.

following reflects the income and share data used in the basic and diluted EPScomputations:

Particulars
For the Year

ended
March 31, 2023

1,923.94

99.75

2

19.29

19.29

For the year
ended

31st March, 2022

nary equity shareholders

t 1 (toss) attributable to ordinary equity holders

hted average number of equity shares In lal<hs

Value per share

c earnings per share (IHR)

ed earnings per share (INR)

1,038.74

104.94

2

9.90

9.90

isions

sion for Warranty
01 Systems LImited gives warranties on active products, undertaking to repair 1 replace products, which fall to perform satisfactorily during the
anty period. Warranty provision is made on the cost of material estimated to be incurred on servldng I replacement of acUve products in future,
derlng the warranty period of 3·5 years. The prOVision Is determined taking Into consideration the historical data of cost Incurred on servicing 1
fylng product failures.

Movement of warranty prevtslons

27.32

9.30

23.08

4.24

As at
March 31, 2023

As at
March 31,2022

he beginning of the period

Additional provision created

Provision written back (net of additions)

t the end of the period 36.62



SMARTLINK HOLDINGS LIMITED

Notes forming part of the Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March 2023

(Amount In INR lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

40 Contingent liabilities

PartIculars
Aut

March 31,2022
Aut

March 3 I, 2023

B8nk guarantees given In favour of ElectricIty Department· Government of Goa

Corporate guarantees given in favour of banks on behalf of 01111501Systems Limited (Wholly owned subsldlnry)

HDFe Bnnk limited

Bajaj Flnnnce LImited

Ccrporate guarantees given in favour of banks on behalf of Synegra EMS Limited (Wholly owned subsfdlnry)

HDFe [)ank limited

Smnllindustries Oevelopment Bank Of India

3,000.00
2,000.00

1,300.00
270.00

6,641.61

71.61 71.61

2,000.00

1,300.00

3,371.61

As at
March 31, 2023

719.96

43.64

4.87

2.39

0.19

51.09

41 Capital and other commitments

For the Year
ended

March 31. 2023

Particulars
As at

March 31. 2022

Particulars
As at

March 31. 2022

I) Actuarial assumptions

Discount rate (per annum)

• Smartlink Holdings limited

• Dlgisol Systems Limited

• Synegra EMS Limited

• Telesmart ses limited

Rate of increase in Salary

• Smartlfnk Holdings LImited

• Dlilisol Systems Limited

- Synegra EMSLImited

• Telesmart SCSLimited

Mortality

As at
March 31. 2023

Estlmnted amount of contracts remaining to be executed on capital account

Non·cancellatlon lease liabilities (Refer Note 43)
275.04

734.22

7.20%

7.m
7.20%

6.00%
6.00%
6.00%

Particulars
For the year

ended
31st March, 2022

42 E'mp/oyeebenefits

(A) Defined ContrIbution Plans

During the year, the Group has recognized the following amounts In the Statement of Profit and Loss:

Employer's Contribution to Provident Fund and Pension Fund

Employer's contribution to Employee State Insurance

Employer's contribution to National Penson Scheme

Employer's contribution to Professional Tax

40.71

5.08
2.17

0.10

Total 48.06

(B) Defined benefit plans

a) Gratuity payable to employees
The Group has a defined benefit gratuity plan and governed by payment of Gratuity Act. 19n. Every employee who has completed five years or more of
services Is entitled to a gratuity on departure at 15 days of last drawn salary for each completed year of services. The scheme Is funded through a polley
with Lie.

5.00%

5.00%

6.00%
6.00%

IALM (2012-14) Ult IALM (2012,14) Ult

7.27%

7.36%
7.26%

6.86%



SMARTLINKHOLDINGSLIMITED
Notes forming part of the Consolfdated Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March 2023
(Amount In INRlnkhs, unless otherwise stated)

Particulars
Asat Aut

Morch 31, 2023 March 31, 2022

If) Changos In the present value of defined boneflt obligation
Presont value of oblfgation at the beginning of the year 137.85 112.7.4

Interest cost 9.88 7.26

Past service cost
Currcmt sorvtce cost 13.34 11.65
Benefits pnld (15.19) (6.99)
Actunrlal (goln)1 loss on obligations· Due to change In Financial Assumplfons 40.14 12.04
Actunrlnl (81.11n)/losson obligations· Due to experience (4.71) 1.63
Presont value of obligation at the end of the year 181.31 137.85

III) Change In the fair value of pl.n auets:
Opening fair value of plan assets 104.99 104.70
Adjustment to Opening Fair Value of Plan Asset 0.79
Expected return on plan assets 6.98 7.21
Contributions by employer 25.69
Benefits paid (15.19) (6.99)
Return on plan assets excluding Interest Income 0.57 (0.72)
Closing (air value of plan assets 123.04 104.99

Iv) Expense recognized In the Statement of Profit and Loss
Current service cost 13.3<4 11.65
Past service cost
Interest cost 2.90 0.07
Total expenses recognized In the Statement Profit and loss· 16.24 11.72
• Included In Employee benefits expense (Refer Note 33).

For the Year For the year
ended ended

March 31, 2023 31st March, 2022

35.43 13.61
(0.51) 0.12

34.86 14.39

As at Aut
March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022

(181.31 ) (137.85)
123.04 104.99
(58.21) (32.86)

Particulars

v) Expense recognized In Other comprehensive Income

Actuarial (Baln) I loss on Obllgatfon for the period
Return on plan assets exdudlnB Interest Income
Net actuarial (Bains) I losses recognised In OCI

vi) Assets and liabilities recognized In the Balance Sheet:
Present value of obligation as at the end of the year
Fair Value of Plan Assets at the end of the year
Net anet I (liability) recognized In Balance Sheet"
"Included In provision for employee beneftts (Refer note 15 and 19)

vii) Expected contribution to the fund In the next year INR 17.37 lakhs

vIII) A quantitatIve sensItivity analysis for slllntncant assumption Is as shown below:

As at
March 31. 2023

Aut
March 31, 2022

Particulars

152.44
121.41

Salary escalation
rate

Discount rate
Salary escalation

rate
Discount rate

1~ Increase
1~ decrease

161.29 200.25
160.99

121.14
152.33
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Notes forming part of the Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March 2023

(Amount In INRlakhs, unlessotherwise stated)

Ix) Maturity profile of defined benefit obligation

Year
Aut Aut

March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022

Year 1 2.41 2.11

Year 2 1.01 1.92

Year 3 1.23 0.92

Year 4 16.82 1.18

Year 5 4.73 14.48

Year 6 to 10 86.58 60.98

43 Leasas

(A) Operating leases when' Group Is a lessee:

When the Intermediate lessor enters Into the sublease which Is ctass1f1edas Operating lease, It retains the lease liability and the Rlght·of·Use asset
(RoU) relMlng to the head lease In Its statement of flnanctat position. DurIng the term of the sublease, the Intermediate lessor: Recognises II
depreciation charge for the right·of-use asset and Interest on the tease liability and lease Income from the sublease.

Further Ind AS116 requires Inclusion of variable lease payments based on Index or a rate.
Variable lease payments based on an Index or a rate: Variable lease payments based on an Index or a rate (for example, linked to a consumer price
IndeX, II benchmark Interest rate or a market rental rate) are part of the lease liability. From the perspective of the lessee, these payments lire
unevoldeble, because any uncertainty relates only to the measurement of the lIablltly but not to Its existence. Variable tease payments based on an
Index or a rate are Initially measured using the Index or the rate at the commencement date (Instead of forward rates/lndlces). This means that an
entity does not forecast future changes of the Indextrate; these changesare taken Into account at the point In time In which lease payments change.
However, based on management's estimates that lease payment Increases 1~ after a period of a period of three years. Therefore, based on
management judgement, estimates and conservatfve approach it Is estimated, lease liability has been calculated based on these estimated cash flows.

Followfng are the changes In the carrying value of right or use assets for the year ended March 31 2023',

Particulars
Category of ROUAsset

Land a Buildings Prepaid Rent Total

Balanceas on April 01, 2021 140.10 1.93 142.03

Additions .
Depreciation 28.83 0.63 29.46

Deletions -
Blliance ason March 31, 2022 111.27 1.30 112.57

Additions 220.21 7.59 227.80

Depreciation 46.89 1.42 48.31

Deletions 23.17 0.81 2.3.98

Balance as on March 31, 2023 261,42 6.66 268.08

The aggregate depredation expense on ROUassets Is Included under depreciation and amortization expense In the statement of Profit and loss.

The following is the movement In lease liabilities during for the year ended March 31, 202.3:

Particulars Amount

Balance ason April 01, 2021 209.95

Additions

Oeletfon/Derecognition

finance cost accrued during the period 15.87

Payment of lease liabilities (42.26)

Balance ason 31 March, 2022 183.56

Particulars Amount

Balance as on 01 Apr112022 183.56

Additions 220.21

Deletion/Derecognition (15.86)

finance cost accrued during the period 25.44

Payment or lease liabilities (62.94)

Balance as on 31 March, 2023 ...,.,,_-::::::= -:::__ 340.41
..-: t'
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The table below provides details regarding the contractual maturities of lense liabilities liS lit March 31, 2023 on nn undlscounted basis:

Particulars
As lit Aut

March 31, 2023 March J I, 2022

Less than one year 67.33 35.65

One to five years 230.43 72.30

More than five years 797.75 809.69

Total 1,095.51 917.64

The Group does not face a Significant liquidity risk with regard to Its lease Uabllitles as the current nssets are sulflclcnt to meet the
obligations related to lease liabilities as and when they fall due.

Lease rentals paid on short term leases for Current Year INR NIL (March 31, 2022 INR NIL)

(B) Operating leases where Group Is a lessor:

The Group has entered Into cancellable operating leases on Its Investment property portfolio consisting of certain office nnd
manufncturlng buildings. These leases have terms of between 11 months to 60 months. Certain leases Include II clause to enable
upward revision of the rental charge on an annual basis according to prevailing market conditions.

The total rental income on assets given on operating leases amounts to INR 69.32lakhs for the year ended March 31, 2023 (March 31,
2022 INR 37.73 lakhs).

Future minimum rentals receivables under operating leases as at March 31 are, as follows:

Aut As at
March 31, 2022

Particulars
March J 1, 2023

34.27

23.29

Within one year

After one year but not more than five years

More than five years

74.n
146.02

44 Related porty disclosures:

(A) Names of related parties and description of relationship as Identified and certified by the Group:

Enterprise over which key management person Is able to exercise significant Influence.

Mr. Kamalaksha R. Naik (HUF)

Key Management Personnel (KMP)

Mr. Kamalaksha R. Nalk • Executive Chairman

Mr. Krlshnanand M. Gaonkar • Non Executive Independent Director

Mr. Bhanubhai R. Patel· Non Executive Independent Director

Mr. PankaJ M. Baliga • Non Executive Independent Director

Mr. Pradeep A. Rane . Non Executive Independent Director

Ms. Aratl K. Naik - Executive Director

Mr. Nitin A. Kunkolfenkar . Non Executive Director (Synegra EMSlimited)

Mr. Ray Chang· Non Executive Director (Telesmart SCSlimited)

Mr. K. G. Prabhu . Chief financial Officer

Mrs. Urjlta Damle . Company Secretary

Mr. Edlan Fernandes· Company secretary- Synegra EMS Limited

Mr.Pradeep Pande - Non-Executive Director (ceased w.e.f January 04, 2022 • Smarttink Holdings Limited &. Synegra EMS Limited)

Mr. Natarajan Sankara· Non·Executlve Director (w.e.f. April 01,2021 upto June 30,2021· Synegra EMSLimited)

Mr. Prabodh Vyas - Non·Executive Director (retired w.e.f. August 31,2021· Dlgisol Systems Limited)
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SMARTLINK HOLDINGS LIMITED
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(Amount In INR lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

(B) Dotalls of transactions with related party In the ordinary course of business for the year ondod:

March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022

Enterprise over
Enterprise over

which key
Key Management which key

Key Manngomont

Particulars management
Personnel! Relative IllI'Mgement

personnel I Rolntlvo

person Is able to
of Key management person Is able to

of Key
exercise

personnel exercise slgntrlcnnt
managomont

significant personnel
Influence.

Influence.

Salary

Mr. K. G. Prabhu

short-term employee beneflts 56.18 35.67
Post·employment benefits 0.22 0.22

Mrs. Urjlta Damle

Short· term employee benefits 16.28 13.59

Post·employment benefits 0.22 0.22

Mr. Edlan Fernandes

Short· term employee benefits 5.96

Post-ernployment benefits 0.20

Director SittIng Fees

Mr. Krlshnand M. Gaonkar 10.55 7.00

Mr. Pankaj M. Sallga 8.55 5.00

Mr. Pradeep A. Rane 5.50 4.50

Mr 6hanubhal R. Patet 11.00 7.50

Mr. Pradeep G. Pande 3.00

Mr. Nltin A. Kuncollenkar 1.50 2.50

Mr. Nataranjan Sankara 0.50
Mr. Ray Chang 3.50 2.00

Mr. Prabodh Vyas 1.00

Rent Expense

Ms. Aartl K. Nalk 2.40 2.40

Interest on Loan

Mr. Kamalaksha R. Naik 65.71 4.91

Loan taken

Mr. Kamalaksha R. Naik 430.00

Loan repaid

Mr. Kamalaksha R. Naik 480.00 - 500.00

Consideration paid for Buyback of Shares

Mr. Kamalaksha R. Nalk t.ezz.cs
Mr. Kamalaksha R. Nalk (HUF) 40.36
Ms. Aarti K. Nalk - - 375.41
Mrs. Sudha K. Nalk - - 187.70
Mrs. Lakshana A. Sharma - 319.10



SMARTLINK HOLDINGS LIMITED

Notes forming part of the Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March 2023

(Amount In INR lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

BalallcC!s due from and due to related parties

Particulars

1,250,00 1,730,00

As at As at
March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022

Amount due to related party as on:

Key Management Personnel

Mr, Kamalaksha R Nalk

Terms and conditions of transactions with related parties

The trensacuons with related parties are made on terms equivalent to those that prevnflln arm's length transacuons,

45 Fair values of financial assets and financial flabflities

A. Accounting classIfication and fair values

The following table shows the carrylng amounts and fair values of fInancial assets and financIal liabilities, Including their levels In
the fair value hierarchy. It does not Include fair value Information for financllli assets and financIal lIabllltfc!s not mrt8surod at fair
value If the carryIng amount Is a reasonable epproxlmatton of fair value.

B. Measurement of faIr value

The faIr values of the financial assets and liabilities are Included at the amount at whIch the Instrument could be exchanged In a
current transaction between willIng partIes, other than In a forced or liquIdatIon sale.

The followIng methods and assumptions were used to estImate the faIr values:

1. FaIr value of cash, bank balances, short· term deposits, other short-term recetvabtes, trade payables, other current IInbllItfes and
other financial lIabllitfes approximate their carrying amounts largely due to short-term maturltles of these Instruments,

2. The fair value of non-current financfal assets comprisIng of term deposIts at amortfsed cost usIng Effective Interest Rate (EIR) are
not significantly different from the carrylng amount

3. The faIr value of Lease liabilities are calculated based on cash flows dIscounted usIng a current lending rate, They are classIfied
at level 3 In the fair value hierarchy due to the Inclusion of unobservable Inputs IncludIng own and counterparty credit rIsk.

46 Fair value hierarchy

The following Is the hIerarchy for determining and disclosing the faIr value of financial Instruments by valuation technique:

•Levell- Quoted prfces (unadjusted) In acuve markets for Identical assets or liabilities,

•Level 2 - Inputs other than quoted prices Included withIn Levell that are observable for the asset or liabilIty, either directly (I.e.
as prices) or Indirectly (i.e. derived from prices) .

• Level 3 - Inputs for the assets or liabilities that are not based on observable market data (unobservable Inputs).

The following table presents fair value hierarchy of assets and llablllties measured at fair value on a recurring basls:

FaIr value measurement hierarchy of assets and liabilIties-_ .. ..
Particulars

FaIr value As at As at
hierarchy March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022

FINANCIAL ASSETS

Financial assets measured at amortized cost

Investments in Debt securities Level 3 4,551.90 5,056.62

Fixed Deposits Level 3 1,537.31

Security Deposits Level 3 28.13 29.24

Trade receivables Level 3 4,040.51 1,715.80

FInancial assets measured at Fair Value throu!lh Other Com~rehenslve Income

Investments in Debt securities Level 2 - 49.30

Financial assets measured at faIr value through ~roflt or loss

Investments In mutual funds Level 2 6,191,41 5,915.92

FINANCIAL LIABILITIES

Financial liabilities measured at amortised cost Level 3 25.36 9.56

Lease Uabilities Level 3 340.41 183.56

Asset retirement obllgatlon Level 3 8.58 7.92

-There have been no transfers between Levell and Leven durtn_gthe penod
.:.'" ~ <,
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01 risk management objectives and policies

up Is exposed to various flnandal risks. These risks are categorIzed Into market risk, credit risk and liquidity risk. Tho
risk management Is coordInated by the Board of Directors and focuses on securing loog term nnd short term cash flows. The
oes not engage In trading of financial assets for speculative purposes.

Isk

Isk Is the risk that the fair value of future cash flows of II flnnncialinstrumenl will fluctunte because of changes In mark()t
Market risk comprises of risk Interest rate risk and price risk.

est rate risk

rate risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of n Ilnanctat Instrument will fluctuate because of changes In
nterest rates. In order to optimise the Group's position wIth reBards to Interest Income, treasury team manaBes the Inter()st
by diversifyIng Its portfolio across tenures.

risk

up's exposure to securities arises from Investments held by the Group and classified In the Balance Sheet as fnlr value through OCI

Ign currency risk

currency risk Is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial Instrument wilt fluctuate because of changes In
exchange rates. The Company's exposure to the risk of changes In foreign exchange rates relates primarily to the Company's
g activities (when revenue or expense Is denominated In a different currency from the holding Company's functional
).

Company's exposure to foreign currency risk at the end of the year Is as follows

ecelvables

yables

Particulars Currency
Aut As at

March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022

USD 104.21 68.79

USD 1,165.81 583.10

JPY 284.47

sk

nsk is the risk of financIal toss to the Company If a customer or counterparty to a financial Instrument fails to meet Its contractual obligations.
sk primarily arises from cash equIvalents, trade receivables, fInancIal assets measured at amortised cost and financial assets measured at fair
rough profit or loss. The maximum exposure to credit risk is equal to the carrying value of the financial assets. The objective of managIng
arty credit risk Is to prevent losses In fInancial assets.

gn currency sensitivity

owing table details the Company's sensitivity to a 1% Increase and decrease agaInst the US Dollar fJPY. 1% is the sensitivity
en reporting foreign currency risk Internally to key management personnel and represents management's assessment of the
Iy possible change in foreign exchange rates. The sensitivity analysis includes only net outstanding foreign currency
ated monetary Items and adjusts their translation at the period end for a 1% change In foreign currency rates.

Particulars

2.84

2.84

e receivables, credit risk is managed through credit approvals, establishing credit limits and continuously monitorIng the creditworthIness of
rs to which the Group grant.s credit terms in the normal course of business. The Group establishes an allowance for doubtful debts and
ent that represents its estimate of Incurred losses in respect of trade and other receIvables.

As at
March 31, 2023

As at
March 31, 2022

f 1% strengthening against USD • Decrease in loss

r 1% weakening against USD- Increase in toss

12.70

12.70

6.52

6.52

f 1% strengthening against JPY • Decrease in loss

f 1% weakening against JPY· Increase In loss

., ..,
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Not~ forming plrt of the Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March 2023
(Amount In INR I(~hs, unless otherwise stated)

For other f~,lnclal assets and Investments, the Company has on Investment policy which allows the Company to Invest only with countorpnrtlo$ hllvlny n
good credi trollng. The Company reviews the creditworthiness of these counterpllrtlcs on lin on·golfli basis. Counterpnrty limits maybe updnted liS nod
when requllfd subject to approval of Board of DIrectors.

The CompalY limits Its exposure to credit risk of cash held with banks by dealing with highly rated banks nod Instltullons and retalnlnll $u(flclont
balances 1n bank accounts required to meet a month's operetlonal costs. The Management reviews the bank accounts on rogulnr basl$ and fund
drawdownslro planned to ensure that there Is minimal surplus cosh In bank accounts.

The Compacy's maximum exposure to credIt risk for the components of the balance sheet at March 31, 2023 and March 31,2022 Is the carryIng amounts
as mentioned In Note 5, 6, 7, 8, and 13.

(C) LIquidIty rfs~

The Group'sprfnclpal sources of liquidity are 'cash and cash equivalents' and cash flows that lire generated from operations. The Group believes that Its
working capital Is sufficient to meet the financial liabilltfes within maturity perfod. The Company has no borrowings. Additionally, the Group hns
Invested Its surplus funds In fixed Income securities or Instruments of similar profile thereby ensuring safety of copltal and availability of liquidity as and
when requir~. Hence, the Group cernes a negligible liquidity risk.
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ent: information

tlng segments are defined as components of an enterprise for which discrete flnonclallnformatlon Is available thnt 15evalualed
arly by the chief operating decision maker. The Group'S chief operating decision milker Is the Executlve·Chalrman.

egment Information for primary reporting (by business segment)
he group has two reportable business segments

) Investment: Earning Income through dividends, Interest, rentals and gains on Investment In securltfes and propertfes.
I) Networking products: Developing, manufacturing, marketing, distributing and servlclng of networking products.

lformatlon about primary segments

Particulars

esment Revenue (net):
a) Investment
b) Networking Products

Total
Less: Inter-segment Revenue
Total Income from Operations (net)

esment Profit I (Loss) before finance cost. tax and minority Interest:
a) Investment
b) Networking Products

Total
Addl (tess)» Other un-allocable expenditure net-off un-allocabte Income
Operating Profit I (Loss)
Add I (Less):
I) Finance Costs (net)
til Income Taxes
III)Share of loss attributable to Minority

Year Endod
March 31, 2023 Morch 31, 2022

954.50 909.37
15,490.18 7,103.23

16,444.69 8,012.60
(139.42) (62.42)

16,305.26 7,950.18

1,854.28 115.44
549.41 724.67

2,403.69 840.11
43.01 (30.72)

2,446.70 809.39

(171.91) (70.86)
(350.85) 293.07

7.14
1,923.94 1,038.74Profit I (Loss) after finance cost, tax and minority Interest

apltal Employed
egment Assets

a) Investment
b) Networking Products
c) un-a tlocated

Total Assets
ess: Segment liabilities
a) Investment
b) Networking Products
c) Un·allocated

15,360.68 14,675.14
9,785.67 4,765.59
1,016.51 1,446.90

26,162.86 20,887.63

321.05 275.70
7,464.31 4,102.97

27.20 13.70
7,812.56 4,392.37

18,350.30 16,495.26

Total liabilities
Total Capital Employed

apital expenditure
ddltfon to fixed assets
a) Investment
b) Networking Products
c) Un-allocated

Total Assets
epreclatlon and Amortisation
a) Investment
b) Networking Products
c) Un-allocated

Total

121.82 207.28
518.06 418.73

639.88 626.01

102.22 108.31
196.38 131.15

298.60 239.46
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Venr Endod
Particulars

March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
Malfrllll non cash expenditure other tban pepreclatlon and amortisation
(a )Investment
(b )Networklng Products
(c )Un-allccated

6.73 (11.65)

6.13 (11.65)Total

(B) SegMnt Information (or secondary segment reporting (by goographlcal segments)
Th esocondary reporting segment for the Group Is the geographical segment based on location of customers, which Is (IS follows:
I) lAnestlc
II) Export

Infamotlon about secondary segments
YOllr Endod

Particulars
March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022

R~vtQue (rom customer

· Domestic
· Export

15,764.67
540.59

7,320.67
629.51

Total 16,305.26 7,950.18
Segl10nt Anets

· DomestIc
· E)j)ort

26,058.65
104.21

20,818.84
68.79

Total 26,162.86 20,887.63

Addition to ((xed assets durlns the year

· Domestic
- E)j)Ort

639.88 626.01

639.88 626.01Total
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(Amount In INR lakhs, unless otherwlset stated)

<49 Tho Group has not given Loans or Advances In the nature of loans to Promoters, Directors, Key Manogement Porsonnol nnd tho relntod
partlos (as defined under Companies Act, 2013), either severally or jointly with nnyother person,

50 Capltal-work-In progress (cwlp)

(a) For Capltal-work-In progross agllln8 schedule

March 31, 2023

CWIP
Amount In CWIP (or II pllrlod of

Total
Letssthan 1 year 1-2 Yllars 2·3yoars Morll thnn 3 Yllars

Projects In progress

Projects temporarily suspended

March 31, 2022

CWIP
Amount In CWIP for a period of

Total
Less than' year '-2 yoars 2-3yoars Moro than 3 yoars

Projects In progress

ProJocts temporarily suspended 215,70 215.70

51 IntangIble assetts under devolopmllnt

The Group does not have any Intangible assets under development during tho current year and the previous Yllar.

52 Dotalls of Benaml Property held

The Group does not have any Benaml property, where any proceeding has been InitIated or pending agaInst the Group for holdIng any
Benaml property.

53 Reconciliation of quarterly returns or statements of current assets fIIod wIth banks or fInancIal InstItutions

Monthly returns I statements are flied with such Banksl financial Institutions are In agreement with the books of account,

54 Wilful Defaulter

The]Group has not been declared a wilful de]faulter by any bank or f1nanclnllnstllutloo.

55 Rolatlonshlp wIth Struck off Companies under section 2'18 of the Companies Act, 2013 or section 560 of CompanIes Act, 1956.

The Group does not have any transactions with companIes struck off under section 248 of the CompanIes Act, 2013 or section 560 of
Companies Act, 1956,

56 Roglstratfon of charges or satisfaction with Registrar of Companies

The Group does not have any charges or satisfactIon whIch Is yet to be registered with Registrar of Companies beyond the statutory

57 Compliance with number of layers of companIes

The Group has complied with the number of layers prescribed under clause (87) of secUon 2 of the Act read with the CompanIes
(RestrictIon on number of Layers) Rules, 2017.

58 Utilisation of Borrowed funds and share premium:

(I) The Group has not advanced or loaned or Invested funds to any other person(s) or entlty(ies), Including foreign entities
(Intermediaries) with the understanding that the Intermediary shall:
(a)dlrectlyor Indirectly lend or Invest In other persons or entities Identified In any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Group
(Ultimate Beneficiaries) or
(b)provlde any guarantee, securIty or the like to or on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries

(U) The Group has not receIved any fund from any person(s) or entlty(les), Including foreign entities (FundIng Party) with the
understanding (whether recorded In writIng or otherwise) that the Group shall:
(a)dlrectly or Indirectly lend or Invest In other persons or entitles identified In any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Funding
Party (Ultimate Beneficiaries) or
(b)provlde any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate BeneficIaries,

59 The Parent Company is a Non Banking Financial Company - Non-Systemically Important Non·Deposlt taking Company as per the Reserve
Bank of India circular RBIIDNBR/2016·17/4" Master Direction DNBR.PD.D07103.10.119/2016-17. ThUS, the following analytical ratios are
not applicable to the Company.

1. Capital to rlsk·weighted assets ratio (CRAR)

2. Tier I CRAR
3. Tier II CRAR

4. LIquIdity Coverage Ratio.
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60 Undls.closedIncome
The Cc:mpanydoes not have any undisclosed Income which Is not recorded In the books of account thaI has been surrendered or
dlsclo ssl as Income during the year (previous year) In the tax assessmentsunder the Income Tax Act, 1961 (such as, search or survey
or nny ether relevant provislons of the Income Tax Act, 1961.

61 Detal hof Crypto Currency or Virtual Currency
The Conpany hasnot traded or Invested In Crypto currency or Virtual Currency during the financial year.

62 CapltalManagement
For the purposeof the Group's capital management, capital Includes Issuedequity capItal and all other equity reserves attributable to
the eqJlly holders. The Holding Company operates as an Investment Company and consequently Is registered as a Non·Banklng
Flnancill Institution ·(Non Public DeposIt AcceptIng) with ReserveBankof Indln (RBI).

The hddlng company does not have any borrowIngs In the nature of Ioans nnd advances from Banks, ffnanclal Institutions lind others
and Is (ashsurplus. The subsIdiary companIes In the group have borrowIngs from banks and from directors. Overall the consolidated
equIty of the Group Is In excess of the borrowIngs. The cash surpluses of the HoldIng Company are currently Invested In Income
generaling debt Instruments (Including through mutual funds) and money market Instruments depending on economic conditions In line
with inTestment policy set by the Management. Safety of capItal Is of prIme Importance to ensure availabilIty of capital for operatIons.
ObJectfie of Investment polIcy is to provIde safety and adequate return on the surplus funds.

63 As per provIsionsof sectIon 135 of CompanIesAct 2013, the Group was required to spend INR 10.20 lakhs (March 31, 2022: INR 13.76
lakhs) beIng2%of average net profits made during the three ImmedIately preceding fInancIal years, in pursuance of Its Corporate
soctat ResponsibilityPolIcy on the activitIes spectfled In Schedule VII of the Act. The Company has spent INR 10.91 lakhs (Including
excess ofearlier year) (March 31,2022: INR 14.00 lakhs) towards Corporate Social ResponsibilIty actIvities as under:

As at As at
Partlcu lars March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022

GrossMlount required to be spent as per Section 10.20 13.76
Add: Amount Unspent from previous years
Total Grossamount requIred to be spent during 10.20 13.76

A.

B. IAmount approved by the Board to be spent durIng 1 10.90 1 16.351

c. Amount spent during the year on
(I) Construction/acquisition of an asset
(If) On purposesother than (I) above 10.67 12.89

D. Details related to amount spent

PartIcular
As at As at

March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022

(I) Construction / acquisitIon of any asset -
(II) On purpose other than (I) above

• Installation of Networking products in variou 2.50
• Prime Minister's National Relief Fund 0.25 1.51
·Promotlng healthcare 0.57
·Education purpose 10.42 8.31

Total 10.67 12.89
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E. Detnllsof excess CSRexpenditure

Balance
Amount required Balllnce excess

Nature of Activity
excess as at

to be spent
Amount spent

liS lit Mllrch 31,
April 01,

ourlng the year
during thl' year

2023
2022

·On pulpose other than

Constroctlon , acquisition of any (0.24) 10.20 10.67 (0.71)
asset

Balance
Amount required Balance excess

Nature of Activity
excess as at

to be spent
Amount spent

as at March 31,April 01,
during the year

during the year
2022

2021

-On purpose other than
Constru::tlon , acquisition of any (1.11) 13.76 12.89 (0.24)
asset

F. Disclosures on Shortfall

Particulars March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
Amoimt Required to be spent by the Company 10.20 13.76

Actual Amount Spent by the Company during the 10.67 12.89

PY Excess adjusted during the CY 0.24 1.11

Shortfan'(Excess) at the end of tile year (0.71) (0.24)

Total or previous years shortfall

expenditure

64 DlscloslXe required under Schedule IIIof CompanIes Act, 2013

Net Assets, I.e. total assets minus Share In Profit or (Loss) Share In Total
totaillabtllties Comprehensive Income

Name of the Entity Year ending As%of As%of As" of
consolidated net Amount consolidated Amount consolidated Amount

assets profit or loss profit or loss

Smartlink Holdings limited 31.03.2023 100.00 18,350.30 100.00 1,923.94 100.00 1,894.57
(Consolidated)

31.03.2022 100.00 16,500.07 100.00 1,038.74 100.00 1,024.71

Parent

Smartlink Holdings LImited 31.03.2023 109.45 20,084.77 92.21 1,774.08 93.82 1,777.53

31.03.2022 110.97 18,309.51 278.74 2,895.35 282.33 2,893.03

Subsidiaries

Dlgisol Systems Limited 31.03.2023 13.14 2,410.61 23.04 443.17 22.35 423.36

31.03.202.2 12.77 2,107.59 97.38 1,011.67 98.59 1,010.14

Synegra EMSLImited 31.03.2023 6.32 1,159.77 (3.89) (74.76) (4.63) (87.76)

31.03.2022 1.50 247.53 0.97 10.04 (0.15) (1.50)

Telesmart SCS Limited 31.03.2023 -
31.03.2022 (0.48) (79.12) (3.43) (35.68) (3.32) (33.97)

Minority Interests In subsidiaries

Telesmart SCS Limited 31.03.2023 -
31.03.2022 (0.03) (4.81) (0.69) (7.14) (0.70) (7.14)

Elimination and Adjustment due

to Consolidation 31.03.2023 (28.91) (5,304.85) (11.36) (218.55) (11.54) (218.56)

31.03.2022 (24.73) (4,080.63) (272.97) (2,835.50) (276.75) (2,835.85)

Total 31.03.2023 100.00 18,350.30 100.00 1,923.94 100.00 1,894.57

31.03.2022 100.00 16,500.07 100.00 1,038.74 100.00 1,024.71
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65 Synogn EMS Limited (Synegra), subsidiary Company had received approval under the Production LInked IncenttvG (PLI) to promote Telecom lind
NGtwor!Jng Products manufacture In India (the PLI scheme) on October 14, 2021 from the competent AuthOrity. Undor the PLI scheme Synegrn had
recognted an Income of Rs. 13S.n lakhs In the previous financial year ended March 31, 2022 on fultnment of the condlttons for eligibility o(
Incon til, under the Pli scheme.
During Ille current year, on October 31, 2022 Synegra had received approval under the extended PLI scheme and the Bonrd of Directors o( Synegrn at
their meeting held on November 2, 2022 had approved the exit from the erstwhile PLI scheme and opting (or thG extended PLI schema,
Consequently, Synegra had derecognlsed the said mcenuve of Rs. 135,77 lakhs nod charged the nmount to other expenses In the quarter ended
septe rn~er 30, 2022.
Further(or the year ended March 31, 2023 on fulfilment of the conditions for eligibility of Incentive under the extend()d Pli scheme, the Company
has rectgnlsed incentlve of Rs. 280 lakhs.

66 As lit March 31,2023, the Group did not have any outstanding long term derivative contracts (previous yenr INR NIL)

67 There were no whistleblower complaints received durtng the FY 2022·23.

68 Event after reporting date:·

There hive been no events after the reporting date that require disclosure In these financial statements.

As per my report of even date

For Shrldhllr 8 Assoctates
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